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National Aluminium Company Limited
(A Government of India Entarprise)
Regd. Office : NALCO Bhawan, Plat No. P/1,
Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar — 751 061 (Odisha)

NOTICE

MNotice s heraby glven that the 315t Annual Ganeral Mesting of the Company will be hald on Tuesday, the 14" August, 2012 at 11.00
AM, at NALCO Bhawan, Plol Ne. P/, Nayapalll, Bhubaneswar- 751 061 lo transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS ;

1. To receive. consider and adopt the Directors” Report, audited Balance Sheet as on 3tsl March, 2012 and the Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended 31st March, 2012 together with the reports of the Auditors therean,

2. Todeolare dividend,
3. Toappointa Director in place of Shn Ansuman Das, who retires by rotation and being eligible; offers himsaitf for re-appointment.
4. Toappainta Director in place of Shii Ved Kumar Jain, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himsel [dr re-appointimanl

SPECIAL BUSINESS :
5. ToappeintShri G. P. Joshi as Director, whose period of office is liable to be determined by rotation.
Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolulion with or without modification(s) -

"RESOLVED THAT Shri G. P. Joshi be and s hereby appaointed &5 a Director of the Company, whose period of office is liable to be
determined for retirement by ratation In terms of Onder No. 2(2 Y2010-Met | dtd. 15th September, 2011 of Government of India or
any amendments thersto.”

6. ToappolntShriS. 8. Khurana as Director, whose period of office is liable to be determined by rotation.
To consldarand if thought fit, o pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolulion with or withoul modificationds) :

‘RESOLVED THAT Shrl S. 5. Khurana be and |s hereby appointed a5 a Director of the Company, whosa perlod of office |5 liahle
to be determined for retirerment hy' rotation in terms of Order No.2(2)/2010-MelL | did. 15th September, 2011 of Governmant of
India or any amendments theneto."

7. ToappointShriS. 5. Mahapatra as Director, whose period of office is liable lo be determined by rotation.
To consider and if thought i, 1o pass the lollowing resolullon as an Ordinary Resolulion with ar withoul modification(s) :

*RESOLVED THAT Shr 5. S. Mahapalra be and is hersby appainted as & Direclor af the Company, whose pedod of affice Is
liable to be determined for retirement by rotation In terms of Order Na.2{1)/2010-Met.| did_22nd July, 2011 of Govermment of
India or any amendments therato."

8. Toappeint ShriMadhukar Gupta as Director, whose period of offica is liable to be determined by rotation.
Toconsiderand if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or without imodificationds) -

*RESOLVED THAT Shri Madhukar Gupta be and is heraby appointed &s a Direclor of the Company, whosa period of office is
liabla to be determined for retirement by rotation in tarms of Order Na. 2{2)2010-Met.| dtd. 27th Depember. 2011 of Gavernmeant
af India or any amendments thereto.” _

9. ToappointShri Ghanshyam Hiralal Amin as Director, whose period of office Is llable to be determined by rotation.
Toconsidar and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as:an Ordinary Resclution with orwithout modification(s) :
“RESOLVED THAT Shri Ghanshyam Hiralal Amin be and is hereby appainted &8 a Director af the Campany, whose period of
affice s llable to be determined for retirement by rotation 0 terms of Order No2(202010-Met| did. 27th December, 2011 of
Government ol Indiz orany amendments thersto.”

10. To appeint Shri N. R. Mohanty as Director, whose period of office is liable to be determined by rotation.

To considar and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or without modification(s) :
*RESOLVED THAT Shri M. R, Mohanty be and is heraby appolnted as a Director of the Company, whose period of office |5 liahle
ta bie determined for retirement by rotation in lerms of Ordar No.2(312010-Met | did, 12th Octaber, 2011 of Gavernment of India
or any amendmaeants thereto.”

11. To appoint Shri Arun Kumar as Director, whose period of offica. le to ba detarmined by rotation,

To considerand if thought fil, 1o pass the following resolutlon &s an Crdina Hﬁnmumvﬂﬂﬁ ar without modification(s)

*RESOLVED THAT Shri Arun Kumar ba and is haraby appointed ﬁ#: cic i mparny, whose pariod of affice Is liable to

b determined for retirement by rotation in terms'of Order Nol2(1)/ -t th Agirll, 2012 of Gavernmanlafl Ihdia orany

amendments thereto.” :
12. Toappoint Shri Qaiser Shamim as Director, whose period of office is liable to be determined by rotation.

To considerand if thought fit, to pass the following resolution a5 an Ordinary Resalution with or without modification{s) :

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Gaiser Shamim be andis hisrsby apgointed as 8 Dirsctor of the Company, whose period of office s liable

to be determined for retirerniant by ratation in tarms of Grder No. 2(22010-Mat I{PL 1) did. 10" July, 2012 of Govermnment of India
ar any amandmanis thereto.”
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13. To appoint Shri Sanjiv Batra as Director, whose peried of office is liable to be determined by rotation.
To consider and If thought fil, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or withoul modification{s) !
*RESOLVED THAT Shri San|lv Batra be and is heraby appainted as a Director of the Company, whose period of office ks liable 1o

be determinad for retirement by rotation in terrms of Order No 2{2V2010-Met ){PL1) did. 10 July, 2012 of Govemment of India or
any amendments thereto.”
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Place - Bhubaneswar (K. N. RAVINDRA)

Date ! 14.07.2012 COMPANY SECRETARY
MNotes:
(a) Explanatory Statemients pursuanl to Section 173(2) of the Companies Acl, 1956, in respect of ltem Nos. 5 1o 13 set oul above

are annexed hereto.

(b) AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 1S ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BEAMEMBER OF THECOMPANY. PROXIES INORDERTOBE
EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THEMEETING. ABLANK PROXY FORMIS ENCLOSED.

(e} The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Tuesday, the 7" August, 201210
Tuesday, the 14th August, 2012 {both days inclusive).

(d) I dividend on shares as recommended by the Board of Direclors is approved al the Annual General Meeting, payrment of such
dividend will ba made within 30 daysof [tz declaration 1o those shareholders, whoss names appear
I} asBenehcial Owners as at the end of the businass on 6" Augusl, 2012 as per the benefictal owners position Lo be provided

by NSDL and CDSLin respect of the shares held in the electronic form and
i) as members in the Register of Members of the Company, after ghving effect to all valid share transfars in physical form
lodged with the Company an or before 6" August, 2012,

(] Detmils of Direclors seeking re-appointmant/appolntment as new directors in this Annual General Mesling are attached
separately to the Notice.

(T} Pursuant to the provisions of Section Z054(5) of the Companies Act, 1856, dividend, which remain unpaid or unclaimad for a
pariod of seven years will ba transfermed by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund establishiad by the
Central Governmant pursuant to Seclion 205C of the Companies Acl, 1958. The detalls of unpaid or unclaimed dividend are
available inthe Company’s website www.nalcoindia.com. Mambers who have not so far encashed their Dividend Warrants are
requestad o make a clalm by writing and sanding the ariginal Dividend Warrants to the Company.

No claims shall lle against the Fund or the Company |n respec! of Individual amounts which were unclalmed and uhpald for a
period of ssven yvears from the dates thal they first became due for payment and no payment shall be made in respect of any

such claims:
Unpaid orunclaimed diadend 8s on 31.05.2012 s given below:
UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Financial Year Date of Declaration Last date for claiming Unclaimed/
of Dividend unpaid/unclaimed Unpaid Amaunt
dividend @)
2004-05 (Final) 30,06.2005 29,06.2012 4,48 451
- 2005-06 {Intenm) 12.01,2006 11.01.2013 3,64 200
2005-06 (Final) 28.08.2006 27.06.2013 7.17.258
2008-0T{1st Interim) 22.01.2007 21.01.2014 B.85.080
2008-07(2nd Irterm) 08.03.2014 3,590,622
2006-07 (Final) 20.09.2014 498,067
2007-08 {Interim) 28.01.2015 8,368,107
2007-08 (Final) 19.00.2015 2,95.972
2008-08{Interim}) 27.01.2016 6,968,118
2008-08 (Final) 18.00.2016 3,25,018
2609-10(Interim) 18:03.:2017 4,07 061
2009-10(Final) 29.09.2017 316,248
2010-11{Inteim) 30.01.2018 B,77.414
2010-11(Final) 28.092018 5.71.765
2011-12{Interim) 19.02.2019 1745916
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(@) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediataly, change in their address in block letters with PIN
CODE andfor change in their Bank particulars, if any, to the Reglsterad Office of the Company, quoting their Follo Number
Members holding shares in electronlc form are requested 1o notily their change of address and/or bank particulars (o their
respective Depository Participants (DPFs) only.

(h} As per the provisions of the Companias Act, 1956, facility for making nominations |s avallable to shareholders in respect of the
shares held by them. In case, shares are hald in electranic form, reglstration of nomination has o be done with the respective
Depository Participants (DPs) only without referring the matier (o the Company, Nomination Fomms (Form 2B) If needed, can be
oblained from the Ragistered Offica of the Company. This form can also be downloaded from the Company's website
www.nalcoindia.com.

(1) The Company provides the fadlity of centratised NECS (Credit Clearing) to the shareholders, holding shares both inelectronlc
and physical forms in B1 designated centers as on date. A blank NECS Mandate form s attached herawith lor use by such
shareholders. This form can also be downloaded from the Company's website www.nalcoindia.com. The mandate given by the
shareholder would ba usad for all future payments unless amended/withdrawn,

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form may please note that the Cormpany will use 9 digit MICR Code along with Bank
particulars, as provided by their respective Depositories, for the purpose of payment of dividend through NECS.

(]] Members holding shares in electronic form may pleass note thal their bank detalls as provided by the respective Depositories to
tha Company wiil be printed on their dividend warrants as per the applicable regulations of the Dapositonies and the Company
will not entertain any direct request from such members for change/deletion of such bank delails. Howsver, If there is any
change In their Bank pariculars andfor change In address aftar the date of providing beneficlal owners position by the
Depositories bul before the date of dispatch of dividend warrant/demand draflt/NECS cradil, the Campany may consider suah
requests providsd that such requests are receivied through their respective Deposilory Parlicipants, duly certified by them.
Further, Instructions, i any, already given to the Company by them in respect of shares held in physical form will not be
automatically applicable to the dividend payable on shares held in electronic form. Members may therefore give fresh
Instructions reganding partioulars of thelr bank accounts and address In which they wish to recelve dividend, 1o their respective
Depository Participants only,

(k} Sharsholders/investors are advisad to send their gueries/complaints through the dedicated e-mall Id Le
investorservice@nalcoindia.codn for guick and prompt redressal of thair gnevances.

SEBI has introduced a centralized web based system called SEBI Complants Redress Systern (SCORES) for online
movement of complalnts to concemed Companies and for online view of the action taken by the Companles an the complaints,
Members may also use this new system introducad by SEBI for lodging their complaints/ grievances.

(I} The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by
every participant In the securibes markat. Members holding shares In electronic form are therefore requested to submit the PAN
details to thelr Depository Participants (DP) with whom they are maintaining demal accounts. Members holding shares In
physical form cansubmil thair PAN detailsta the Company.

Any parsan desirous of transferring shares In his name In physical mode must enciose copy of F#H along with other share
transfer related documents. Any transfer request withaut PAN copy will be rejected.

(m) Shareholders who hald shares in physical form in multiple falios In Identical names or joint holdings In the same order of names
arg requested o send tha share cadificates to the Company for consolidalion into single fr.iia.

(n) Interms of ‘Green Initiative in the Corporate Governancea' of the Ministry of Corporate Affaiss wida diroulsr no. 1742011 dated
21,04 2011, shareholders holding shares In physical fom Hﬂmqmﬂfﬂdiﬂﬁlﬂmﬂ‘ﬁirﬁdmﬂﬂﬂﬂmh the attachad format for
sending future notices/documents through thelr e-malls. Changes therein, may be informed to the Enmpmj.r immediataly,
Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are requested to update thair e-mall addmm thelr respective DPs without
refarring the matter Lo the Company.

(o) AN Unclaimed/unpaid interest and principal amount on debentures have ulmndy been transferred to IEPF on
04.04.2012. Hence no request/grievance on any such interest /principal amount on debantures will be entertained by
the Company.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956.

NemNo.5:

Shri G. P. Joshl, Former LAS was Inducted o the Board as an Additional Director of the Company woef. 28.09.2011. In terms of
Section 2680 of the Companies Act. 1858, Shri Joshl holds office up to the date of the ensuing 31 st Annual General Meeting.

. P. Joshi, born 1955, has master s degree in Physics and Managemeant of Intemational Devalopment Projects and PG Diploma in
Financlal Mar‘rag-am&n! He |olned the Indian Administrative Servics in 1878 and took voluntary retlrement in 2008. He has thirty
years of experience in varous positions in the Cenlraland State Governments of Manipur and Gujaral. He servesasa director on
the Boards of Saral Foods Limited, Peaches & Plums Resorts Pyl Limited and Hindustan Coppear Limited.

Shri Joshi does not hold any shares in the Company.

Tha Company has recaived a nolice In writing along with the préscribed deposil froma mamber of the Company under Sectlon 257 of
the Companigs Act, 1956, signifying his intention to propose the candidaturs of Shri Joshi as Director of the Company, whose period
ofoffice is llahie (o be detarmined by relation.

Your directors feel that Shn Joshl's association with the Board will be in the Interest of the Company. Itis considered desirable that the
Coampany should continue to avall his services as a direclor and recommend this resalution for approval of the shareholders.

Nome of your diractors except Shirt Joshl, whose appaolntment |s proposed herein, Is inlevestad in the proposed resolution,

ltem No. 6

Shri 5. 5. Khurana, Former Chalrman, Rallway Board was Inducted to the Board as an Addlitlonal Directar of the Company we.f.
29.09.2011. In terms of Section 280 of the Companias Act, 1956, Shri Khurana holds office up to the date of the ensuing 318t Annual
Ganeral Mesating:

Shri 5.5 Khurana (an alumnus of [IT/Roorkee) former Chalrman of Railway Board and ex-officio Principal Secretary to Government
of india has a blend of 38 years of strong Administrative, Corporate, Management and Technical Expenence in vanous key positions
of Indian Railways. Apart from the Apex leval position of Chairman Railway Board in the Ministry of Rallways, he held the other
importanl and cruckal positions of Member Staff, Railway Board and ex-officlo Secretary to Government of India, General Manager
of the Zonal Railways of East Coast Rallway and the Eastern Railway, Divisional Railway Manager of the ADRA division of South
Eastern Railway. Apart fram this, he discharged the onerous tasks of Chairman of the two impartant PSUs of the Ministry of Raillways
e.g. IRCON Intermalional Ltd. and the Dedicated Frefght Corporation of India Ltd (DFCCIL). He aiso workid as the Chiel Electrical
Enginesr of the Railway Electrification at Allahabad and Chief Project Manager of Rasilway Elactnfication at Ambala. Shn Khurana
has undergone an Advancad Leadership programme from “Stern Business School, New York, USA". He has visited many countries
on study tours as well as for Inspection, Design & Development of Electric Locomotives. He has the wide ranging éxperience and
axposure o the Railways in these countries.

Shrl Khurana dosas not hold any shares in the Company.

The Company has recelved a notice In writing along with the prescribed deposit froma member of the Company under Section 257 of
the Companias Act, 1956, signifying his intention to proposa the candidature of Shri Khurana as Director of the Company, whose
period of office is liable 1o be determined by rolation.

Your directors feel that Shr Khurana's association with the Board will be In the Interest of the Company. It Is congldered desirable that
the Company should mntlnuglnnm}l his servicea as a dirsclor and recommend this resolutlon for spproval of the shargholders,

MNoneaof ynurmm:harﬁ nkmptfmri Khurana, whose appaintment is proposed herein, is interestad in the propased resolution.
item No. T :

Shrl S, S Mahapatrs, wasinducted to the Board as an Additional Director of the Company w.e £, 01.10.2011. Interms of Section 260
ol the Gﬂmpﬁrﬂﬁm.jﬂﬁﬁtw & holds uffice Up 1o the date of the ensuing 315t Annual General Meeting.

Barn on 20,12.1954, Shil 8.8, Mahap&tm did his B.Se. (Engy.}) In Mechanical engineering from UCE. Burla and post graduate
diploma in materisl mﬁgﬁ‘naﬁt fraim lIMM, Bangalore. He also holds law degree from Ulkal Iniversity. Shri Mahapatra started his
career with Mis. Pressels Pyt Ltd. andsubsequently jainad NALCO in 1882 He became Diractor (Production)w.e f 01.10.2011. He
has 33 years of varied axp-urlmfmm boller manufacturing industries to aluminjuem industries.

Shri Mahapatra has contributed algrﬂﬂr:anﬂ towards tE::I‘H‘IrJIng}r uprgradation, Indigenous developments, proactive and prediclive
maintenance systems, Winaround In casting and rolling facilities. He has a commendable involvement In quality, environment and
occupational health management. Recertification of OHSAS 180071 and (S0 14001 in all four unit completed in this financial year.
Under his leadership, the eritical and lifeline project “Ash dispnsgﬂ o mines void through lean Eh.lrr‘_I,-' of captive power plant has made
a remarkable progress. Company has Immensely b ”ﬁnm Hl'lntlmﬁgahle efforts in stabilizing 2nd phase expansion of
alumina refinery unit.

Shri Mahapatra Is fellow of institution of

] and life mamber of Indian Institute of Metals. He has been slecled as
member 1o the prestigious Standlng e ﬂ'ﬁ Non-Fermous Minerals & Industries of Federation of Indlan Mineral Industrias
(FIMI). He Is also membier of Board of Gnv&ﬁ'pnuf National Institule of Foundry &Forge Technology (NIFFT), an autonomous body
of Govt_ of Indis undar Ministry of HRD. TR
Shii Mahapalra does not hold any shares i the Company.
The Company has recsived anoticein mwﬁﬂnﬁﬂhmemmtﬁd depositfroma member of the Comparty under Sectlon 257 of
the Companies Adt, 1856, slanifying his infention o propose the candidature of Shri Mahapatra as Director of the Company, whose
period of office is llable to be deten _..-.mhymum
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Your directors feel that Shn Mahapatra's assocation with the Board will be in the interest of the Company. it is considerad
desirabie thal the Company should continue to-avall his services as a director and recommend this resolution for approval of
tha shareholders.

Neane of your directors except Shn Mahapatra, whose appointmeitis proposed hansin, is Inferested in the proposed resolution
lem No. 8!

Shri Madhukar Gupta was inducted to the Board as an Additional Director of the Company w.e1. 27 122011, Interms of Section 260
ofthe Companies Aot 1958, Shri Gupta halds offica up lo the date of the ensuing 3135t Annual General Meeting.

Shri Madhukar Gupla is a post gradualz in Political Science. He joined the Indian Administrabive Service in 1871, He brings with him
more than 38 years experence in the Central Government and State Governments of Uttar Pradesh and Uttarakhand. He retired as
Home Secretary, Government of India. The positions held by him priar 1o that Included Secretany in the Minkstries/Departments of
Farlllizers and Youth Affairs and Sports, Additional Secretary, Department of Mines, Vice Chairman Delhi Development Authority,
and Regional Director (Middle East) Indian Investment Centre, Abu Dhabi, in the Central Govemmient, and Chiel Secretary,
Government of Uttarakhand, and other important positions, including in the public sector, In the State. He was a Fellow al the Queen
Elizabeth House, Uinlversity of Oxford, and had earlier oblained a Diploma in Rural Deveiopment Projects; Design and Appraisal
from the ILO Centre at Turin, Italy,

Shri Gupta does nol hold any shares in Lhe Company.

The Company has received anolice in wriling along with the prascribed depasit froma member of the Company under Section 257 of

the Companies Act, 1966, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Shr Gupta as Director of the Company, whose period
ofoffice is liable to be detarmined by rotation.

Your directors feel that Shri Gupta's assaciation with the Board will be In the Interest of the Company. It s considered desirable that
the Company should continue lo avall his services as a difrector and recommend this resolution forapproval of the sharehalders.

Mane of your directors except Shri Gupla, whoss appointment i proposed herein, fsinterested in the proposed resolution
MemNo.8:

Shri Ghanshyam Hiralal Amin was inducted to the Board as an Addibional Directar of the Company w.e.f. 27.12.2011. In terms of
Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1358, Shr Amin holds office up o the date of the ensuing  31st Annuail General Meeting.

Born on 28.03.1947, Shn G. H. Amin is a Science graduate and holds & degree in Law. He is a practicing lawyer in Gujarat High
Courtforlast 38 years. He was former Chairman of Bar Council of Gujarat. Shri Amin hasimmensely coninbuled to the Cooperative
sector in Indla. He was the Chairman of The Ahmedabad District Central Co Op.Bank Ltd,, and Regional Chairman of The Cosmaos
Co.Op. Bank Lid. (Multi Stale Bank). He was the President of National Co-Operalive Union of India— New Delhl. He was a member
of the High power commitiee constituted to review and amend Multi State Co-operative Societies Acl He was also a mamber of High
power committee constituted by the Guarat Government for evaluation and amendment of the Gujarat State Co-op. Societies Act,
1961, He was formerly Courl member of Jawaharial Nehru university (JMNU) and former syndicate member of Gujarat University,
Ahmedabad. He has many awards o his name viz. Sardar Patsl inlemational award In cooperative management, fellcitation by
International Association of Educators for world peace by UNO and UNESCO. He is also a director on the Board of Ol India
Limlied. ShriAmin was inducted to NALCO Board w.e.f. 27 12.2011.

ShriAmin does not hold any shares in the Company.

The Company has recelved a notice in writing along with the preseribed deposit froma membaer of the Campany under Section 257 of
the Companies Adt, 1956, signifying his Inlention to propose the candidaturs of Shri Amin as Director of the Company, whose period
of office is llable to be determinad by rotation.

Your directors feel that Shr Amin's assoclation with the Board will be in the-intsrest of tha Company. Il s consigarsd desirable that the-
Company should continue to avail his services as a director and recommend this resolution for approval of the shareholders.

None of your directors except Shri Amin. whose apponiment is proposed herein, isinterested in the proposed resolution;

tem No. 10

Shrl N. R. Mohanty was inducted to the Board as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.l. 01.02.2012 In terms of Section 260 of

the Companies Act, 1856, Shri Mohanty holds office up ta the date of the ansuing - 318t Annual General Meeting.

Bornon 13.01,1957, Shr Mohanty graduated in B.Sc: Engg.(Hens)inMecharcal Engineanng from NIT, Rourkela in 1880 and was

adjudged as the "BEST GRADUATE" of Sambalpur University.. Joinad NALCO in December, 1288 afterworkinginLAT and BALCO

arid held various positions  before becoming Direclor (PAT) wel01.02 2012 He was  Instrumental | In conceiving designing &

developing & flest of WHEEL CRUST BREAKERS that entirely mpa-at:ad Russtan made Crust Sreaking Vehicles in BALCO
resulting in huge import savings. While working in Business Developmme: . of NALCO, ha iImmenssly contribited in preparation

of new vision and mission plan of NALCO. During his tenure, NALCO s il achieved 100% capacity ulilization and biagged 2nd
prize inAluminium sector for National Energy Consenvation mm-mﬁ;mm wer, Govl of India. He is a life member of
Indian institute of Metals, Fellow member of institute of Engineers nmmﬂrrhﬁ'nﬁ i Institute of Weiding.

Shri Mahanty holds 304 shares in the Company,

The Company has received a nolice in wilting along with ﬂlﬂpl‘ﬂﬁﬂihﬂdﬂn‘pﬁﬂiﬁhl ber af the Company under Saction EE"F:I'F
the Companies Act. 1956, signifying his intention to prapose the mﬁdﬁﬂ.ﬁ‘lﬂ anty as Director of the Company. whose
period of office s able to e determinead by rotation.

Your directors fesl that Shr Mohanty's association with the Board will be in the interest of the Company. It is considared desirable thal
the Company should continue to avall his services as adirector and recommetid this resolution for approval of the shareholders.

o -

£ - -
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tam No. 11 :

Shirl Arun Kumar was inductad to the Board as an Additional Director of the Company w.ed. 30.04 2012, In terms of Saction 260 of
the Companles Act, 1956, Shn Kumar holds office up to the date of the ensulng 315t Annual General Mesting.

Shri Arun Kumar has degrees in Mechanical and Elecirical Engineering (Equivalent degrees), He jalned Indian Administrative
Service in 1983, Prior lo that, he did his Special Class Railway Apprenbiceship at Jamalpur and had joinad the Indian Railway
Service of Mechanical Enginesrs in 1980. Al present, he is serving as Jolnt Secretary, Ministry of Mines, Governmenl of Indlia. He
brings with him vaned experence In administration, personnel, industries, mines and minerals, energy and power sectors. He was
Managlng Director of Hydrocarbon and Energy Limited, Assam and Principal Secretary (o the Govermnment of Assam, before [aining
Ministry of Mines. Hais alsoa director on the board of Mineral Exploration Corporation Lid.

Shrt Kumar does not hold any shares in the Company.

Tha Company has received a nolice inwriling aleng with the prescribed deposit froma member af the Company under Section 257 of
the Companies Act, 1956, signifying his intention to propese the candidature of Shri Kumar as Director of the Company, whosa penod
of office is llable to be determined by rotation.

Your directors feel that Shri Kumar's assaciation with the Board will be in the interest of the Company. It is considered desirable thal
the Company should continue o avall his services as a director and recommend this resolution for approval of the shargholders.

Nane of your directors except Shri Kurmar, whose appointment is proposad herein, is interested in the proposed resolution.
tem Ne. 12:

Shrt Qaiser Shamim was inducted 1o the Board as anAddibional Direclor of the Company w.e . 10.07 2012, In terms of Section 260 of
the Companies Act, 1858, Shr Shamim holds office up to the date of the ensuing 318t Annual General Meeting.

Born on 06.08.1851, Shrl Qalser Shamim did his MLA. In Econoimics and  LLB fram Lucknow Unlversity. He has also done M.5Sc. In
Flscal studies from the University of Bath, U K., Trade Policy Programme from Kennedy School of Government. Harvard University,
USA, Researchin Economics from Hitolsubashl Universily, Tokyo, Japanand Japanese Language Certificate Course from Osaka
University of Forelgn Studies, Osaka, Japan. He joined IRS in 1974 and has 37 years of varied  experience In the Govt. of India.
Buring his deputation as Joint Secretary to the Govemment of ndia, Ministry of Textiles between December, 2005 to February, 2008
he was looking after lextile exports. He regularly negotiated India’s textile related matters at the WTO, Geneva. He also led and
accompanied several delegations of the Ministry of Textiles and Ministry of Commerce to various countries including USA, Russia,

Japan, Switzerand, Gemany, Kazakhstan, Uzbekistan, Hongkong Turkey, Gresos, Egypl, UAE elc. He retired as Chief
Cemmissioner of Incorme Tax, Deihi, Shrl Shamim maseaannedspemallstnn matters ol corporate govemancoes having extensively
deait with the largest  public and private saclor corporations  of the country, Shri Shamim was indocted to NALCO Board as an
Independent Directorw.e f. 10.07.2012.

Shrl Shamim does not hald any shares In the Company,

The Company has received anotice inwriting along with the prescrbed deposit from a member of the Company under Section 2567 of

the Companies Acl, 1956, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Sh Shamim as Director of the Company, whose
period of office is linbls to be determined by rotation.

Your directars feel that Shri Shamim's association with the Baard will be in the Interast of the Company. L is considerad desirable thal
the Company should continue to avail his services as a director and recommend this resolution for approval of the sharehaolders.
Noneof your directors axcept Shri Shamim, whose appointment is proposed herein, is interested in the proposed resolution.
ItemNo.13:

Shri Sanjiv Baira was inducted to the Board as an Additional Director of the Comipany wee [ 10.07 2012, In terms of Section 260 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956, Shri Shamim holds office up tothe date of the ensuing 31st Annual General Meeting.

Borm on 17.089, 1950, Stri Sanjiv 8atra holds & B. Tech (Electrical degree} from IIT, New Daihi and MBA from Delhi University. He has

alzo done 8 nafﬂﬂmiﬁ:nunmmnnhﬂmmﬁmi trade from IFT. He has 40 years of work experience in public and privale sectors in
marketing, sirategic planning, business diversificalion, policy formulation for import and export of commodities, supply chain

management Whﬂhﬂﬂiﬂh& imipting trade related infrastructure, He last served MMTC Limited as CMD, He was instrumental
inleading transformation I:I'thfﬂirrrh an inlegrated canglomerale following public private partnership roule Ha |s also director on
the Board of Mational Commidity and DammlwaﬁEmhang&uf India (NCDEX), Mumbai.

Shri Batra does not hold any shares in the Company.

Tha Company has recslved anolice in wriling along with the prescribed deposil from a member of the Company under Section 257 of
the Companles Act, 1956, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Shri Batra as Director of the Company, whose period
of office is llable to be determined by rotation. - :

Your directtrs feal that Shri Batra's association wlwwﬂl bie it the interest of the Campany, It is considerad desirable that the

Company should continue 1o avail his sarvics _:Hr and recommand this resolution for approval of the shareholders.
Nene of youit directors except Shri Balra, whSs ap sentis propased hereln, is inlerested in the proposed resalution,
By arder of the Board
S
Place: Bhubaneswar (K. N. RAVINDRA)
Date: 14.07.2012 COMPANY SECRETARY

_— N

BREp— y



31" Annual Report 2011-12 - — W@ NAI.GDr

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment / appointment in the 31st
Annual General Meeting 14th August, 2012.
(In terms of Clause - 49 of the Listing Agreement)

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT (ORDINARY BUSINESS IN THE NOTICE)
1. Shri Ansuman Das

Father's Name Late Shi Sarat Chandra Das

Data of Birth 29.04.1955

Date af Appolntment 28,10.2009

Expertise in specific functional areas Machanical Enginear having vanead expenenca in domeshic salefexport of
alumina, metal and launching of rolled products, speciality alumina
products ete

Qualifications BE (Mech.), MBA from University of Hull, LLK.

List of outside Directorships held Nil

Member of Committees of the Board il

Member of Cammittees in ather Companies | NIl
2. Shri Ved Kumar Jain

Father's Name Shri Padam Saln Jain

Date al Birth 15.12.1953

Date of Appaintment 2103201

Expertise in specific functional areas Varied expenance In financlal mamagement
Qualifications B.5c. FCA BA LLA

List of outside Directorships held 1. Maytas Properties Lid.

2. |LAFS Engineering and Construction Company Lid.

3. PTC india Lid

4. PTC India Financial Services Ltd.

5, VJ Corporate Advisors Pyt Lid.

6. ICA| Accounting Research Foundation

_ 7. Ved Jain & Assoclates

Member of Cammittess of the Board Chairman - Audlt Commiltea

Member of Committess in other companies 1. Chairman - Audit Committes — Maylss Properties Lid.
2 Chalrman — Audt Committes - IL&FS Enginesring and
Caonstruction Company Lid,

Member — Audit Commitiee = PTC India Lid.

Member — Audit Committes — PTC India Financial
Services Lid.

Member — Sharsholders’ Gnevance Commilites —
IL&FS Engineering and Construction Company Lid.
Member — Shareholders’ Grevance Committes —
PTC India Ltd.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT (SPECIAL BUSINESS IN THE NOTICE)

3. Shri G P Joshi

th i i

Father's Name Shri Padmadutt doshi
Date of Birth 01.04.1955
Date of Appolntmeant 2909201 -
Expertise in specific functional areas Ratired |AS officer having vared experience In administration.
Qualifications Post Graduate in Physics & IAS
List of outside Directorships held 1. Hindustan Copper Lid.
2. Saraf Foods Lid. ,
3, Peaches & Plums Resorfs Pyl Lid.
Mamber of Committees of the Board Member - Audit Commities

Mamber of Committees in other companies i
4. Shri S S Khurana

Father’s Name Late Mohan Singh Khurana

Date of Birth 15051850 =

Datz of Appolntment 29082011 L. ..

Expertise in specific functional areas Retirad Chaimnan, Rallway Board and Ex-officio Principal Secretary,
Miristry of Railways, Govi. of India having wide  admirstrative,
‘manageal and technical experience while workingin fhe indian Raitways.

Qualifications BE (Mechanical), IT, Roorkes

List of outside Dirsctorships held ‘Managing Director - Indian Rallway Welfare Organtsation
Mamber of Committees of the Board M ' :
Member of Commitiees in other companies. | Nil

[ F——yr—
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5. Shri 55 Mahapatra

31" Annual Report 2011-12

Father's Name Shrl Nrusimha Prasad Mahapatra
Diate of Birth 20.12.1954
Date of Appointment 01.10.2011

Expertise n specific funclional araas

Mechanical Enginesr having varied expedsncein baller manufacturing
Industries and aluminlsm industries and rich experance in plant  and
process equipmint design 1o project execulion: and plant operalion.

Qualifications B.5o. (Engg.) Mechanical & PG Diploma in Materials Management., LLB
List of outside Directorships heid Ml
Member of Committees of the Board NIl
Mamber of Committess in othaer companias Ml
Shri Madhukar Gupta
Father's Namea ShnAnand Swarcop Gupta
Date of Birth 14.08.1948
Date of Appointmant 27122011
Expertise in specific functional areas Retirad IAS officer having vaned expenence in administration
Qualifications Post Graduate in Poliical Science B IAS
List of oltside Directorships heid Centannial Davelopment Advisory Servicas India Pyt Lid.
Member of Committees of the Board Mk
Member of Committees in other companies il
Shri Ghanashyam Hiralal Amin
Father's Name Shri Hiralal Aashabhai Amin
Date of Birth 28.03.1847
Date of Appointment 2712201
Experiise in specific functional areas Wide and rich expearience inthe fields of Law, Educallon and Co-operative
Managemeant
Qualifications B Sc LLB
List of autside Directorships heid OHl India Lmited
Member of Committees of the Board i o
Member of Commiltaes in other companies Chairman - Shareholders’ Grivance Committes - Qll India Limited
Shri N R Mohanty
Father's Name Late Kishor Charsn Mohanty
Diate of Birth 12.01.1957
Date of Appointmant 01.62.2012
Expertise in specific functional areas Mechanical Engineer having wide mange of exparence |n alumindurmindustry
Qualifications B.5c. Engg. (Hons.) Mechanical
List of outsida D held Nl
Mamhm‘ﬂl'ﬂnmlﬂﬂﬂ nlmaﬂmrd il
Mamtra' nn:nn'rr:iﬂsﬁin olher companias il
Father's Name Shii Jagdishwar Sharan
e e e
0 n 301
Expertise in specific functional asas 1AS officer having varied expenence in administration and industries
Qualifications - ME {Mech. Engg. ), BE (Electrical Engg.) and IAS
List of outside Direciorships haid Mineral Exploration Comporation L.
Meamber of Committeas of the Board Nii , ]
Member of Committeesin other companies Chalrman-Audit Commities - Mineral Exploration Corporation Lid.
. Shri Qaiser Shamim _
Falher's Nama Late Shri Syed Shamimul Hasan
Diate of Birth 05.06.185
Diate of Appointment 10.07 2012
Expentise in specific funclianal areas IRS officer wilh varied experence. Seasoned speciafst In
s of cotporate Governance.
Qualficatians ol mics),LLE from Lucknow University, M.Sc, In Fiscal studies
Irom the Univessity of Bath, UK. Trade Policy Programme from Kennedy
I ﬁ:rh:-:ﬂ Harvard University, USA, Research inEconomics
Hh:l'ﬁﬂl.lh-ﬂ'll University, Tokyo, Japan and Japanese Language
gate Course from Osaka Univarsity of Foreign Studies, Osaka,
— Jﬂam IRS
List of oulside Directorships held
‘of Commilttees of the Board H_II
Member of Committees in ather Companies Nl




Shri LN, Batra
17.04.1950
L M"Teﬁmwm mhmmmm bus|
Senior ness
diversification, s managemant and

ETEEH (Electrical), MBA
Nlul Mational Commodity and Derivatives Exchange af India (NCDEX)

m

' a;m t Committee in NALCO has also been assigned with the job of looking into the redressal of Sharehalders/investors’
m
2. Chairmanship/membership of the Audit Committee and the Shareholders' Grievance Cammittes have only been considered as
per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
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Dear Member,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has taken a "Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing paperiass
compliances by companies and has issusd Ciroular Nes. 1772011 daled April 21, 2011 and 182011 dated April 29, 2011. The
Circulars provide that a comparny will be in complianca with the provisions of Sections 53 and 219 of the Companies Acl, 1956, in
case documents like notices, annual report and all other communications are sent in elactronic mode to its mambers.

In view of the above, we request all the members to ba part of this Green Initiative. Members who are halding shares in efectronic
form may update their e-mail [ds with thedr respective DPs. Members who are holding shares in physical form may fill up the attached
“E-communicafion Registrabon Form® and send it back to the Company,

Please nole that all the documenis senl lo the mambers in the electronic form will also be uploaded in the website of the Company
www.nalcoindia.com. As a member of the company you are always enlitied 1o receive all such communications, free of cost, on a
requesl made lothe Company in this behalf,

Yours falthfully
For Mational Aluminfum Company Limited

9\,2 _'l....'"'w-
E
S Y

:

(K. N. Ravindra)
Campany Secretary

et 73) NALCO

National Aluminium Company Limited
(A Government of India Enlerprise)
Reqd. Office : NALCO Bhawan, Flot No. P/ Nayapalll, Bhubaneswar — 7561 061{0Odisha)

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Nationat Aluminium Company Limited
NALCO Bhawan,
P/, Mayapalll,
Bhubaneswar- 751 061
Dear Sirs, _

. RE: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance
IWe, agree fo recalve &l communication from National Aluminium Company Limited in electronic mode: Please register my
E-mail ID inyour records for sending communication through e-mail.
Registerad FolinNa,
FAN
Name of the 1st Registersd Holdsr
Name of the Joint Hoidar(s)

E-mall ID

- e

Data ‘

tmportant Note:

() lm'ﬂﬂhfﬂﬂnillmfnmmﬂ th&smnnﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁdmhn Formioinvestorservicei@nalcoindia.co.in

(il)  On registration, allthe communication fram e Compainy willbe sent tahe £-mall ID registered with the Company.

fiil) The members are requesled to ks 1!1&= pany nfarmed as and when there (s any change in the E-mail ID. Else, the
carmmunication wllih&!&gﬁnﬂrhﬁ. =-tmiall __'ﬁgkﬁﬁedmlhﬂmﬂm'npany The ‘E-communication Registration Form’ can
dﬁuhadmrnhmdm:ﬂmml = Company's webslte www.nalcoindia.com
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et 73\ NALCO

National Aluminium Company Limited
(A Government of India Enterprise)
d. Office : NALCO BEhawan, Plol No. P/, Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar - 751 0681({0disha)
yap

ATTENDANCE SLIP

31" Annual General Meeting 14" August, 2012 at 11.00 A.M.

Regd. FalioMo..........cccccevvvveee.. Clientld/Ban Ade ..o DRI No ofsharesheld ... ...

| certify thal | am & registered shareholder/proxy for the registered sharsholder of the Company and hereby record my
presence at the THIRTYFIRST ANMNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at NALCO Bhawan, Plot No. P/1, Nayapall,
Bhubaneswar - 751 061, on Tuesday), the 14" August, 2012,

Mamber's/Proxy's name in Block letlers Member's/Proxy's Signature

Mote: Pleass il this altendance slip and hand it over at the entranoe of the hall.

et 7A) NALCO

National Aluminium Company Limited
(A Government of India Emearprise)
Regd. Office : NALCO Bhawan, Plot No, P{1,Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar — 751 061(Od|sha)

Regd. FOlD NO.....civeiiccccniiniee ClHENEIABEN, AL ..ovviieiivnesssrrssere DP M ciresisne aenss IND- DT Shares hald ...

e e T e e e PR e = g Hsresedtt

5 in Ihe dislrict of .._............ being a member/members of the above named Company hereby appoinl

R . | RRRRRRTNTAREOSETERERORN | (O (ST {1 11T L S e e cor faillng  him/her

1 o GERERR B S et inthedistrictof e 85 my."nur proxy fovote for malus

on my.fnw behall &l the THIRTYFIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company lo be held on Tuesday, the
14thAugust, 2012 at 11.00A.M. and atany adjournment thereal. N 1

Sigredthis ...l day el 2012 |

Mote: This form in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the
Registerad Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencemant of the Mesting.

i —

'
[ |
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PARTICULARS UNITS 2011-12

Physical

Bauxita MT 5,002.626

Alumina Hydrata MT 1,687,000

Aluminium MT 413,088

Power [ Nat) nMU 6.200

Financial

Export Tumover ¥ In Crare 2,568

Nel Sales ?in Crore f,500

Profit Before Tax ? in Crore 1,180

Profit After Tax 2 in Crore BS0

Eaming Par Share T .30

Book \alue Par Share T 4546

Dividend ? Par Share 1.00

Registered office & Corporate office: CONTENTS

MALCO Bhawan o

P/, Nayapall Thaiyear of 8 glanos i

Bhubaneswar - 751 0681, Odisha Riractors’ Report o7

Tel.- 0674-2301985-59 Reporl on Corporate Govemnanoe 24

Fex: 0674-2300470 [ 2300580 [ 23006777 / 2300740 s A

Website: www. nalooindia. com Management Discussion & Analysis Report 43
Auditors' Repart 50
CEAG Comments 53

318t Annual General Meeting Annual Accounts 54

Tuesday, the 14th August, 2012 at 11:00 AM. Cash Flow Statement 56

at NALCO Bhawan, P/1, Nayapalil,

? . § years performance at a glance- s

Bhubaneswar - 751 061, Physical & Financlal

Offices and Customer Conlact Centres a8z
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ShriB.L.Bagra

Bornon 21.11,.1854, Shrl’ Bajrang Lal Bagra |z a Fellow member of institute of Chartared Accountants of India: He
has varled experience of over 35 years, spanning ovar Key sactors of Power, Seeds, Railways, consultancy and mining
at sanior ievels. inchiding as CFO of Botswana Rallways: from 15894 to 1998 and as Direclor (Finance) of RITES from
200010 2007. Hejoined NALCO a= Dimctor (Finanoe) on 2802 2007, He is also holding additional charge of the post of
Chairman-cum-Managing Director w.e . 27 02.2011.

The Company has achievad many midestones under his lsadarship. The 2nd phags expansion has been suscessfully
commissionad in-all tha units. Physical parformance has surpassed the previous records in all sagmants. NALCD
axpandaed iz wision from afuminum sector 10 Meiols and Enarg‘li'.r gaciors under Vislon 2020 framed undar his
leadership. Several growth projects have been takan up in hand in order to take the umover of the Company from
prasant level of ¥ 6300 crore 1o T 20,000 crone by 2020. The most significantachievemant in realizing the vision Is ficating of a Joint vanture
Company with NFCIL ‘NPCIL-NALCO Power Company Lid' with a proposed equity Investmeant of § 1885 crores by NALCO in the JVC. Tha JV
will genarate 1400MW nuckear power on ils commissioning, scheduled in 2015. Besides, guita a sizable amount is being invested in
renewabls powar projects viz_ wind powar and sokar powar

The Company 18 poised ta enter into an agraemant with Gujrat Minaral Devalopment Corporation Ltd. for setiing up an alurmina rafinecy In
Gujarat with 1 Million Tonne capacily, with a proposed Investment of T 4000 crores. NALCO has also parinared with the Odisha Govarnment by
fioatinga Company ramed Angul Aluminium Park Limited to set up-an Aluminium park in Angul with NALCO's stake of 49.5% in the Company.

Linder ciose guidance of Shn Bagra the company has been axplonng invastmant inaluminum sector al homa and overseas. Fresantly, two
prajects of 0.5 MTPA smalter plant and 1250 MW power plant each, with total estimatad project cost ol T 35,000 crore are baing explored, |n
Wastern Odisha and Indonasia respectively. The Company has baan successiul in egCuUring approval for baucite mining leases in Andhra
Pradazh recantly. MALTO has also becoma a membar of the consgrium o explore various mineraks inAfcanisian

Shri Bagra held addiional charge of Managing Director of Bharat Gold Mines Limited, & Gowemnmeni of India Enterprise, from Oct., 2008 till
May, 2012 and s prasently Direcior on the Board of IFICOL

ShriArun Kumar

ahr Arun Kumar has degrees in Mechanical and Elgctrical Enginesring {(eguivalent degress). He jolned Indian
Adrpinistrative Service in 1983, Prior to that, he did his Special Class Railway Apprenticeship at Jamalpur and had
joined the Indian Railway Service of Mechanical Engineers in 1980, At presant, he is serving as Joint-Secratary,
Ministry of Mines, Governmant af India. He brings with him varied experience in administration, personnel, indusirles,
mines and minarals, enargy and powar Eacions.  He was Managing Dirgctor of Hydrocarbon and Energy Limitad,
Assam and Principal Secratary to the Govermment of Assam, before joining Ministry of Mines. He s also a director on
theboard of Mineral Exploration Corporatian Lid.

Shri Joy Varghese

Bomon 17.08.1852, Shrl Joy Varghese holds M.5.W. with spacialization In Parsonnaéd managemant/|R. Ha aiso holds
MBA degres from Unpiversity of Ljublians, Slovenia. He also did his Advanced Managemeant Programme from
University of Ljublijana, Slovenia and Diploma of merit in Scienlific Research. He workad in different capacifies in HRM
fimid with Kudremukh lran Ore Co. Ltd: |, & cantral PSU far 30 yaars bafore joining NALCO in 2007,

Shri Varghese s overall m-chargs of HRM including Corporate Social Responstbility, Public Relstions, Law and
Administration. Unidet his abile inadership, quite a few significant achisyements viz_ introduction of NEFFAR scheme,
pay ravision of executives, wage sattlemants of non-mecutives, introduction of several 0D Interventions was rrade in
tha Company, He was alsa instrumantal in formation of NALCO Foundation for CSR aciivitles and implementation and
manitering of SA BODO standards. Recently, robust performance managemant system and Perfomance ratatad
payment lo execullves wate introduced as par DPE guidalines.

Shrl Varghese ig a guest facully in HRM fiald in many colleges and business schools of Bangalore and Bhubaneswar, He was President of
NIPM, Utkal University from 2008 1o 2010, acknowledgad as one of the best chapters, in the country. He was President of Retary Club of
Tarnpla City, Bhubanaswar dunpg 2010-11.

ShriAnsuman Das

Barn on 29.04 1955 Shn Ansuman Das graduated |n Mechanical Engineadng from NIT, Rourkela in the yoar 1978
Ha holds 3 MBA  degroa from Univarsity. of Hull, UK. Shrl Das started his career &8 a Mansgement trainga with
Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd. and has done a post graduationeourss in Aeronautical produaction in |IT.Channal. Shn
Das, joined National Alumminkem Company Lid. in 1882 |n its l'm'nnﬂvn days. He has ssrved in several capaciiies in
MALCO in its Technical Sarvices Departmant, a8 T!dlnh:.ul Dﬂhu‘ to GMD, Marketing and Material functions. As a
Technical Officar fo CMO, he has rich experiance of projact implementation. Shri Das was instrumental in formation of

various markeling | policias, siratagies both for domestic and overseas sales and In launching almaost all the value added 4
products of NALCO hoth Ih metals and chemical business. NALCO has achieved sevaral mifestonas and accolades

throlah the afforts putin by Shrl Daz and his tzam,

Shri Das headed the Materials departimant as its Exscullve Director for a brief period before taking over as Director{Commaercial ) NALCO In
Octobar, 2009, - '

_— &
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri 5.5. Mahapatra

Barmon 20.12.1554, Shrl 5.5, Mahapatra did his B.5c (Engg. ) in Machanical engingaring from UCE, Burla and post
graduate diploma in rmaleral management from MM, Bangalore: Ha atso holds law degree from Utkal Iniversity. Shi
Mahapaira started his caresr with Mis. Pressels Pyt Ltd, and subssquently joined NALCO in 1882, He became Director
(Production}w.of 01, 10.2011. He has 33 years of vared expariencs from boller manufacturing industries fo aluminium
industries.

Shri Mahapalra has contributed significantly towards technology up-gradation, indiganous develppments, proactivae
and predictive malntanance systems, tumaround in casting and rolling faciities. He has a commandable involvemant in
guiality, anvironment and occupational heaith managesment. Recerdification of OHSAS 18007 and 150 14001 in all four
units complated in tha financial year. Under his iaadership, the critical and lifaline project "Ash disposal o mings void
through iean slurry” of captive powear plant has made a remarkable progress, Company has immeansaly benafited from his Indefatigable efforts
in stabiiizing 2nd phase expanalon of afumina refinery unik

Shri Mahapatra is fellow of Instifution of Enginesrs {India) and life membar of Indian Institute of Metals. He has bean slecied as mamber lo the

prestigious Standing Committee of Mon-Ferrous Minerals & Indusiries of Federgtion of Indian Minera! Irdusines [FIM|). He is also member of
Board of Govemaors of National |nstituts of Foundry &Fongs Technology (NIFFT ), an aunonomous body of Govl, of India under Minlstry of HRD.

ShriN. R. Mohanty

Barn on 13.01.1957, Shri Mohanty  graduated in B.Sc. Engg.(Hons} in Mechanjcal Enginearing fram NIT, Rourkela in
1880 and was adjudged as the "BEST GRADUATE" of Sambaipur University.. Joined NALCO in December, 1086 aftar
working in LAT and ' BALCO and held varous positions  befors becoming Director (PET) w.ef01.02.2012 Ha was
instrumental In conceiving designing & developing a fiest of WHEEL CRUST BREAKERS ihal entirely replacad
Ruesian made Crust Breaking Vahicles in BALCO resulling in huge import savings. While working in Business
Davalopmant depl. of NALCO, he immansely contributad in preparafion of new vigion and mission ptan of NALCO.
Diuring histenure, MALCO smelter achievad 100% capaclly ulilization and bagped 2nd prize In Aluminium saclor
for Mational Energy  Consarvation Awards = from Ministry of Power, Govi. of India, He is a life meamber of Indian
Instifiite: of Mataks, Fellow membar of institute of Enginears and mamber of Indian Institute of Walding

ShriVed Kumar Jain

Borm on 15.12 1853, Shn Ved Kumar Jain 15 a rank holdar in both CA Intar and CA Final examination. A Triple Bachalors
Degres Halder, he compiatad his Bachelor of Science from Pun|ab University in 1973, After complating hiz Chartamnd
Accountancy in 1876, he did his Bachelors of Arts in Economics in 1978, He also complated his Bachelors of Law.in
1680. He waz alpcted 1o the central council of ICA] in 2004 and thersatter in 2007 and became Prasident of iCAl in
2008. He has more than three decades of experience infinance and taalion, A prolific writer, having command in Hind|,
English, French, Urdu-and Punjabl, has authored many books on Direct Taxes Ha is also holding directorship in many
othar Companies viz. Maytas Properiias Lid, PTC India Ltd, 'PTC India Financial Sarvicas Limited, ILAFS Enginearing
and Construction Company Lid,, VJ Corporate Advisors(P) Lid. and ICAl Accounting Research. Hewas inducted as an
indapendant dirgctoron NALCD Bgard weaf.21.03.2071.

ShriP.C. Sharma

Born on 31.03.18580, Shri PC. Sharma did M.Sc. in Chamistry from Guwakali University in 1872, Ha joinad Indian,
Administrative Sarvice in 1975, He discharged his duties |n various departments viz. Rural development, Agriculturns,
Industries, Tourism, Transport ofc_ in the state and Central Government. He ook aver charge &s Chief Secratory of
Assam in 2006 and suparannuated in 20'10. He played a significant role in controling milltancy in the state and played a
pivatal mle In bringing double digit growth in fhe state during this period. Hewas inducted as an In:lnpnpﬂunt directar o
NALCO Board w.a. 21.03.2011. He is also Director on the Board of Garden Reach Shipbuliders & Erlgheurs Lid. and
Brahmapuira Chamicals & Polymers Lid..

ShriGP Joshi

Barn 1955, has master's degres th Physics and Managament of Inlemational Developmant Projects and PG Diploma
in Financial Management He pinedthe Indlan Administrative Service In 1978 and took voluntary retirement in2008.
He has thirty years of exparignce in varous positions in the Central and Stalﬁ Gorammants of Manipue and E‘.ujam!.
He sarves asa direcior on the Boards of Saraf Foods Limited, Peachas & Flums Resoria Pyl Limlted and Hill;ﬂl,mn
Copper Limited. Ha has bean on the Board of NALCO sinca 15.08.2011
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Shris. 5. Khurana

Shn 5.5, Khurana (an alu mnus of [ITfRoorkaa) former Chairman of Ratway Board and &x-officio Principal Sacratary
Govermment of India has a blend of 38 years of strong Administralive, Corporate, Managément and Technical
Expariencea invanous key positions af Indian Railways. Apar from the Apex [Bvel position of Chairman Railway Board
in the Minstry of Railways_ ha hald thae othar important and crecial positons of Mamber Staff, Rallway Board and ex-
afficlo Secratary to Govemmant of India, Ganeral Managor of the Zonal Railways of Eas| Coast Hailway and the
| Eastarn Hallway, Divislonal Rallway Managar of the ADRA division of South Eastem Railway. Aparl from his, ha
- J discharged the onerous iasks of Chairman of the two important PSUs of the: Ministry of Rallways eg. IRCON

Intermational Lid_and the Dadicated Freight Corporation of India Lig [DFCCILY, Healso worked as the Chief Elacirical
Engmaaf of the Railway Electrification at Alahabad and Chiel Project Manager of Rallway Electrification at Ambala. Shrl Khurana has
undergona anAdvanced Leadarship programma from “Stern Businass School, New York, LI3A™ He has visited many counines on sludy tours
a8 wall as for Inspaction, Design & Developmant of Electric Locomotivas. Ha has a wide ranging expanancse and exposure to the Rallways in
these countries, Shri Khurana was inducted io NALCO Board of Direciors woa . 15082011

Shri Madhukar Gupta

Shrl Madhukar Gupta is a post graduats in Polificat Sclence. He joined the Indlan Administratlve Service in 1871, He
brings with him more than 38 years axpenence in (he Centryl Govemment and State Govarmments of Uttar Pradash
and Uttarakhand. He retired as Homa Secretary, Govarnment of india. The positions hatd by him prior (o that included
Sacretary in the MinistnesDepartments of Fedilizers and Youth Affairs and Sports, Additional Sacretary, Departmant of
Minas, Vica Chairman Delhi Davelopmant Authority, and Reglonsl Director (Middie East) Indian Investmant Carntre,
Abu Dhabi, in the Cantral Government, and Chiel Secretary, Govemmaent of Uttarakhand, and ofher important
positions. inciuding in the public sactor, in the State: Ha was a Feliow al tha Quesn Elizabeth Housa, Univarsity of
Oxford. and had earer obtained a Biploma in Rurai Davelepmeant Projects: Design and Appraisal from the lLO Cantre
at Turin, taly, Shit Gupla was inductad 0 NALCD Brarwed 27.12.2011

Shri G.H. Amin

Borm on 2B.03.1847, Bhri G. H. Amin is a Sciance graduate and holds a degree In Law. He is a practicing lawyar in
Gujarat High Court for last 3B years. Ha was former Chairman of Bar Councll of Gujarat. Shri Amin has iImmansely
contributed (o e Ennp.uraﬁvt sealor in Indie He was thie Chalman of Tha Ahmedabad District Gentral Co.Op.Bank
Lidi,, and Regional Chairman of The Cosmos Co.Op. Bank Lid. (Multi Stats Bank). He was the Presidant of National Co-
Operativia Union of Indis = New Dealhi. He was a member ofthe High power committes constifuted to review and armend
Muiiti Stats Co-operallyn Socigfies Acl. He was also amamber of High power commiities consfifuted by the  Gularat
Government foravalustion and amendment of the Gujarat. Stata Co-op. Socintiss Act, 19681, He was formarly Court
mzimber ol awahartal Nebr Grhearsity (JNU and formar syndicate membear of Gujarat University, Ahmadabad. Ha
has many awards io his name: viz, Sardar Palel iInderratoral award  in cooparative mamagemeant, feliciiation by Internatiomal Association of
Educators for workd peace by LNG and UNESCO. He isalso a director on the Board of Ol India Limited_ Shri Amin was inducted to NALCO
Boardw.ef 27122011,

Shri Qalser Shamim

Bom on 05061851, Shii Qaiser Shamim oid his M4 in Economiczand  LLB from Lucknow University. He has aiso done
M.St, in Fiscal siudies T the Unhmmltl_.r of Bath, LK. Trade Policy Prourammae from Kennady School of Gavammanl,
Harvard University, USA, Resaarch i Economics from Hitatsubash| Untvarsity, Tokyo. Japan and Japanese Language
Cestificate Course from Osaka University of Foreign Studies. Osaka, Japan. He joined IRS in 1874 and has 37 years of
vaned expenance in the Gowt. of India. Dunng his deputation as Joint Sacratary o the Govermment of Indla, Minisiry of
Teliles betwean Decamber, 2005 o Fabaiary, 2008 he wae Iooking after lexile exports. He regularly negofisted |ndia's
taxtife refated matters at the WTD, Geneva. He also bd and accompaniad saveral delegations of the Ministry of Teadilas
and Ministry of Commerce to various countries incloding USA. Russia, Japan, Switzedand, Germany, Kazakhstan, 5
Uzbakistan, Hongkong Turkey, Greace, Egypt, LUAE etc. Hae retired as Chisf Commissioner of Incoma Tax, Daftn. Shri - Shamim |s a seasoned
specialist on matters  of coporate  govemance having axtensively deall with the largest plblic and private sector corporations  of the country.
Shri Shamim was inducted to NALCO Board ssan indepandant Directorw.e . 10.07 2012,

Shri Sanjiv Batra

Bom on 17.09,1950, Shri Sanjv Batra holds a B.Tech (Elictrical) degree from T, New Delhi and MBA from Delhi
University. He has also dode a cerlification course on Intemational trada from IFT, He has 40 years of work experiance
in public and private sectors in rrmrhlﬂnm;lmmgm pianning, business diversification, poficy formutation forimport and
maport of commodities, supply chain managemant and logistics and promoting trade related infrastucture. He last
sarved MMTC Limited as CMD. He was  instrumental  In leading transformation  of MMTC into an integrated
conglomarate following publiie private partnarship route. He is-also director on the Board of National Commedity and

Darivatives Exchange of India (NCDEX), Mumbal: Shn  Baira was inducied o NALCO Board asan Independeni
Directorwa [ 10072012
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Yot will mmmmmwwwm man operating costof about ¥ 05 crors during the year unider report by petling &
favourable order from OERC 1o register Steam and Fower Plant at Damanjod] 88 a co-genaration unil thera by complying the
requiramants as an ohilgated entity under (he OERC (Renewable and co-generation purchase abligation and its compliance) Regliation
2010, Under Ihe regulgtion your Compaity has to consume 5% power from renewsble and co-gensration sources. out of ks lokal
consumption from captive sources. The 5% consumplion from renewsble and co-generation sources comprises of 3.7% from co-
genemmation sources, 1.2% from Non-Solar sources and 0.1% from Solar Sources. Tha obligation with refergnce o co-generation RPO
compliance for coming years will be met from our own co-genaration planl. However, despite above, full RPO could ol be met and T
B.01 erore had to be spant.on purchase ol RECs. With commassioning of Wind Power Plant in current year, such expendiiure is expected
tabe reduced.

Sales Parformance

You will be pleased (o know that as a proaclive approach for providing customized products to our customers, your Company has
introduced Chequerad Sheats, a new product inits sakas mix during the year,

Your Company achisved total sale of 4,15,9168 MT Aluminium metal during the year as agains! sale of 4,38,952 MT metal achisved in
preceding year: This included sales of 21,552 MT of Rolled Products, which was the highest ever surpassing the previous best of 20,152
MT achleved during the pravious year.

The Domestic sale of Chermicals {Alumina/Hydrate/Special AluminaSpecial Hydrate) was 49 844 MT, the highest ever surpassing the
previous best of 42,062 MT achisved in 2010-11, The Domestic Chemicats sale included 10,052 MT of speciality alumina, the highest
ever surpassing the previous best of 8 376 MT achieved during 2008-10 and 13,725 MT of alumina hydrate, also the tighest sver
surpassing tha previous best of 12,623 MT achieved during 2008-10,
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The sales break-up is os follows:

Linit 201112 2010-11
Export |
Alumina MT 792552 639,855
Alurninium ncluding MT GR,369 EEEEI-L‘:
Rolled Products '
Domgsti | i
Alumina & Hydrate MT 48 844 42 062 |
Zeolile -A MT 409 3,854 |
Aluminium T 7517 340,752
Total Metal Sale MT 415916 438,952
Total Chamicai Sals MT 842396 681,919
Finance

Desplle increase in the income from 6,410 crore duning 2010-11
to € 7,154 crore during 2011-12, the profit after tax has gone down
from T 1,069 crore (2010-11) bo T B50 cror (2011-12) due to
Increass in operating cost. . The operaling expensas were higher
by abowt ¥ 1,003 crore during the year over the previous year
mainly due to Increase in prices of various inpul malerdals, impact
of non-execulive pay revision and increase in valume of production
In Refinery. The details of financal performancs is given below:

_____ [Fincrore)

201112 2010-11

Income 7,154 6410

Expenses 5,956 4 BBE

Profit Before Tax (FBT) 1,798 1.524
Tax 348 455

ProfitAfter Tax (PAT) B5O 1,069

ol

S

i

et S

-z

———

8 ]
AN

Mational Aiayminum oy Limiei
A S i Wy ] b, g

Fom S T Lowe. P Lo, o

retent /AN NALCO

Cos! Break-up 2011-2012 (Tin er)
Oiher Expansas Raw Matarial
|48
Depraciation H—‘m.
21%
i Power & Fusl
Employee cost

Dividend and Appropriations

You will be happy o know that your Company paid an
internm Dividend for the year 2011-12 @ T 0.80 per share (18%) in
March, 2012, The Board of Directors of your Company have
recammended payment of final dividend @ ¥ 0.10 per share (2%)
making sggregate of T 1.00 per share (20% ) for the year 2011-12
as agains! T 2.50 per share [T 2 per pre-split and banus share of
T 10 each (20%) a2 interim dividend and ¥ 0.50 per post split snd
bonus share of T 5 each (10%) as final dividend] paid for the
pravious year 2010-11. Your Direclors have recommended a
lower rate of dividend keaping in view tha falling profit margins due

P

l'lf'. E’m;m ¢m‘| ¥ < N S A L B T —dirs "
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T 202,13,98.684/. 7
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Nalco Paya Re 262 Crore a2 Interim Dividend to Government of India, For the Financial Year 2011-12, the Company pard altogether Re 232 crore
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ta slow down of global economy affecting industrial growth and
alzo kesping In view the requirement of funds for the growth
projects undsr cansideration by your Company. The final dividend
will be paid after your approval in the Annual General Mesting,
Your Directors propose 1o transfer T 550 crore o Ganeral
Reserve Aocount from the profits of the year 2011-12 as against
770 crore transfemed in the previous year,

Presidential Directives

As per Presidential Directives, steps were taken for recrullment
of SC/ST candidates. Your Company also complied with tha
provisions of the Persons with Disabilities Act, 1995.

As on 31.03.2012, out of the total 7,705 employées (Including
trainees) on the mlls of your Company, thers were 1,240
(16.00%) SCs, 1,378 (18.88%) 5Ts, 776 (10.07%) OBCsand 77
(1.00% ) Persons with Disabllities. Every third employes in your
Company either belongs 1o SC or ST categony. The otal number
of lady employees in the organization as on that date was 355,

Industrial Relations

Human excellence and cordial Industrial relations continued fo
remain the core strangths of your Company during the year under
repart, The strong efhos of coliective excelience was bolsterad
during the year with the signing of 5th Long Term Wags Settlement
(LTWS) for non-executive employees of your Company covering a
panod of 10 years affective from (1.01. 2007, n a peaceful and
cordial atmosphere. Several measuras have been included In the
5th LTWS for controlling labour costs in yeur Company In the long
run, results of which are expected to be reallzed in due course,

The healthy industrial relations climate during the year helpad your
Company in sailing through thugh times on production front

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As & responsible corporats ctizen, NALCO has bean allocating
2% of s net profit for social sector activities — 1% through

Pariphery Developmant (PL) Programme regulated by the State

et /AN NALCO

Govemment and 1% through the company's CSR arm NALCO
Foundation, which was set up In July 2010, following the CSR
Guidelines for CPSEs issued by the Department of Publlc
Enterprises, Govt. of India. For the 2011-12 financiai year,
aitogather ¥ 21348 crore was ailotted for the purpose. As per palicy,
the unspent amount is not lapsabile at the end of the year

During the fiscal, 1,108 camps were organized through four
Mobile Health Units (MHUs) under the PD Programme, Ireating
50,838 patients with free medicines. NALCO Foundation also
started a new MHU, in collaboration with Wockhardt Foundation in
BDamanjodi sector from mid-Februany 2012

Allogether 76 projects were completed at Angul during 201112 ata
total cost of T 2.88 crora. Out of These, 42 projects were exected
diractly by the Company and rest 34 through district administration.

NALCO Foundation started 27 projects, mostly in the tribal-

dominatad Damanjodi sector, al a financial contribution of ¥ B.24
crore. During the fiscal, 10 projects have been compieted.

The emphasls was on providing drinking water through dug wells
as well a5 tube wells, providing medical facilittas through opesation
af Mobile Health Units, imparting lvelihood frainings, providing
appliances I physically challenged persons. renovation of
Infrastructure facliities etc.

Visit of Parliamentary Commitiess:

The follawing Pardiamentary Committees vislted your Company

and held discussians with Company management during the year

under report _

+  Department Relsted Parliamentary Committee on Industnes
on 30th June, 2011.

+ Third Sub-Committee of the Commiltes of Parliament on
Official Language on 30th September.2011.

+  Hindi Salshkar Samili of Ministry of Mines vistted Bengalun
Offic on 17th Ootabar, 2011,

+  Pardiamentary Consultative Committes of Ministry of Mines

Mo Fourdadion sigrs Mol wiih Matinga insliite of Socla! Scienscas, Karapid

Foundstion arid Bikash Uﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁhﬁqﬁmmm

Devaltpment
from the Maoist-irfiested u'.luagaﬁ o Damanoc for gually sdutstion
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discussed matiers related to your Company on 18th November,

2011.

»  Pariamentary Committee on Welfare of Scheduled Castes &
Scheduled Tribes on 20th January, 2012

«  Padiamentary Standing Committee on Coal & Steal on 25th
February, 2012.

Awnrds & Recognitions:

Your Directors are pleased lo Inform you that your Company
recaived the loliowing awards in vanous flelds dunng the year
2011-12:

= PSE Excellence Award 2011, in the Mahamsina and
Navratna category. for Corporate Social Responsibility &
Responsiveness, instifuted by the Department of Public
Entarprises, Govt. of India and Indian Chamber of Commeroe.

« Top Export Award of CAPEXIL, for oulstanding expor
parformance during 2010-11

« Best Exporters' Award from Direclorate of Export Pramiation
and Marketing, Govl. of Odisha lor oulstanding axport of
Alumina and Aluminium for the vear 2008-10.

Shid B.L Bagra, CMD. Naico racsivis National
Awisra-2071 from Shi Sushil Kumir Shinaa, Linion M of Poiwiar

* Prestigious National Energy Conservation Award for the
year 2011 from Ministry of Power for smelter plant st Angul.

= Three presfigious awards: “CEO with HR Orientation”, "HR
Leadarship Award” and “Organization with Innovative HR
Practices” at the Global HR Excellence Awards caremany
during World HRD -::mgm-m'iz

EXPANDED CAPACITIES

2nd Phass Expansion Projact

Yau will be pleased to know that with the commissianing of 4ih

Stream of Alumina Refinery during the year, the 2nd Phase

Expansion Project of your Company stands completed. The

details of earlier capacty and present capacity afler 2nd phase

expansion of your Company are asunder.

8L ProjectSegment  Capacity bafore 2 Capacity after 2
No. Phase Expansion Phase Expansion
1 Bausxite Mine 48 Lakh TRY BALEKATRY
2 AlminaRefinery 1575 Lakh TPY E‘!Lﬂéf‘_lTF‘r'

3 Aluminium Smefter  3.45 Lakh TPY 4.6Lakh TFY

4 Captive PowsrPlant. 960 MY 1200 MW

12
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ONGDING EXPANSION PROJECTS
1. Alumina Refinary- Upgradation Projoct

Capacity upgradation of 4th Stream of Alumina Refinery from 525
lakh TPY io 7.0 lakh TPY and thal of Bauxits Mines from 6.3 Milllen
TPY 1o 6.825 Million TPY a1 an estimated project cost of T 409
erare is in progress. Overall physical progress upto 81% has been
achieved. The project is scheduled to be commissionad during the
course of qurrent year.

2. Utkal - E Coal Block

Utkal - E Coal Block project 81 an estimated cost of T 337 .61 crore
(at May, 2011 price level) s In progress. It has a mineabla resarve
of around 67 49 min tons,

Almaost all statutory clearances have been racewved. Activities for
acquisition of Govt as well as private land and construction of
rehabilitation colony are at hand.

3. 3rd Phase Expansion Projoect

The Company has nitlated aclivities for 3rd phase brown field
expansion at exdsting facilities al Angul and Damanjodi, In Odisha
al an eslimated investment of T 7,500 crore.

The status of projects is asunder:
a) Amperage increase al Smeallor

Smelter pol lines operating at 180 KA for the last two and half
decades, have been aken o enhance currant i 220 KA, atan
outiay of T 900 crote and the capacity of plant will b enhanced
by 1.07 lskh MT, 1o 5.67 lakh MTPA. Preparation of Detailed
Project Report and Environmental Impact Assessmeant (ELA)
study isin progress.
b) S00MW power plantat CPP

The proposed S00MW power plant &t CPP will meet the power
raquiremant for the technology up-gradation of Smalter Pot ling
besides axport of surplus power 1o State grid. Project cost is
estimated at T 2,522 crare {August 2009 price level).

c) 5th stream at Alumina Refinery

Your Company has plans 1o add one more stream o existing
four streams In Alumina Refinery. The capadty of the stream
will B2 1 milllion tones perannum and investment will be 4,000
crore approximately. Activibes for preparation of DFR are in
Fand.

MNaw Calpiner Plant at MER' Comyles
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4. 50 MW Wind Power Planl

I line with the vision of the Company and in pursull of endeavor to
hamess the potential in renewable energy sources, your Board
has approved the investment of T 274 crore for sathing up 50 MW
Wind Power Plant in Andhra Pradesh. Manufacturing of all
equipments has bean completed. Site storage yard canstruction is
also completed and all materials have reached the site, Stage - Il
Forest Clearance for the project |s being pursusd 'with Ministry of
Enviranment & Forasts for commissioning of the plant.

) - = -
Shet Dinsha J Patel Unlon Mines Minisfar

wEia 97, 500 arove MPCIL-MALEO JV Project in Gujigral,
&. Nuclear Power Plamt in Joint Venture

Your Company has anferad into joint venture with Muclear Fower
Corporation of India Lid. for setting up.of 1400MW nudlear power
plant in Guiaral at an estimated cost of ¥ 11,450 crare. Your
Company’s present equity share s 268% and the same would be
increased [0 49% after approval of the Govl. of India.

ol
[}
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Mol PERFORMANCE

Your Company 5 likely o be rated "Very Good under
Memarandum ol Understanding (Mall), signed by the Company
with tha Government of India for the Firancial Year 2011-12,
based on achievement of financial results as well as other
parameters laid down by the Depariment of Public Enterprises
(DPE), Govt of India for evaluation of performance of the
Compary,

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company continued (o pay spacial attention for propagation
of Hindl ini the: Company.

Yau will be pleased 1o know that 27 Employess of your Company
passed 'Praveen’ Examination and 49 employess passed
Pragya’ Examinafion heid in the month of May and November,
2011 under Hindl Teaching Scheme of Govl of India, Your
Company cbserved Hindi Day, Hindl week and Hindi fortnight and
organisad . Hindl Kawi Sammelan. Several compebbons ware
organised amongst Hindi speaking and Non-Hindl speaking
employess during Hindi Week celebrations at all the units of the
Company. Thees Hindl Warkshops were organised during the

year for those employees who have acquired working knowledge
in Hindi after passing Praveen and Pragya Examinations. The
Hendi version of NALCO Website has been launched as a part of
your Company's efforts for promaoling Rajbhasta.  Official
comespondences were also made in Hindi during the year under
report @s per the norms of the Officlal Language Implementation
Palicy of Gowl of India. “THE PARICHAYA', Quarerly House
Joumnal of your Company was publishad in Hindi ragularly.

VIGILANCE

The Miglance set up exists in the Company at its three siles
namaly Smelter & Power Complex;, Mines & Refinary Complex
and Corparats Office. Broadly, Vigilancs Department activities in

o pfvpsical and frianclal farpeds for 2012-13

13
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the Company consist of carrying oul vanous checksfinspections
such as surprise checks, sample tests, regular inspections, CTE
type Intensive examination of works ( coniracls etc. under
praventive vigilance drive. Vigilance Depariment often acts a5 an
aid ard assistancs o the management in detecting corruplion that
may cresp in innocucusly during varous transactons in the
organization. To reduce chances of comuption, the Company has
been using technology in the formof  e-lendering, e-payments, &-
auction sle. Based on the vigllance advice, the Purchase Manual
of your Company was revised during the year Lunder report.

Faor creating awareness amidst employees, Viglance Awargness
Week was celebraied from 31.10.2011 to 05112011 &l all the
units and regional offices of your Company and programmes
ke seminars, stocution competitions among school and college
students were organizad in Hindi, Onya and English languages. 14
training progmmmes were organized &l diferen! locations of the
organization for sensiizing employess on the evil effects of
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO.

The particulars relating fo Conservation of Energy, Technology
Ahsarplion, Forelgn Exchange Eamings and Outgo, as requlred to
be disclosed under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956
read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particuiars in the Report of
Baard of Directors) Rules, 1988 are given in the Annexure-l to this
report.

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES

MNone of the employees of your Company was in recept of
remuneration of T & lakh per manth or T 80 lakh per annum as
prescribed under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956,
read with the Companies (Particulara of Employeesa) Rules, 1975
as amended, durng the year under repart

LISTING INSTOCK EXCHANGE & PAYMENT OF LISTING FEES

Tha equity shares of your Company continued to be listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbeai (ESE) and Nationai
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The listing fee for the year
2011-12 was paid to thesa Stock Exchanges on lime

PAYMENT OF ANNUAL CUSTODIAL FEES TO DEPOSITORIES

Ag per SEB| gukdelines, your Company's in-house Share Reglsiry
has established direct elechonlc connectivity with both the
Deposttories, NSDL and CDSL, for providing the facilly o is
shareholders for holding the shares in electronic made.  Annual
custodial feas as well as connectivity fees for the year 2011-12
were paid 1o both the Deposilones on time.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Fursuant to the provisions of Section 217284 of the Companies
Act, 1956, Directors of your Company hereby confinm :

that in the preparabion of the annual accounts, the applicable
sccounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation refating to matenal departures;

thal the direclors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistantly and made judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudem so as 1o give a true and fair
view of the state of affalrs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that pariod;
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thast the directors have taken proper and sufficsent care for the
maintenance of adequale accounting recards in accordance
with the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding
the assats of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other regularites and

that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concerm basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on Comporate Govermnance as per SEBI guidelines,
Stock Exchange listing requirements and DPE guidelines is
placed at Annexurs-l| to this reportl. Like previous years, a5 a parl
of good Corporate Governance practice, your Company
valurtarily got the Secretarial Audil carrfed out for the year 2011-
12 aiso and the report of the Secretarial Auditors Is placed at
Annexure-1l 1o this reparl.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion & Analysis report 5 placed at
Annexura-N 1o this report.

C&AGCOMMENTS

Comments of the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India (C & AG)
under Saection 61H4) of the Companies Act, 1956 on the

Acoounts of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2012 are
enclosed.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company reither accepled nor renawed any public deposits
during the year 2011-12.

AUDITORS

The following auditing firns were appolitad 1o be the auditors of
your Company for the financial year 2011-12;

8) Statulory Auditors . Ma C K Prusly & Associates and
MWs Agasti & Associates.
by Cost Auditors - M/s 5. Dhal & Co.
c) Sacretaral Auditors -1 Mis Sunita Mohanty & Assaoiates.
d)  Internal Auditors : Mg B.N. Mishra & Cao_,
/s MKPS & Associstes and
Mis Patra & Ca.
DIRECTORS

The followang changas took place in the Board of Directors of your
Company sitice the last report :

Appointrnenl:

Shri B L Bagra, Direclor{Finance) continued to hold the

additional chamge of the post of CMD of your Company In
addition to his present assignment wee-[. 27.02.2011.

Shri G P Joshi and Shri S S Khurana were appointed as
Independent Directors with effect from 15092011,

Shri § S Mahapatra was appointed ‘as Director
(Productionjwith effect from 01.10.2011

Shri Madhuker Gupta and Shri G H Amin were appointed as
Independent Directars with effect from 27,12 2011

Shri M R Mohanty was appointed as Direclor(Projects &
Technical) with effect from 01.02.2012.

L]
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«ShriArun Kumar, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Mines, Govt. of india
was appointed as a Part Time Official Director w.et
J0.042M2

Shri Qalser Shamim and Shn Sanjiv Batra were appointed as
Independent Direotors with effect from 10.07 2012,

Cessation:

Shri S K Nayak, Joinl Secretary, Ministry of Mines, Gowt. of
India ceased to be a Part-tme Officiat Director on the Board of
your Company w.e.l 05.08.2011.

Shnt AHEIHmﬂIHreﬁtnr{Fmdunﬂm} ceased to be a Director
af the Company wel 30,09.2011 an attaining the age of
superannuation,

Shri P K Padhi, Director {Projects & Technical) ceased tobe a
Director of the Company w.ef 31.01.2012 on attaining the
age of superannuation,

Shn S K Snvastava, Spl. Sacratary, Ministry of Mines, Govt. of
India ceasead to be a Par-time Official Director on the Board of
your Company w.ef 31,05.2012

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the
valuable services rendered by Shr S K Nayak, Shri A K Sharma,
Shri P K Padhi and Shri S K Srivastava during their tenure on the
Baard of your Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Direclors gratefully ackpowledae the valuable guldance
and co-oparation recelved from the Ministry of Mines and other
MinstiesTepartments of the Govemment of India and the
support repeived from the Government of Odisha, Mahanadi Coal
fields, Indian Railways and other Govermment agencies

-
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Your Directors express their sincera thanks 1o the Compirodler and
Auditor General of Indig; the Principal Director of Commercial
Audit & Ex-officio Member, Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost
Auditors, Secretarial Auditors, Intemal Audilors, Bankers and JV
Pariners for the co-operalion extended and services provided by
them.

Your Directors also place on record their gratiiude to the
shareholders of the Company for the confidence repoased by them
inthe Management of the Company.

Your Directors place on record thair appreciation for the continbied
support and co-operation recelved from varous domestic and
intamational customers, vendors, salicilors, busingss associaias,
Trade Unions and the Officers’ Associations duning the year under
report and also look forward for continuance of such  mutually
supportive relationship in future as well.

Last but nol the leasL your Directors express thelr appraciation to
the untiring efforts put-in by all the officerss and employees al
various levels and their support over the years which has enabled
yolr Company to achieve the presant position and hope that with
such continued support, your Campany will grow from strength 1o
strength and would be able (o expand Its area of activities, scale
greater heights of success and confribute positively for better
stakeholders' delight.

For and on behat! of Board of Direclors
s
(B.L Bagra)
Chalman-cum-Managing Director

Ftace; Bhubaneswar
Date; 14.07 2012

Guava & acacia plantation an reclaimed land at bauxite minoes, damanjodi
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Annexure-|
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 217(1)(e)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT,1956 AND RULES MADE THEREUNDER

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Various energy conservation maasures that have been adopted for optimal utifization of energy resources in different units of the
Company during the yaar 2011-12 are as undet:

Captive Powar Plant

1. On-line Monitoring of high energy drains: In order lo monilor MAL valve passing hermo-couple attachments have been
installed In Unités and #5. In uniths the temperatura data has been hooked up-ta DCS. In UnittS cable laying has been over.

2. Installation of energy efficient lighting products: During the year about 200 nos: of T-5 fluorescant fitllngs and 500 electronic
ballasts have been installed rasulling in a saving of 23,725 KWh of electricity perannum.

3. Installation of Energy meters for monitoring and control of area-wise consumption: Enargy meters have been inslalled in
RCPH, New Bunker MCC, Ash Pond, Intake pump house. Thiswill help in building energy consumption data inventory lor these
important areas for analysis and cortral.

Ordaer has been placed for two nos. of Intelligent power Controllers for use in Coal convayors having the facility to control
the power drawn by the coal conveyor drives to the optimumievet, thersby saving around 20% energy.

Online condanser cleaning system: System installed in unit #6 and by March'12 another sel shall be installed in Unit #5,
APH basket has been replaced In two units in this year, Lein Unit #1 and #6.
Replacamant of soft touch redial seals has been camied outin three unilsinthis year, Le Untis 81, #6, #8.

Energy efficientfan blade: Two setsol FRP blades have been procured far Unité# 1 and #8 coaling towers. Installabon in Unithta
has been In progress.

8. High Efficiency PAfan motors (S00KW) have bean procured for B4 units: Installabion in Unid#6 is completed during the year .

10. Seven nos. of LT energy efficient motors ranging rom 37KW to 160KW have been procured for replacement ol existing
damaged motors.

11. Energy Audit: The order has been placed for enargy audil in unith? and #8.The work in Unit#Y shall start shorlly. Whereas the
wark in Unit#8 shali be delayed as therotor is under repair at BHEL, Hyderabad shop

Smalter Plant

1. Reduction of DC energy consumption in Pot Line-lll achieved by control of bath drop with ALPSYS advanced regulation
system, reducing anodic problems, optimal alurmina control & use of graphitised cathode black.

= Annual saving of electrical energy is 1,09,88.275 KWH.
* Financlal benefits for the yearare T 316.40 Lakhs {33 2 88 per KWH.

2. Reduction of DC energy consumption in Pot Line-IV achieved by reduction In sieam beam drop. optirmising metal inventory,
regulating FTP fume suction, proper anode setting, control of bath drop with ALPSY'S gdvanced requiahion system; reducing
anodic prablems, low voltage start up & optimal alumina control.

= Annual saving of electrical energy is 7, 37,828 KWH.
« Financial benefits for the yearare T21.24 Lakhs @ T2.88 per KWH.

3. Incorporation of magnetic resonator in HFO lines of Wire rod mill furnaces to achigve better fuel efficiency Magnatic
resonators have been fitted in Wire Rod Mill-ll fumaces 7 & B. Installstion of Magnetic Resonator has anhanced smooth flow of

HFO through the bumers due to turbulence of Hydrocarbon Atorms of HEQ arising outol resonance effect of permanent magnet.
This has resulted in proper atomraation & combustion in the fumace,

= Annuatsaving of Thermal Energy HFCHE 26 .98 KL
*  Financial benefits for the yearare 9.70 Lakha @ 735964 per KL
4. Automatic switching off of FTAlights during idle time in Anode Baking Furnace-2:
The idle time of the crane has been sensed by 2 program nuﬂﬂﬂaﬁ!h‘jﬁ PLC and used for switching off the crane lights.
+ Annuatsaving of electrical energy is 11, 563 KWH. f
+  Financial benefits for the yearare 70.33 Lakhs @ ¥2.88 per KWH.
5 Autoshutdown of downstraam conveyors of Claaning Station durmgﬂlﬁmlhﬁmlng station of Anode Baking Fumace-2:

Necessary modification in PLC has been incorporated in the cleaning system of ABF-2 for stopping the downstraam conveyors
during ldke time,

« Annual saving of electrical energy is 34,296 KWH.
«  Financial benefits for the year are < 0.98 Lakhs @ T 2,88 par KWHL

g
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Alumina Refinery Plant

1.

2

Installation of varable frequency drive in makeup water pumps in Bailer-4. This has resulted in electnical energy saving to the
tune of 70 KW.

Installation of vanable frequency drive in PH-3 Green Liguor Pump resulting saving in electrical anergy to the tuna af
200 25 KW,

Installgtion of variable frequency drive In Digestion and Dilution Pumps. This has resulted in electrical enemgy savings to the une
of 15-20 KW.

Dueto proper coal blending {Imported coal with Raw Coal) by suitable modification (with introduction of VFD in respective vibro-
feader), steam requirament for alf the 04 phases is now baing mat through operation of 03 boders / 06 Coal Mills since mid-
February'12. This Is resulling in Electrical energy savings of approx. 30-35 MWH perday.

Ceramic: grinding media was used in Boider #1/ Mill#1 on trial basis. Performance of the mill has been quite encodraging since
there s saving of almost 250 KW of electnoal energy as compared to other millls:

Mires

B oo

Replacement of PLC system is being dora in which modified programs etc. shail be contributing far higher productivity of single
15 KMs long conveyor belt drive systemns, which s a major load in mining units.

The streel light of Mines have been planned o be replaced with Sclar Lights. PO, has been placed for 10 sefs of solar strest light
on 14.12.11. There shall be saving of 8760 KWH perannum.

5 Mos remote secunty walch lower for VHF system has been laken up for praviding solar powsred supply.

Use of LED recess type luminaras to replace 4 X 20 W conventional T8 fitting In administrative buillding false celling areas & 2 X
40 W T8 tube fittings with LED strip light has been proposed for indoor office bullding. 25 nos. strip lights & 30 nos. of recess
fittings). Savings shall be 15,768 KWH.

Comprehensive metering and energy monitoring and analysis systems is procured and Installed to measurs the energy
consumption in diferent areas.
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1.
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The streel light of Mines have been planned o be replaced with Sclar Lights. PO, has been placed for 10 sefs of solar strest light
on 14.12.11. There shall be saving of 8760 KWH perannum.

5 Mos remote secunty walch lower for VHF system has been laken up for praviding solar powsred supply.

Use of LED recess type luminaras to replace 4 X 20 W conventional T8 fitting In administrative buillding false celling areas & 2 X
40 W T8 tube fittings with LED strip light has been proposed for indoor office bullding. 25 nos. strip lights & 30 nos. of recess
fittings). Savings shall be 15,768 KWH.

Comprehensive metering and energy monitoring and analysis systems is procured and Installed to measurs the energy
consumption in diferent areas.
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FORM - A
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

A. Power and Fuel Consumption:

CAPTIVE POWER PLANT ALUMINA REFINERY

‘Current ysar Provious yaar Cummentyaar Pravious Year
201112 2010-11 2011-12: 2010-11
1. Electricity
{a) Purchazed from GRIDCO
Unit (Milion BE¥WH) 138362 121.685 66.103 51776
Total amount (T iniakh) 9.332.89 8.518.61 4,281.32. 2770.02
RataUnit (T /KWH) 6.70: 5.36 G.48 5.36
(b} Own Genoralion
i}  Through Disssl Generalor NA NA NA MA
Linit
Linit par Lir. of tHesal oll Cost/LUnit
I}y Through Steam Turblne/ Ganaralor
Units (Grogs WMillion KWH 6,983.33 7.435.56 365.038 349.412
Units per litre of fual oil/gas 284,40 325.84 = ML
Cost/Unlis (T IKWH) 282 2.31 - -
2. Coal(§pacify quality & whero unad)
(Quality Grade- FEG) Used for own
genaration of Elactricity and Steam.
Quantity (Tonnes) 5,622,764 5.818 466 1,105,716 1,113,838
Total cost (T in lakh) 93,857.86 82.076:17 23,312.580 17,447 51
Avarags rate (T /Tonna) 1.669.25 1.387.25 2,108.38 156620

Captive Power Plant Alumina Refinery Smelter Plant
Currentyear Previousyear Currentyear Previousyear Currentyear Previous Year

201112 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11 201112 2010-11
1. Fumnace Ol
Cuantily (KLY 24,555 22 8240 144,722 131.786 32187 33,203
Total Amount (T in lakh) 0. T04.06 T13B.67T 53,155.08 4512783 11,.606.88 B B5265
Avarogerate (T Tonna) 19,520 31,283 36,729 26,655 36,004 26662
4. Others/internal genaration NA NA NA NA NA NA
Cuantiby
Total Cost
Rata/Linit
B. Consumption per unit of production
Products (with datalls) Unit Standards Currantyear  Provious Year
(ifany) 201142 2010-11
1.  Alumina
(a) Powar [KsH/MT) 335 341.68 340
(o) Fuelod for calcination [LJIM[} - TE.95 T840
{c} Coalforsteam (Kg/MT) % 652 711
(d) Oilforsteam (LT 4 8.73 a.04
2. Aluminlum
a) AC. Power (Kwh/MT) 14,800 14,801 14,636
b} FuelOi (LT an 7 75
c) Others ' - - - -
Al
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FORM - B
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)
1. Specificareas inwhich R&D activities carried out by the Company are:
(A} In-house R&D activities
Alumina Piant
=  Studies lo establish the affect of fine seed addition on granulometry and o develop iLas a ool 1o control granwlomaetry,
«  Siudies to astablish solubility of Cal) from different sources of Limsa,
#  Studies ralated to uze of CAIS ag filler aid,
«  Siudies o astablish impact of over focoulation In settler cvarflow
« Commarciatization of high temparature razin devaloped in-houss.
* Implrity identification and satt removal studies starting with V.0,
= |nstailation of heating bundias in pre desiication tank
*  Prepgaration of Low Alpha Special slumina for ceramic usea.
= Study onimpact of surface mined Bauxits on process

= taboratory scale studiss were camed out along with the suppliars of vanous flocculants for use in High Rate thickeners and Desp
conewashers of new stream.

Smualtor Plant
* Davelopment of chequorod shizelas o new varlety of rollad product.
«  Deavelopimen! of a process for production of High puﬂty matal {HP-2 grade ) first fime in beo pots of Polling-1Y.
* Banch scale studias an impact of bull guaniity & quaiity on anode quality.
= Sixsigma praject on reduction of iron in anode complated successfully,
*  Charactarization of baked anodes for procesg monilonng.

*  Meatalingraphic studles of cast products & tibor rods, inclusion a'nalﬁ.r?._l_s of modten aluminiurn matal ara baing carrisd oul regulary for
product quality improvamant.

* Fualoll saving by usa of magnetic resonaton in cast housa fumaca.
* Pots started with alternate supply of cathode blocks, reprocessad rejected pasta & indigonously developad ramming paste are baing
maonitored for their parformances.
= Slatcotting machine for anodes commissioned in carban plant. Slotted anodes are baing used in pot line-1 & 11,
* BHanch scale studiss wers carned out on Impact of spent pot lining carbon an anode quality.
= Banch scale studies amn confinuing on effect of high softaning point pitch on anoda quality,
» Trialsars continuing with nonwetting castabla in tapping ladias,
* Maltlossis baing manitored In cast housa furnaces.
B. Coilaborative RED nctivitins

* Infra Red Thermography studies and Estimation of Scaling Height in precipitators at Refinary - collaborative project with JNARDDE,
Hﬂgpur.

ment of high spesd extrusion alltys for Indian Industries in collaboration with JNARDDC, Nagpur.
risation wmwmammmiﬁamp CastAluminium Alloys at NALCO RPLI In collaboration with JNARDDC,

Hagpumm

» Aprmcessforpreparaton of fermcalum from low grade aluminium doas hasbean developed in collaboration with JNARDDC, Nagpur,

» Development of glazedies andfoam basad fight weight aggregates from Red Mud in collsbomtion with INARDDC, Nagpur.

*  Process for manufachuing cemmic files from Fly ash in collaboration with 1T, Kharagpur,

= Destructon of cyanide from SPL and recovery of valuahles incollaboration with JNARDDC, Nagpor.

«  Devalopment of liquidus temps @il sensor in collaboration with JINARDDC, Nagpur.

*  Dovalopment of tools & tachnigues farmeasuemant of PFC emisslonsin collaboration with JNARDDC, Nagpur.
C. Patanting and Commarcialization = B

Thrusthas bean laid on palenting of procas
So far 21 patants have bean sant for
il e amgsaruhuinghuldtn

i __fu'ﬂ'ﬂ'nmmm

owidevedaped inthe Company either through in-house or collaborative R&D effors:
ch incllide 4 nos, of patents filed in the current Mnandal yasr. Boand level technalogy
RAD activities of the Company induding technological up-gradation and benefits
pessand produdtivity,

ouss & collaborative)

" a,mrhﬂanm*ﬂ'm control product quality in terms of Granulometry and soda
! #ﬁﬁtyn‘ld hencs production.
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* Establish the affect of varlous sources of lime with regard (o its guality,

*  Tests u=ing flocculants show improvemant b fifration rate with owver focculkation. A plant scala rial shall be Baken up o extabiish
iHe s,

= Usaofthe high temparalure resin will result in hoge savings in make-up watsr consumplion in Boders and snergy consumplion
. Impu:fty'cnn:trﬂ and segregation of sall s value added by-product and alsa raduction In ime consumad for causticisation.

= Eliminallon of sodic condensate dilution In procees liquor, thus saving in steam and henoe enargy required for evaporation.

= Usaof surface mined bauxdts will reduca, if not fully eliminats the use of explosives in mining of Bauxite.

. .H.ppm:im-a!&l}r 240 MT chequersed sheets have been produced at Ralling Plant uplo Dec'11 & revenue éamed s approximataly
T 2crores.

* Process know-how developed for production of hegh punty matal (HP-2 grade .

* Studies onimpact of butt guantity & qualily on anode guality will halp in improving anods quality:

=  Raduchon of iron in anode will reduca sieal shots oonsumption by § 60 lakhs parannum & improve anode guality and aluminium metaf
gty

*  Useofsiotted anode will reduca OC anargy consumplion

* |mplamantation ol Fighar grain to sand ratio In GAPZ2 Ha2 resultad in Improvement of anode density by .005- 01 pm/cc along with
consistancy inanoda quality.

= Sludies conducied In anode banch scala plant and reguiar characterizations of anodes have helped in process and anoda quality
improvamants. Baking level was increased in ABF 1 and thera is improvameant in ralated proparties

* Inclusionanalysisand metalicgraphic siudes have helped to improve product quality and reduce customer complalnis,

*  Usa of magnetlc resonators in WRM2 furnace has resulted in savings of 0. 7T65LT /T in specific oll consumptlon amounting o financial
benafitof T9.8lakh in the year 201112,

=  Process for prégaration of ferc alum from Il_:n.l.r grada aluminium drozs is being considersd for commencialization

* Precess: for production of construction bricks and artificial ceramie stone chipe from md mud i being considered for
commercialization.

* Prooessior praparation of ceramic tiles from fly ash is expiored for piiot scala study for its commerciatization.
3. Foture pian of actlon and new projecis
= Satting up of aworld class Ressarch & Technology Contre at Bhubaneswar with naw Vision and Mission statad as undar :
Vision

To be a8 world class, stala of the an research and development cantra in the feld of Bauxite, Alumina, Aluminum, Down stream
products, Power, waste utilisation and allind areas, prograssivaly,

Mission

* Creation of facilities at NALCO Research & Technology Centra (NRTC) and at sites to davelop and strengthen techinological expartise
artaining to Bauxite Mining, Alumina Refning, Aluminum Smalting for improvement of efficiency. reducton of cost in vanous unils
nohuding CPP in aszodiation with site H&D,

* Tocontinuously work on dovelopment of new raw materials; products; improve quality, waste utiization Enﬁanaiﬂmal Innovaiion.
» To provide confinsoustechnical assistance to both M&R and S&P complex in aasociatlon with sis RAD.

* Commercishsation of construction brcka from Red mud and Fly ash based caramic fies:

« |mplementation of Bayer process Simulation package for botter process control and redoction in m:f;rndmﬂm
* Useof CAlS as filter aid in Kally filration 1o improva filtration.

* Hpachon kinefica study of Digesticen’ Desilication for opiimizing (he procEss pammelsrs.

= Reachon kinefics study of precipitation for improving prodocivity with minimal impuniy ccclushon:

= Industial implementation of medium pressune digestion Tor batier extraction of alumina and productivity.

* Industrial implemantation of atmospheric double digestion for raducing raw matonal consumptions.

= Sludies related to Cal incorporation in product.

* Raoaction kinatics study for optimizing the process parametars.

« Raoaction kinatics study of precipitation for improving productivity with minimal impurity occlusion.

* Industrial implemantation of medium pressure digastion for better axiraction of alumina and produativity.

*  Industrial implemantation of atmospharic double digesticn for rad malteral consumplions.
=  Plant level trials by blending of different types of cokes. . -

= Trial with indigenous Tepid ramming pasie in pots.

* Measures lo reduca mallloss in cast houss fumaces. 1

= Lamge scale trials with magnetic rasonator for fued oll saving.

* Trial with non-wetiing castable ining of tapping ladies.

*  Haduction afiron content in anodes.

»  Plant scale iral with spent pot lining carbon matesial in anode mairix,
»  Plant scale trial for production of high purity matal, ' '
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* Improvamant in bath chamistry in pots

» Anode Cathode Distance modaling.

*  Plantiavel trials by blending of different types of cokes.

*  Measagres to reduce meltloss incasthouse fJumaces.

* Large scale inale with magnatic resonatorfor fusl ol saving;

= Trial with non-wetting castable lining of tapping ladlas.

*  Plant scale trial with spent pot lining carbon material In enode matrix,
* |mprovamant in bath chemistry in pots.

* |nstailation of intelligant flow contraller inthe compressed air network.
*  Davalopment & implementalion ol a process for treatment of Spant Pot ining.
*  Projacts related o energy consernvalion inSmaltar Plant
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4. Expenditure on R&D:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
{a) Capital 416.00 Nl
(b) Recurring 699.00 119.43
{c) Total 1,115.00 11843
(d} Total R&D Expanditure as a% of tolal turnover 0,16 D.0z2

5. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION:

(a) M&R Complex , Damanjodi:
SL Ne. | Dotalls of Modification Banafit thoreof
1 Fine sead addition as extemal sead Reduced zoda impurity and marginal Increase n production,
2 Split fepding in precipitators Reduced soda impurity.
3 High rate settling technology Lowsr reversion loss of aluming, =oda loss and hieat Iosses,
Reduced foot print ares and Capix.
4 Use of CAIS ps fillar mid Improved spacific filtration rate.
5 | Advanced vertical Diaster fillers in place of Kelly filters Enhancad flow rate and reducad CAPEX.
B | Two stage PHE eliminating water cocling stage In existing Higher hiaat recoviery.
3 singe PHE
T . Schama for automane skew correction in Now Rectaimer Increasad Reclaimer availabiity,

(b) Smelter Plant, Angul:

! I:-lmlifnl‘m

Sl No. Banafit thereof
1| Wire Rod Mille2 ©: Whael, Pinch Roll & Auto Stiear * Latest Technology
Analog DC drives wers upgraded with Siemeans make Digital | + Less downtime.
OC drives {Typa-GRATO): = Availahility of indigenous spares & sarvices.
* Easa In maintanance & quick trouble shooting af fault.
= Analo) drives wire obsolete & imported arigin.
2 HnwAE-E make VFDs-(Type: -ABEMU.] werne insialled & = Smooth start results in less wear & tear of the system.
sommissioned for Recireulation Fan Mﬂlﬂ-ﬁ&ﬂ af = Baotior protection.
Homoganizing Fumnace-1 in Casl Hotse-A ln p = Enargy saving.
of 0.0 L starters. . ' * FE@sy inmainfanance & quick froubla shooting of faull.
3 |E!:La1 CTA Long travel, Trollay in Cross |+ Latast Technology
_ﬁtyrﬁﬁgs ari upgradad with o drive of « FExiating drivas ware obsoiate.
Rackwal Automation in Cast Hous: |
i Tha ol & obsolate Simalic S-5 F"Lﬂ H‘I#l-lﬁ-'l!ﬂ'm ‘s Baon * Online data acquisition. alarm managemant 8 historical
replacad by mone advanced PLC & PG basad HM|. data trands for better process data monitonng.
« Easiar fault finding through advanced features.
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DETAILS OF TECHNOLOGY IMPORTED /UPGRADED DURING LAST 5YEARS:

a) M&R Complex , Damanjodi:

Technolagy imported | up-graded Year of import | Has technology bean | If not fully absorbed, sreas

fully absorbed? where this has not taken

place, reasons there for and
future plans of action

Potanllometer analysis of Bayer liguor forsoda and 2008-09 'ley-ﬁbmrhaﬂ

dizszolved alumina in place of tiiraion basad analysis:

Semd grain size control through addifion of micro 2008-09 Fully Absorbad

fined hydrate. .

lan Chromatograph for analyais of Fluonde, Oxalate eio; 2048-09 Fully Absorbed

AutodAnalysar for particle size analysis 2010=17 = Under avalualion
Thermography studies to locate hot spets in fumaces 200811 - Estimations dong were under
ant siectrcal Switchyard equipmeants. a tollaborative project with

JHNARDDC. Tharmography
camera under procurament
for camying out thermography
a standard practice.

b) Smelter Plant, Angul:

Technelogy imported | up-graded Year of imporl | Has technology been | If not fully absorbed, areas

fully absorbad? whara this has not taken

placa, reasons there for and
future plans of action

Installation , commissioning of onling HF monitars on 201112 Yes -
the stacks.ef FTP-1 & FTP-2 of Poiling.
EHTF Heator of capacity 8 x 432 kKW along with 2011-12 Yes

Thyrstor Control PanelalTGF), vaasals, piping,
automation systam. This systam &5 an upgradation of

thie oid il fired Boilar in carbon ptant The heaters
and TCPs ware importad and the process design and
inpiamentation @ n-housa.

Slot cutting machine for baked anodes \n carbon plant 2010-11 Yizg -
New machanized Bath breaking & bath finishing 21112 '1"'@'5 .
machines in modding shop-1 of carbon plant

Inhouse development of chaguered sheot as a new 2011-12 izt -
product in mlled product unit.

Universal Tensile strength machine upgraded to 2011-12 Yes .
microprocessor based Instron maka maching '

Onfine fluonde monitoning systsm 0 wasto 2010-11 Yizs -
waler frecyciad water

Ambiant air online real ime display moniloring system 2011-12 Yizg -

6. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The foreign exchange eamings of your Company for the year 201112 wag T 2,558 grore as against T 2,066 crore m 2010-11.
The foreign exchange oulgo of your Company for the yaar Under nepor] was t 328 cromm as agajnst T 423 crore in the previous year.

|
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Annexure ||
Report on Corporate Governance

Philosophy

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Corporate Governance s the application of beat managemeant practices, compliance of law in lrue letter and spirit and

adhearence lo ethical standards Tor effective managemen! and distribution of wealth and discharge of social responsibility for

sustainabledevelopment of all stakeholders.

It deals with laws, procedures, practices-and implicit rules that determing a Company's abliity 1o take Informed managerial
decisions vis-a-vis [Is claimants, In partcular its shareholders, creditors. customers, the state and employees.

In NALCO, it gues with the giobal consensus aboul the objective of Good Corporate Gavernance lo maximize long term
shareholder value.

Board of Directors
The Board aof Directors farmulale strategles, policies and review performance periodically to manage the Company, The

runclional |.e. Executive Directors manage the business of the Company under the overall supervision, control and guidance of
the: Board.

Directors’ Profile

A brief resume of all the Directors is given at the beginning of the Annual Report. The nature of thelr expertise In spacific
funclional areas and names of Companies In which they hotd direclorships, chairmanship/membership of Board Commitiees
and their shareholding in the Company are glven therain.

Compaosition

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the number of directors on the Board shall nol be: less than four and shall not
be more than sighteen. NALCO being a Government Company, the power to appoint directors vests with the President of India.

As an 31st March, 2012, the Board had 12 directors comprising of B executive directors, ona non-executive official director and
six non-executive non-officlal (independeant) difectors. One of the executive directors belng under suspension, the composition
of Board was in compliance with the requirements under clauss 49 of the Listing Agreement and DPE guidelines on Corporate
Governance, However, there was non-compliance on part of composition of the Board from 1stApril, 2017 te 268 12,2019

Mone of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than § Commitiees as
specfied in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions are regularly made
by the Directors.

Age limit and tenure of Directors

Age limit for the Funclional |.e. Executive Directors iInchiuding Chairman-cum-Managing Director is 60 years. The upper age limit
forconsideration of appointment of independant directors is 65

Terureof office ol CMDrand/or other Functicnal Le. Executive Directors is for a period of five years from the date of appointment
or until the-age of superannuation o til further order of the Govt. of India which aver is earlier.

Non-exaculive official directors are genarally nominee directors represanting Ministry of Mines. They retire from the Board on
oeasing o be official of the Minstny.

Independentdirectors areappointed fora period of three years by the Governmant of India.

Board Meatings

This Board mal 11 times during the ysar 2011-12 The minimum and maximum ime gap belwesn any two Board meetings wes B
days gnd ﬁﬂmw Details of Board mestings snd attendance of direclors are as follaws:

Board Meeting Board No. of Directors
No. & Dale Strength Present
250/27.048 2011 ] 8
251721 05.2011 ] 7
252/30.05.201 = 9 7
253/12,08.2017 T & 2
254/22 08.2011 il i H 8 a
265/03.00.2011 e (7 g )
Z8e20092011 | 10 g
257/12.10.2011 10 10
258/13.12.2011 I 10 a
258/06,02.2012 12 g
260/20.03 2012 | 12 11

-y ¥ -
e T i 24




31" Annual Report 2011-12 p— m@ HM.CU

Direclors' altendance at the Board Meetings, at the last Annual General Meeting, number of directorships in other companies
and membership in other committees etc. during the year 2011-12 are as follows:

a. Whole time Directors

Mame & Designation Director Board Meeting Attendance No. Membership in
Identification at 30th of the Commitiees
Number AGM held other of ather
{DIN) on 29.09.2011 | director- Companies®
Held | Attended ships  Member-/Chairman-
during ship ship
the
tenure
Shri AK. Srivastava, 00302121 NA, MNA, MNA M M N
Chalmar-curm-
Managing Director (1)
Shri B.L. Bagra, 000%0596 11 11 Yes 3 1 -
Director (Finance) &
CMD (2)
Shn Joy Varghese, 01955103 1" 11 Yes el el NIl
Director (Pers, &
Admn.)
Shn A K. Sharma, 02600938 7 T Yas il Ml i
Oireclor| Production)
(upto 30.09.2011)
Shri P.K. Fadhi, 027808916 g 8 Yes MU M 1l
Directar (P&T)
(upto 31:01.2012)
Shn Ansumean Das, 02845138 11 g Yes M NI M
Director (Commercial )
Shn 5.5, Mahapatra, 03619725 4 3 NA, Ml i tlil
Director| Production)
(weef 01.10.2011)
Shr N.R. Mohanty, 05181575 2 2 A N I M
Directar{P&T)
(w.e:f. 01.02.2012)
b. (i) Part-time official Directors (Non-independent)
Shri 5.K: Nayak, 1AS 02140600 B 4 NA 1 NI 1
{upto 05.09.2011)
Shri 5K Srivastava, 033211860 11 T Mo Nl Nil Ml
lAS
b. (ii) Part-time non-official (independent) Directors
Shri Ved Kumar Jain 00485623 11 g8 Yes 5 2 4
Shri P.C. Shama, 00513921 11 8 No 2 1 1
|AS{Retd.)
Shri G P. Joshi, N0B03925 5 B Yes 2 Nl NIl
IAS(Retd. )
(wef 15.00.2011) ——— _
Shri 5.5. Khurana 02128149 i 5} Yas NIl NIl il
(w.e.f 15.09.2011) ' it i I
Shirt Madhukar Gupta, 02897920 2 2 | NA 1 Nil | NIl
IAS(Retd. )
(weef. 27.12.2011) .
Shn G H. Amin, 02284350 2 2 NA 1 il 1
(weef. 27.12.2011)
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* As per clause 49 of the Lisling Agreement, Membership/Chairmanship in only the Audil Committee and Shareholders!
Investors’ Grievance Commiltae has been considersd.

(1) Undersuspensionw.e.f 26.02.2011.
{2} Holding additional charge of the post of Chairman-cum-Managing Directorw.ef. 27.02. 2011,
2.5 Procedure adopled for Board Mesting

- Board Meeting dates are decided well In advance. Generally meetings are convened by giving at least 7 days advanca notice to
all Directors except on occasions where meseting is convened on shorier notice 10 address any urgen! needs.

- Sometimes, resolutions are also passed by ciroulation. In such case, the resolution s put up in the nexl Board meeting for
aonfirmation.

- Board Meelings are normally held at the Registered Office of the Company at Bhubaneswar,

- Detalled agenda and notes on agenda are sent in advance to the Directors, Where [l is not practicable to croulate the agenda,
the same is placed on the table with parmission of the chair.

- The Board has complele access to all Information within the Company.
- Information as required under Annexure 1Ato Clause 48 is being placed before the Board
- Draft minutes of Board meeting is circulated to all difectors for thelr comments, fany, before finatizing the same.

- The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Steps are taken by the Company (o
rectily instances of non-compliances; ifany.

2.6 Trainingto Board members:

As a policy, the Company sponsors the Independent Directors to various tralning programmes conducted by SCOPE, DPE sic.
to train them on the latest developments in corporate govemance eto.

Board Committees

The Board has constituted the following commitises:

Audil Cormmittes{ slso acts 55 Shareholders' Grievance Committesa)
Humsn Resources Caommitlee

Remuneration Commitiee

Technology Commities

Share Transter Commitiee

Investment Commitias

Committes of Directars for considaration of unaudited results
Committee of Directors for Salas

Committse of Dirsctors for Procursments

Ethics & Corporate Gmranmnm Committes

Risk Management Comimitiee

. CSR& Emﬂnﬂﬂhﬂm&mm Committes

m. Committes of Direclars fo Fmiaﬁlsm'd New Ventures

34 AuditCommittes

Amnﬂnmrmmﬁ:ﬂtmmﬂu‘t&dm 1568, Thereafler, it has been reconstituted from time to time to be in line with the
requirements under CompaniesAct, 1956. Clatisa 49 of the Listing Agreement and DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance.

The role of the Audit Committae inter-alia includes the following:

Owersight of the company's fimancial reporing process and the disclosure of i1s financial Information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficlent and credible.

Regommend o the Board for fixation of audil lees:
Appraval of payment o statutory au::Hh::m furany :
Reviewing, WHH the manageamen,

oy
(=]

P o@epFe

"._'.-"I:

1)

i
1

saivicssrontored byt
sial ﬂnlm!rmhs hﬂm‘n submission o the board for approval, with particular

1ot

Malters :_.. uined (o be included in the Directof: 'Hﬁf]ﬁiﬂhﬂﬂyﬁﬁlﬂhﬁﬂ to be Included In the Board's report in terms of sub-
tion| ofséction 217 afthe :
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10.

1.

12

13.
14.

15.

Compllance with listing and other legal requirements relaling o financial siatements

Disclosure of any related party transaclions.

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviawing, wilh the managameanl, the guartarly financlal slatameants before submission lo the Board for approval,

Reviawlng, with the management, the statement of uses [ application of funds ralsed through an Issue {publlc issue, nghts ssus,
preferential issue, elc), the statemenlt of funds ulllized for purposes olher than those siated In the offer
document/prospectus/inotice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
publicor rights issua, and making appropriate recommandations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

Reviewing, with the management, perormance of statutory and intemal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internatl audit depadment, staffing and
sanharity of the afficial heading the dapartment, reporling struclure coverage and frequency of infemal audit

Discussion with Intemal auditors any slgnificant findings and follow-Up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any mtarmal investigations by the intemal auditors into matters where there 15 suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material natura and reporting the matter o the board.

Discusslon with statutory auditors before the audlt commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion lo ascertain any area of conoem.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaulls in the paymenl to the depositors, debenture holders. shareholders (in case af
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To raview the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

Toreview the following information -

Managarment discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation.
Statement of related parly transaction, if any, submitted by management.

Managemant letters/iatiers of mtemnal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.
Intemal audit raports relating 1o internal control weaknesses.

The appointment and removal of the chief Intermal suditar.

f. Cerification/declaralion of financial statement by the Chief Exeoutive Officer/CFO.

Carrying out any other funclion as amended from time to time in the terms of reference of the Audit Commitiee in the listing
agreement and DPE guidelines and other functions as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Committee comprises of three independent directors viz, Shrl VK. Jain - Chalrman, Shri P.C. Shanma and Shri G.P. Jashi.
The composition mests the requirement of Section 282 4 of the Companies Act, 1856, Clause 48 of the Listing Agreament and
DPFE guidelines on Corporate Govemance for CPSEs

Al Audlt Committee members possess financlal/accounting knowledge.

Director (Finance), Statutory Auditors, Chief of internal Audit and Cost Auditors are invited {o the meetings for interaction with
the members. Besides, Functional Directars and senlor functional exacutives are also invited to the meetings as and when
requirad.

Powers aof the Audit Commitiee

1. Toinveatigate any activity within its terms of eference.

2. Tosesak informalion from any emplayes.

3. Toobtain outslde legal or other professional advice.

4

5

® a0 T

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant axpertisa, if it nnrﬁid.ﬂm NECassary.
. Toprotect whistie blowers.
Audit Commites meetings and attendance

The Audit Committee met 5 flimes on 20th May, 2011, 12th August, 2011, 21st October, 2011, 12th November, 2011 and Gth
February, 2012 during the year. The maximum gap between any two Audit Commitiee maatings was B7 days.

Attendance

Mame Hah:l dunng the tenure Attendad

Shri VK. Jain éﬁ

1 1ijl

Shri. PC. Sharmsa L ¥

Shri S.K. Nayak (upta 05.08.2011) 2

Shri G.P. Jeshi (w.ef. 15.09.2011) ' E

e I"'ﬂ..r-:i'- o

Chairman, Audit Committes attended the last Annual Genaral mﬂng_hhmﬂdﬂzm‘l ’
Shri K.N. Ravindra, Company Secretary is the Ssoretary to the Audit Committae.

a7 ll‘afh‘* _&-
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3.2 Shareholders’ Grievance Committee
The Audit Commitiee has also been essigned with the responsibilities of Shareholders’ Grevance Committee. The
Shareholders’ Grisvance Committee looks into redressal of shareholders'finvestors’ complaints/grievances pariaining to share
transfers/lransmissions, nop-receipl of dividend/Annual Reporls, (ssue of duplicate cerlificates,
remateriglization/dematerialization of shares, change in address, bank particulars and other miscellansous complaints.
Shri K. N. Ravindra, Company Secratary is the compliance officer. He Is primarlly responsible 1o ensure compliance with
applicable stalutory requirermants and Is the inlerface between the management and the regulatory authorilies.
The Company addresses all complaiits, suggestions and grievances of the invesiors expeditiously and usually sends/ resolves
the issues within 2-3 days axcept for those oases where DDs are required to be issued against lostiexpired warrants or cases
which require certain legal compliances.
The total number of complaints! quenes/ comespondence recevad and replied/ attended to the satisfaction of the shareholders
during the year was 82 There was no complaint pending as an 31st March, 2012,
SEB| has commenced procassing of investors complaints in a centralized web based system called SEB| Complaints Hedress
System (SCORES) w.e f. 3rd June, 2011 for all listed Companies. The saliepl featlures of this system are:
«  Centratised database of allcomplaints.
*  On-line movermnent of complaints to the concermed listed companies.
< On-line upload of Action Tﬂi_mr'l Reports (ATRs | by the concerned Companies, and
= On-line viewing by investors of achons taken on the complaint and its current status.
The break-up of total complaints received, resolved and oulstanding as on 31.03.2012, physically as wall as under SCORE is
as follows:
Particulars Complaints Complaints/grievances received from
undar
& Exchanges
Institutions
No. of cases recelved during the o8 B6 o3 05
year 2011-12
Nex. of cases attended and & B8 03 05
redressed (o the satisfaction of the
shareholdersfinvestors
No. of pending cases remained NIl Nl NIl NIl
unresolved/un-redressed
3.3 Human Resources Commities

i]

]
1y
)

Terma ol reference of HR Committes includes.
Ta mndymﬂrmnmﬂﬂmﬂte Board for approval, proposals, in the following areas:;

Framing of rules and regulstions and changes therein relating to recruitment, transfer, promotion, deputation and other
mndm of sarvice In respect of employees of the Company, other than thase which are approved by the Board and which are
delggated v CMO.

Wage structure and scales of pay of the employees of the Company and any changes therein.
Organization chart including manpower planning.
Any other refemnmw'radehyth‘éﬂnafﬂfm time

HR Cammitiee comprises of 3 indepandent dire
by Shfi PC. Sharma, Indspenden

06022012 during the year undear rev
The Cammittes met 4 imes on 23rd April, 2001, 27th June, 2011, 315t January, 2012 and 8th March, 2012 during the year.

mﬁiﬂaﬂ-ﬂmﬂﬂimﬂnm as on 31st March, 2012. The Commiltee is headed
Wwas reconstitutsd 3 tlimes Le. 27.04.2011.19.10.2011 and

L
o

g

-
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Attendance

3.4

(a)

Name Hald during the tenure Attended
Shri N.R. Mohanty {upto 24.04.2011) 1 -
Ma]. Gen [Retd.) Samay Ram (uplo 24.08.2077]
Dr. Jyotl Mukhapadhyay (upto 24.04.2011)

Shri 5.B: Mishra {upto 24.04 2011)

Shri B.L. Bagra

Shri Joy Varghess

Shri ALK, Sharma {upto 30.09.2011)

Shri P.C. Sharma

Shrl Veed Kumar Jain

Shri 5.5, Khurana (we:[. 15.08.2011)

Shri 5.5. Mahapatra (w.ef.01,10.2011)

Shri G.H. Amin (w.ef. 27.12.2011)

1
1
1
1
4
1
3
1
1
2
1

—=] b3 B =] L] =] ] =] &) —=| —=

Remuneration Committes

The Remuneration Committee was reconstituted on 6th February, 2012, It comprises of 3 Independent Directors as on 31st
March, 2012,

The terms of reference of the Remunearation Commitiee 13 anumearated balow;

Remuneration Commiltae will decide the annual bonusivariable pay poal and policy for its distribution across the executives
and non-unionized supervisors, within the prescribed Hmits,

There was no Remuneration Cammittes maeting during the period under review,
Remuneration Policy and details of remuneration
Whole-time Directors

The Charman-cum-Managing Director and othes whole-time directors are appointad by the President of India for a perod of live
years from the date of taking over charge or tlil the date of superannuation (presently 80 years of age) or tll further order from the
Governmantof india, whichever event occurs firsl.

Name Relationship Business Remuneration Tor the year
with other | relationship with 20111211
Plrectors | the Sompanys ["Allclements of | Other | Total
remuneration | benefits®
|package, Le.
PF contribution,
Pension
Shri A K. Srivastava (1) No Chalrman-cums= 5.75.068 8.80.642 | 1455710
Manmging Director
CMD : A
Bhri Joy Viarghese No Diirector (P&A) 23,51 534 0.55.008 | 33.08.830
Shri Ansuman Das No Diractar (Comem.) 2313777 6,776,231 | 28,890,008
Shri 5.5. Mahapatra (w.e 1.071.10.2011) N M‘ﬁmn ) 12,39, 808 340503 | 15.80.311
Shri N.R. Mohanty [w.e.f. 01.02.2012) No Director (P&T) |, 347481 117,794 | 465275
Shri AK. Sharma [upto 30.09.2011) No Director {E'fndn.'_l T 20,863 622 6.26.865 E-ﬁ;m;m_
Shri P.K. Padh| (upto 31.01.2012) Mo irectorF&T) 35.31,255 6,116,403 | 4147 658

(1) undersuspensionw.eal 26.02.2011.

* Other benefits iInclude Medical facilities, Leave Travel Concession, Residential Accomodation, Electricity & waler charges,
Upkesp allowance, Entertainment allowsnce, productivity and performance related Incentives ete.

0 sll=-
-_3-
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(b)

3.6

3.7

Stock Option Plans

The Company has not issued any shares so far undier stock option to its directors or employees. However, the Company Is
preparing an Employee Stock Purchase Scheme (ESPS) to pay a certain percentage of Perfarmance Related Pay (PRP) in
shape of shares forissue of shares as part paymenL

Part-time Non-official (Independent) Directors

The sitting fees payable to independent directors was revised from € 10,000 to ¥ 20,000 wef 12.08.2011 for altending each
meeting of Board! Commitiees thereal. Detalls of sitting fees pald to the: Independeant Directors for the year are given belaw!

Name Sitting Fees (T)
Board Committea Total (7)
Meetings Maetings

Shri 5.B. Mishra (upto 24.04.2011) - 10,000 10,000
Dr. Jyoll Mukhopadhyay {(upto 24.04 2011) - 10,000 10,000
Ma|. Gen.(Retd. ) Samay Ram, UYSM, AVSM. VEM (upto 24.04 2011) . 10,000 10,000
Shri Ved Kumar Jain (w.el. 24.04 2011) 1.40.000 1,60.000 3.00.000
Shri P.C. Sharma (we.f 24.04 2011) 1,30,000 1,680,000 2.90,000
Shi G2 Joshi (wef. 15.08:2011) 1.00,000 1,000,000 2.00,000
Shri 5.5, Khurana (w.a.l 15.09.2011) 1,00.000 80,000 1.80.000
Shri Madhukar Gupta (w.ef 1500 2011) 40,000 40,000 80,000
Shn G.H. Amin (w.e.f. 15.09.2011) 40,000 80,000 1.00,000
Pari-tima Official Direclors

Gavernment nomines directars from the administrative ministry are considerad as Part- Ume official directors. Thera was one
part-time official director on the bosrd of the Company as on 315t March, 2012 No remuneration was paid to the part-iime official
diractors:

There is no provision for payment of severance fees to any category of directors.

Technology Commitise

The Technalogy Commities pays special attention 1o the assessment of Company's own technology slatus, o acquiring and
assimilating lechnologles necessary to make the Company competitive, own R&D efforts lo malntain a sustained strength inthe
technological field and reviewfix specific consumption norms pertaining to production units.

The Technology Committes was reconsiituted on 6th February, 2012 |t comprisas of 2 independent directors and 2 funclional
directors as on 31&t Maroh, 2012, One of the independant directors is Chainman of the Committes.
mﬁmmmammmm

StmuTmmmm

To mrmmmﬂm ﬁ:‘m-n‘l" transferfiransmission and dematerialization of shares, Company Secretary has been authorized
by the Board 1o approve all such requesta/cases. However, cases pertaining lo |ssue of new share cerificates in case of
torm/millstedidefaced/lost/remataralisalion are placed befors the Share Transfer Committes. All whole-time directors excepl
Chairman-cum-Managing Director are mambers of the Committes. 30 such mestings fook place during the year ended 315t
March, 2012 out of which approval through Share Transfer Committes was 7 times

Committes of Directors for Sales

The terms of referance of Committes of Directors for Salas includes decision on all short term contracts of sale both for alumina
and aluminium i.2. the contracts for a period of ane year or less imrespective of the value of contract in the cases where the value
exceads the powers delegated to CMD. .

Chairman-cum-Managing Director and all full-time prs are members of the Committes,

Thecommittes met 13 imes during Gar.
Comimittes of Directors for Pro nis
Ehaﬁhﬁ-ﬂlﬂkﬂﬂnaglng Director and il funetior #ﬂh‘nﬂum of the Company constitute the Committes.
The terms of reference of the -‘;'mmiunﬂn_'_ clofs for Procuirements are as follows:

In raananl of cortractsfitems)| ed in (he approved capital budgat:

To approve Contracts / m:mmmﬁm domestic and overseas In respect of all capital expenditure which have
been included hhawﬂ%wtﬁnm and upta 2200 crores In each case.
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F:..LIJ FHJWE[E ﬁ:lr pmnurEmErni pf rnatenals and SEMYICES fI:HI' ﬂperahnnﬁ and maintenance, chargeable to revenue which is beyond
the powers of CMO.

The Committee met 2( times during the year.
investment Committee

The terms of referance of Investmeant Commites is lor invesiment of surplus funds as per Government guidslines issued
from time to bme,

The Commiltee consists of CMD, Direclor (Finanica), Director{Commergial) and one more funcional director.
Tha Committee met 6 limes during the year.

3.10 Committes of Directors for consideration of unaudited financial results

The terms of reference of the Commilles is 1o consider and take on record, the Quarnerly Financial Results in terms of
Clause 41(I1) of the Listing Agreament after the same are considered by (he Audit Committes.

The Cammittee consists of CMD, Director (Fin.) one pari-time official director and two independent directors, one being the
Chairman. However, since Director (Fin.) is holding additionat charge of CMD and the part-time officizl director post was
vacant as on 318t March, 2012, the Committee comprised of ong functional director and two independent directors only.

The Committze mel once on 12th November, 2011 during the year.

3.11 Ethics & Corporate Governance Committoa

The Committee was constiluted on 6th February, 2012

The terms of reference Includes:

{i} Practces of Corporate Governance at all levels and to suggest remedial measures wherever necessary.
{ii} Provision of correctinpuls to the media so &5 to preserve and protect the Company'simage and standing.
(i) Disseminationolfactually correct information to the-investors, institulions and public al large.

{iv) Interaction with extsting and prospective Fils and rating agencias, elc.

{v] Establishing oversight on imparian! corporate communication on behail of the Company with [he assistance of consultants/
advisors, I necessary.

{vi) Instiluticn of standardized channels of internal communications across the Company to faciitate a high level of disciplined
participation.

{vil) Compliance of the following, formuiated in terms of SEB! & DPE guidalines:
a) Codeaf Conduct for Serior Managemen '

b) Insider Trading Regulations

¢) Relaled Party transactions

d) Vigilance Related issues

e} Whiste Blower Policy

The Commiliee comprisas of 2 lunclional directors and 2 Independent directors: One of the Independant directors: is the
ohairman of the Commitiee.

Thecommittee met once on 14thMarch, 2012 during the year.

3.12 Risk Management Committee

The Committee was consiituted on §th February, 2012.
The terms of referance Includes:

-Assisting the Board of Directars In overseeing the responsibliities with regard to the idéntification, evaluation and mitigation of
aperational, strateglc and external environment risks

-Cverall responsibliity for monitoring and approving the risk pollcies and assodiated practices of the company.
-Reviewing and approving nsk disclosure statements in any public documeants or disclosures.

The Committes comprises of 2 functional directors and 3 in irectors, Ona of the Indepandent directors s chairmarn of
the Commitiae.
The Commiltee metonce on 14th March, 2012 dunng the year. '

3.13 CSR & Sustainability Development Commities 1

The Commiltee was constituied on 19.10.2011. Thetarms of referenceincludes:

i) Overseeing peripheral development activities being under (ake "hyr the Company through the respeciive Rehabililstion
Periphery Development Advisory Committees (RPDAC) and ssat 1o be taken under proposad MMDR Bill. '

il} Nalco Foundation.
i) Environment Protection & Pollution contrals.

ty il
A .
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The Commiltes comprises of 2 functional directors and 3 Independent diretliors, One of the Indapendant directars s chairman aof
the Cammittee.

The Committee metance on 315t Jahuary, 2012 duning the year.

3.14 Committee of Directors for Projects and New Ventures

4.0

5.0

6.0

Originaily, Commiltee of Directors for Overseas Ventures was constituled on 14.10.2011 o study and recommend o the Board,
all proposals for investmant in new projects in India and abroad.

This Committes was rechristened as COD for Projects and New Ventures w.e.f, 20" March, 2012. The terms of reference of the
Commities Includes review of status of capital projects. s observalions after review of slatus of capital projects are placed
before the Beard on quarterly basis.

The Cammitiee consists of 4 functional directors, 3 independent directors and 1 pari-time official director, However, since the
part-lime official director post was vacan! as on 3151 March, 2012, the Commiltee comprised of 3 funcional directors and 2
indepandent directors only.

Nomeeting of this committes was held during the year.
Statutory Auditors

Mis. CK: Prusty & Associales, Bhubaneswar and M/s. Agasti & Associates, Bhubaneswar wers |oint Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2011-12.

Thefess paid/payable 1o the joint siatutory auditors for the year 2011-12 was T 14 lakhs towards statutory audit fees, T 3,50 lakhs
plus applicable lax for every quartarly Limited Review Report, T 2.85 lakhs plus applicabla tax towards fee for Tax audit and 7 0.65
lakhs plus applicable tax towards fee for certification on Corporate Governancea.

Ganeral Mestings of Shareholders
Particulars of the Genaral Meetings of the shareholders held during last 3 years:

Annual General Meeting
Year Date Time Location
2008-2008 19.09.2009 11.00 A.M. NALCO Bhawan, Bhubaneswar
2009-2010 30.09.2010 11.00 AM NALCO Bhawan, Bhubaneswar
2010-2011 29.096.2011 11.00AM. NALCO Bhawan, Bhubaneswar
Extra-ordinary General Meeting
il

No special resolution was passed through pastal Ballot during the year under reviaw.

Disclosures

Material Contracts/Related Party Transactions

Tha Board recalves disclosures from key managenal personnel relating to material, financial and commercial transactions
where they-andior their relatives have personal inlerest. Thare are no materially significant related party transactions which have
potential conflictwith the interest of the Company al large.

Details of related party iransactions are included in the notes to acoounts as per Accounting Standard (AS)-18 of the Companies
(Acoounting Stendard) Rules, 2006. Transactions with related parties are disclosad In Note No. 46 of Notes to financial
statements in theAnnual Report.

ltems af expenditune ttahﬂm:l in hnnhn of accounts, not relatad 1o business- T 1 crore donallon to Chief Minister Relisf Fund of
Odisha.

Expenses incutted which are personal In nature and incurmed for the Board of Directors and lop management - NIl
Admintstrative and office expenses as a percentage of total expenses are given balow:

(% in lakh)
Particulars [ - 2011-12 2010-11
Administrative and office expenses? 1 367.75 269.74
Tola) expenses T _ 5055.08 488814
Adminsirative and offics expenses 88 & ¥ of oll expenses | .16 5.52

Thie reason forincrease In administrative arid office expenses is diie (o higher amount of interest on disputed statutary dues and
first Hmnmmgnlﬂun nf Ranewabie Putch
The financial mperms for the mm rmr i ! I:LET lakhs (previous year Nil) whose % is negligible as compared lo (otal
expenses

. 1 |
S
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Compliance

The Company has complied with all requirements under Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges as well as guidelines
presoribed by SEBIL However, there was non-compliance on composition of Board of Directors as required under clause 48 of
the Listing Agreement from 24.04.2011 to 27.12.2011. The Company had taken up with Administartive Ministry toappoint more
independent directors whenever the compaosition was notin line with clause 49 of the Listing Agreemant and DPE guidelines

No penalties or strictures have been impased on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other stalitory authonties
during last three years.

The Company has complied with all Presidental Directives issued during last three years.

Code of Conduct

The Company Is commitied to conduct business in accordanca with the highest standards of business ethics and complying with
appticable laws, rules and regulations. A modea| business code of condicl prescoribed by DPE was adopted by the Board. Tha
code intends to serve a5 a basis for sthical decision making in the conduct of professional work. The code of busingss conduct is
circulated to all the members of the Board and senior managemeant al the beginning of the financial year and compliance of the
sameis affirmed by them annually,

Model business code of conduct is posted at Company's webalte: www, nalcoindia.com.
Adeclaration to this effect signed by Chairman-cum-Managing Cirector is given below:

‘I hereby confirm that the Campany has oblained fromthe members of the Board and senior management (Key Executives),
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and senior management in respect of the financial
year2011-12."

Sd/-
(B.L.Bagra)
Director (Finance) & CMD
CEQICFO certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the carification by the CEO and the CFD on the financial statement of the
Company and internal controls relating to financial reporting has been submilted to the Board.

The Company has beangelting 'NIL' comment from C &AG which indicate a regime of unqualified financial statements.
Whistle Blower Policy

As 8 measune tawards compliance of nen-mandatory requirements under clause 43 of the Listing Agreement and to strangthen
the reparting system, Whistle Blower Policy and Fraud Prevention palicy have been put In place for employees lo report 1o the
managementabout unethical bahaviour, aciual or suspected fraud or violation of conduct orathics policy. The policies have also
baen posted In the Company's website, '

Recaonciliation of Share Capital

Share Capital audit to reconcile the total admitied capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listad capital is carnied out through & gualified practicing
Company Secretary - The sudit confirms that the total issued/paid-up caplial Is in agresment with the total number of shares in
physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CODSL

Non-mandatory Regquirements

The Company has adopted "Whislle Blower Policy' and ‘Constitulion of Remunaration Commiltse’ which are part of the non-
mandatory provisions specified In Annexura ID of Clause 49 of the Lising Agresment.

Accounting Standards

The financial statements are prepared in complisnce with applicable mandatory Accounting Standards and refevant
presentational requirements of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and provisions of the Companies Act, 1958, Where
different reatment from prescnbed Accounting Standard is foliowed, the fact IS disclosad In the financlal staternent.

Risk Management

A Risk Managemen! Commiltee has been consiifuted 1o review (he _: S

details are given in the committes position abovea. mﬂﬂhﬂtﬂiw ol ’_Eiﬂ_,'

Report”. B e
7.0 Corporate Ethics

Code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading

The Board has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of Insider irading pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulabion, 1992 as amended from time to time. The code aims at preventing purchase/sala of shares.of the Campany by an

{-and Mitigation reports periodically. More
er "Management Discussion and Analyais

= il
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insider on basis of any unpublishad price sensitive information. Any investment in the securities of the Company beyond spectfied

iimit needs 1o be informed to the Company. All directors/officers/designated employees are also required o disclose their
holding periodically as per the code and in turn iLwill be forwarded to Stock Exchanges, if necessary,

Means of Communication
Quarterly/annual financial results
- Theguanerly/hall-yearly resulls of the Company are published in the newspapers and posted on the website of the Company.

- Quarterly/half-yeary results are Immediately faxed to BSE & NSE where shares of the Company are listed. Scanned copy
of the resulls Is.also sent through mall tothe respective emall-ids of BSE & NSE

- The resulis ars also promptly uploaded m Corporats Filing & Dissemination System (CFDS) portal, a commaon platform

|ointly developed and managed by NSE & BSE. It also gets uploaded in NSE Electronic Application Processing System
(NEAPS)

Results

The guarterly and annual results alang with the Segmeantal Repords are generally published in one leading English newspaper
(all Indla clreulation), ene Hindl newspaper (all India clrculation) and one in reglonal newspaper immedately afler its submission
lo the Stock Exchanges.

News releases, presentations

Official news releases, presentations made to media and loinstitutional Investors/analysts are displayed al Company's website:
www.nalcoindia.com. Such presentations are also sent to the Stock Exchanges inwhich Company's shares are listed,

Wabsito

Pursuant lo new clause 54 of the Lisling Agreement, the Company malntains a dedicsted website www.nalcoindia.com
containing details of its business, financial information, shareholding pattern; compliance with corporate governance, contact
information of the designated officials of the company who are responsible for assisting and handling inveslor grievances. The
website is baing updated from lime 10 Uime.

Annual Report

Annual Report-containing Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Gavernance Report,
Auditors’ Repor, Audited Accounts, Cansolidated Financial Statements and other imporiam shareholders information s
circulated lo the members and others entitted thereto. Itis also hasted in the Company's webslle.

As a part of the Grean Initiative initiatad by MCA, the Annual Reports are now being sanl by e-mail to shareholders whose e-mail
Ids are registened with the depositories and wilth the Share Regisiry of the Company.

Chairman's Addrass

Chairman’s speech in printed form is distributed to all shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in Extra-ordinary General
Meeling. Itis also uploaded in the investors’ page In the Company's websile.

Raeminder to shareholders/debenture holders

The Company sends reminder notica o all shareholdera/debenture holders who have not claimed their dividend/interest. The
detalls of unpaldiunclaimed dividend acoount wise are also avallable in the Company's website for information of the
shareholders/debenture holders,

Shareholders’ h:fuﬂndlun

Annual Ganeral Meeting

Date: 14" August, 2012

Time- 11.00AM.

Venue: NALCO Bhawan, P/, Nayapalll, Bhubaneswar-751 061
Financial Calendar for 2ﬂ12-13:

Evants Tentative Dats
Unaudited Financial resulls for the first quarter sAINg 30" June, 2012 By 14° August, 2012
Unatdited Financial results for the setand quarier ending A0" September, 2012 By 14" November, 2012
Unauited Financial resuits foe the (Hind quartsr snding 31* December, 2012 By 14" February, 2013
Audited Financial results for the yeat endlng 317 March, 2013 By 31* May, 2013
Annual General Mesting for the year ending 81 March, 2013 By 30" September, 2013
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Book Closure Dates

Book Closure/Record Date FPurpose

28" March, 2012 Intenm Dividend @ ¥0.890 per share for 2011-12

7" August, 2012 1o 14" August, 2012 Final Dividend @@ ¥0.10 per share for 2011-12

Dividend payment

Detalls of dividend paid since inception s gliven below:

Year Dividend per share (I} | Total Equity Shares Total Dividend (% in crores)
1991-1992 0.12 128,86,19,200 15.48
19921803 02 -da- 25.77
1993-1994 0.2 -do- 25.77
1924-1895 (.3 -cla- 38.66
1995-1896 0.35 -do- 45.10
1996-1897 0.8 -do- 103.09
1997-1998 1.0 -cla- 128 88
1998-1999 12 64.43,09,628 * 77.32
1994.2000"* 20 -do- 128.87
2000-2001 4.0 -do- 257,72
2001-2002 4.0 -da- 257.72
2002.2003 6.0 -dg- 386.59
2003-2004 4.0 -do- 257,72
2004-2005" 4.0 -da- 257.72
2005-2006™ 5.0 ~do- 322.15
2006-2007* 7.5 -da- 48324
2007-08" B.0 -di- 386.59
2008-09™ 5.0 -do- 322.15
2009-10* 25 -do- 161.07
2010-11"" 2.5 25T, 7238512 # 257.72
201112 (Interim) 08 -do- 23185
2011-12(Final j# .10 -do- 2577
TOTAL 4197.01

* Subsequenl to the capital Restructuring of the Campany
** Including interim dividend

# Subsequent to the split and bonus ssue

## Recommendead

Transfer of unpaidiunclaimed interest/dividend to IEPF

During tha year under review, the following unpaid/unclaimed Interest and dividend have been transferred o the Investior
Education and Pratection Fund (IEPF):

a. Transfer of unpaid/unciaimed interest on 14.5% NCDs

Period Nature of Payment ﬁ __ Amount () Date of Transfer
26.03.2004 t0 25.09.2004 | 11th half yearly interest on 14.5% NCDs | 85321 21.10.2011
b. Transfer of unpaid/funclaimed Dividend _ |
Financial Year Nature of Payment Ampunt (7) Date of Transfer
2003-04 Dividend | sarzao 21.10,2011
2004-05 intarim Dividend 4,04.016 02.02.2012
U =

p—
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Listing on Stock Exchanges
NALCO sharas are presently listed in following Stock Exchanges:
Mational Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.
Scrip code: NATIONALUM Scnp code: 532234
Traded from : 28.04.1898 Traded from : 19.10.1892
ISIN CODE - INE 129A01034

Listing feas for the year 2011-12 has been paid to both the Stock Exchanges.
Market Price Dala

(Amount in T
MONTH SHARE PRICE (BSE) SHARE PRICE (NSE)
H L Avg. Daily H L Avg. Daily
Turnover Turnover
April, 2011 100.90 89.90 144614 100.90 891.80 483,221
May a4 25 8345 63,407 84 35 83.15 2 24 650
June a4.00 80.80 41,918 83.45 81.00 1,789,733
July 86.00 73.30 53,783 86 .40 74,70 269122
August T6.10 57.15 B4 120 T6.00 58.00 3,62 662
September 68.90 59,45 62,112 649.90 58.00 3,114,820
October 66.80 58.55 23,222 67.00 50 .40 126,785
MNovember B4 .50 48.00 48,107 B4 50 44 55 1,53, 111
Deceambar 55,70 48.05 40,509 56510 48,00 1,48 889
danuary, 2012 6145 50.55 1,27.,002 63,60 50.40 5,20,784
February 68 45 57.35 220,598 BB .45 §7.25 11,110,647
Marah 84.00 53,10 02 463 6§3.50 52.25 4,268,335

H=Highesd, L=Lowest Source: Wab-sitns of BSE and NSE

Performance in comparison to broad - based Indices
120+

NALCO'S SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT VI5-A-VIS BSE SENSEX AND NSE NIFTY
110+

%% Variation over the base

ATl May1l dunedl JUyT1 ALGTT  SSptil Oertl  Novil Dectl dani2  FebiZ Mar12

=== BSE 4 NALCO - NSE

ey, § : -
B~ o
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Equity Shares in Suspense Account
Mo equity shares are lylng in suspense account In terms of clause SA ) of the Listing Agreemeant. for the year under review.
Registrar and Transfer Agants

All kinds of investors’ related services, both for physical as well as electronic segments are provided from its in-houss Share
Registry at the lollowing address;

Mational Aluminium Company Lid.
Share Registry

NALCO Bhawan,

Plot Na. F/1, Nayapalli,
Bhubaneswar - 751 0681{Odisha)

Tel: O674-2303197
OE74-2301988 1o 2301994 (12 lines) (EPABRX)
{Extn. 2585-87)

Fax. 0674-2300677

E-mail addressas:

i} knravindra@nalcoindia.co.in
i)  dmrao@nalcoindia co.in

i) nkmohanty@nalcoindia.co.n
v} bharatsahu@nalcoindla.coin

Pursuant to Clause 47-C of the Listing Agreement, half-yeary cerlificates on compliance of share transfer formalites obtained
from Practicing Company Secretary have besn submitted to Stock Exchanges in ime.

The total number of transfer deeds processed and shares transferred during the |ast three years are as under:

Year No. of Transfer Requests Recelvad No. of shares Transferred
201112 78 24 BO0O
2010-1 180 20,260
20069-10 102 &.11a
Shareholding pattern as on 31.03,2012
Sl. No. Category Mo. of Shareholders | No. of Shares |Percentage of shareholding
T Promoters (Government of Indla) 1 224 50,98 540 E? 15
2 Mutual Funds 17 3,84 600 0.01
3. Banks! Financial Institullons 19 3,34, 58 581 1.30.
4. Insurance Companles 7 10,16,89,602 3.95
B: Fils &6 9,866,728 387
B. Bodles Corporate 1,036 7.12.28,710 2.76
3 Indian Public 52 615 2,18.00,355 0.84
8. Others 1.786 40.07,396: 012
TOTAL 55,567 257,72,28. 512 100.00

Government of India

‘Mutual Funds

Banks. Fls & Insurance
Companies

Flls
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Distribution schedule of shareholding

Number of shares Number of Shareholders Total Shares held % of share capital
1-200 34,990 1,68,19,270 0.13
201-500 12,041 2,27 .58 465 (.18
S01-1000 4 544 1,80.84.325 0.14
1001-50000 3,887 7,08.61.400 0.55
S0001-100000 42 1,349.77 515 0.11
100001 and above 63 12.74.356,91.585 98 89

Dematerialisation/Rematerialisation of Listed Shares & Liquidity

99.90% of the Comparny's share capital stands dematenalized as on 31st March, 2012 as compared o 99,18% as on 313t
March, 2011

NALCO shares ara traded in compulsory demal form in NSE and BSE. Demat requests are confirmed to the respective
Depositories (NSOL/CDSL) within 8-10 days of recaipt of Demat Request Forms {DRFs) along with original share cedificates
from theDPs.

Dunng the financlal year, 224,61.22 472 no. of shares have besn demaleriatized under both the Deposilories as detalled balow,
NSDL: 224 60,96,668
COSL: 25804

Demataralisation of Listed Shares

0.10
243

BNSOL Y CDSL  ®Physical

80.69

During the year, Ihe Company has confirmad § rematenialisation requests for 881 shares and the physical share cerdificates
were dispatohed to the respective shareholders in time,

10.0 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion Date and likely impact on equity
The Company has neither issued any GDR/ADR nor any convertible instrument outstanding as on date,
11.0 Plantlocations of the Company

Mines & Refinery Captive Power Plant Address for corraspondence
Mines & Refinery Complex Angul - 759122 Registered Office :
Damanjodi- 763 008 (Odisha)l NAL CO Bhawan
Dist-Koraput {Odsha) e Plot Mo. P11, Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar - 751 061
' (Gdisha)
I
Malco Nagar Oppasite Ore Handling Complex
Angul - 750 145 - Pod _";'"HEEHHHIIEHMHH-E_EEHES
(Ddisha) {Andhira Pradesh)
e V'] -
~ a8
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

To

The Members
National Aluminium Company Limited
Bhubaneswar

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by NATIONAL ALUMINIUM
COMPANY LIMITED, for the year ended on 31st March, 2012 as stipulaled in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
ofthe sald Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govermance is the responsibility of the management Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. ILis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements ofthe Company.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the
representations made by the Management, we cerify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporale Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement subject lo:

The company had not requisite number of independentdirectors onits Board from01.04.20111026.12.2011.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the
efficiency or éffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

ForC. K. Prusty & Associates ForAgasti & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FREN-323220E FRN-313043E
(CAC.K. Prusty) (CAP.R.Das)
Partner Pariner
Membership No.057318 Mambership Mo BBOSEHT

Place: Bhubanaswar
Date : The 16th day of June, 2012
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Annexure Il

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To

The Members

National Aluminum Company Limited
MALCO Bhawan,

P71, Navapalll, Bhubaneswar

We have examined all registers, records and documents maintained by National Aluminium Company Limited for the
financial yearended 3 1st March, 2012 according Lo the provislons of -

& The CampaniesAct, 19568 and the rules made thereunder.

& The Dapositories Act, 1996 and business rules of the Depositories.

s Various regulations and guidelines prescribad under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEB1) Acl, 1992,
& The equity Listing Agreement with Natlonal Stock Exchange (MSE)and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

Based on our examination, verification of records, dosuments and based on the Information and explanation given lo us
by the Company, we raport thal !

1. Maintenance of Statutory Records :

The Salutory Registers, records and other registars, as prescribed under varlous provisions of the Companies Acl,
1956, the Depositories Acl, 1996 and the rules made thersunder are kept and maintained propedy with all necessary
entries made tharain. Provisions of the Companies Act, 1866 were duly complied with regard to closurs of Register of
Members.

2. Filing of Stalutory Returns:

The provisions ol the Companiegs Acl, 1858 and other stalutes are duly complied with regard to timely filing of various
ferms and returns with the Registrar of Companies-and other Statutory Authortties. All documents/intimaticns under
various Statutes/Listing Agreement/business rules were also regularly filed with the Stock Exchanges and Depositories
(NSDL and COSL) within the due dates.

3. Compositionof the Board:

Clause 49 of listing agreement reqguires that if the Chairman of the Company i1s executive Chairman then not lass than
ha!f of the Board of Directors should comprise of Independent directors. As far as compllanca of Clause 49 of |isting
agreemant pertaining 1o composition of Board is concerned, the Company has nol complied with the provisions from
01.04.2011 to 26.12.2011. Oul of & full ime and 2 part time official directors; one full time official director is under
stispansion since 26 02,2011, Thersfors his name is nol considerad for caleulating the tatal number of non-independant
directors. The tenure of one part-time official director ended on 05.09.2011. Thus, after induction of 2 independent
directors on 27, 12.201 1, the Company is having 6 independent directors. Therefore the Company is complying with the
provision of Clause 49 of the listing agreement pertaining to Composition of Board. wee.f. 27.12.2011.

4. Board Meatings:

The Company held eleven Board Mestings duning the financial year with 8 maximum gap of 73 days during two
consecutive Board Meetings with valld quorum balng present in all meetings. The Company has complied with the
pravisions of Companias Act, 1956 in respact of service ol notice of Board Meetings, recording of all proceeding of the
meelings including circular rmluliuﬂa’rn the Minutes Boak.

5. In-house Share Rogistry:

The Company has its own In-house Share Regisiry located at Iits Regisierad Office at NALCO Bhawan, P11, Nayapalli,
Bhubaneswar-751061. It handles all share relaled ac |1i||tl_ﬂ_§_|:_|§;|-pih physical and electronic) segments in compliance with
the SEHI Clrcular No. DAC [.‘:!FITTEFEiH*’! 520 22002 '

8. Share Transfer Committes:

The Shara Transfer Committee (S }jm snder Clausa V| C of Clause 40 of listing agreement considers and
approves issUe of new share certificales in case of tom/mutllated/defaced/lostirematerialisation of shares and also
transfarliransmission of shares covered during that STC. For quick disposal of requests, Company Secretary has been
suthorizad by the Board to gonsider only the tases of the ransferlransmission of shares. During the year ended 31st
Margh, 2012 shara transferftransmission ind (ssue of new share cerificates arising out of tomimutilated/
defaced/lostirematerlalisation were approved 7 times through Share Transter Committee and Company Secratary
approved mfmmmmrmuﬁhﬂnnm times.
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13.

Redressal of Investors Grievances:

All complainta/grievances relating to share transfers, ransmissions, demal/ remal of shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates, paymen! of dividend ete. were altended and resolved within 2-3 days Ume of their receipl. Delails of these
complaintsl grievances, share translers, electronic holding of shares (both NSDL and COSL) were pul up in avery Audit
Commitlee Meeting (Audil Commitlee is also entrusied with the job of looking into redressal of investors grievances).,

On 3rd June 2011, SEBI introduced & web based compliant redrass system SCORES. It enables the investars to lodge
their complaints on-ling and the Compantes shall redress the grievance and report on-ling. The stalus of the complaints
can also be viewed on-line by the investors. After introduction of SCORES. NALCO recelved 8 complaints and all of them
were redressed an-line.

Daily Reconciliation of Listed and Pald up Capital:

The reconciiabon of physical and demalerialised shares with the tolal shares issued by the Company is camed oul on
daily basis. The Company has adequate transparant systems and procedures to carry out the above reconciliation. The
Company has complled with the provisions of Deposltones Aot, 1896 and the bye-laws framed thersunder by the
Depositorles with regard to reconcillation of records of dematerialised securities with all securities Issued by the
Company.

Dematerialisation /Rematerialisation:

The dematenalisation/reamatenalisation requests recaived from participants {DPs) of the Depositones (NSDL/CDSL ) are
altended immedlately. The raquests are confirmed within B-10 days of receipt of the physical documents as against 15
days from the date of receipt stipulated by the Depositorles and 21 days from the date of uploading the Individual requests
stipulated by SEBI. The Company has duly complied with the provisions of Depositaries Acl, 1986 and the rules and
regulations macde thereunder with regard lo dematarialsiatlon/rematerialisation of sacurities.

During the year under raview, the DP operations of NALCO were Inspected by the authorized Inspecting officials of NSDL
and COSLon 21.06.2011 and 22.02.2012 respeclively and as per the inspection reports il Is obsarved thal no deviations
wera noticed by the inspecting officials.

Payment of Corporate Cash Benefils to the Shareholders:

The provislons of the Companles Act, 1956 are duly complied with regard o payment of dividend in lime to shareholders
after declaration and wheraver necessary rights to dividends were kepl In abeyances, pending registration of transfer of
sharas! pending final settlemeant of legal suits. The Company had paid an Interim dividend of ¥ 0.80 par share on the face
value of T 5 per share on 30.03.2012 and has recommended a final dividend of T 0.10 per share for the financial year
2011-12 making tta totalof T 1 pershare.

Transferto Investor Education and Proteclion Fund:

In terms of Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1856 and the Investor Education and Proteation Fund (Awareness and
Protection of investors) Rules, 2001, the Company has transferred the following unpaidi/unclaimed interest and dividend
to the Invastor Education and Protection Fund an expiry of T years penod from the date of geclaralion/payment:

Transfer of unpaidfunclaimed Interest of14.5% NCDs

Period Amount {T) Date of Transfer

26.03.2004 10 25.09.2004 85,321/ 21.10:2011
Transfar of unpaid/unclaimed Dividend

Financial year Amount (T} Date of Transfer

2003-2004 6.17.740/- 21.10.201

2004-2005 (Interim Dividend) 4,04 016(- D:-"_GE 2012

Corporate Governance, Business coda of cond uctand Ilﬁﬁ

The Board of Directors has adopted the guldelines on Corporgts -_ &, model businesscode of conduct and ethics
for Board members and senior managament, prescribed by DPE. The ﬁnﬁ;ﬁ siness conduct is clrr.:ymnﬂn all Board

members and senior management at the beginning of the HHMM and tampliance of the same ls affifmed by them
annisally,

Whistle Blower Policy:

During the year, the Board has adopted whistle blower policy for mrnpbataﬁh repart to the management about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of conduct or ethics policy. Company Secretary is the compliance officer.
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Insider Trading Regulations:

The Compary has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 with regard to disclosures by the directors, officers and designated employees and has
malnlained proper records required under these reguiations, The Company has also framed code of internal procedures
and conduct as per the regulations.

Legal Notica:

During the year under review, the Company has not received any legal natice from any Statutory Autharities like SEBI,
Stock Exchanges and Registrar of Companies for any shortcomings/daviations in the securities transactions.

Public Deposils:

The Company has nataccepted any Public Deposits under Companies (Acoeptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 durlng the
year Lnder review. The Company has neither issued any GDR/ADR nor any convertible instrument during the yearunder
review.

M/s. Sunita Mohanty & Associates
(Company Secrataries)

Plage : Bhubaneswar CS Jyotirmoy Mishra, Pariner
Date . Bth June, 2012 {C.P.Na-8022)
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Annexure-lV
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS

The global Alumina & Aluminium industry in 2011 was affected by diverse multifaceted econamic, palitical, structural and
fundamenltat factors that had a bearing on the price af Aluminlum and the mechanism of price determination in Aumina,

ALUMINA

Curning the year 2011, the world consumption of Alumina was 88,122 million MT against the world praduction of 9004 million MT
thereby showing a surplus of 0.918 milllon MT. The world Alumina producton and consumption grew by approx. 10% and 8.6%
respectively during 2011 as compared to 2010, The Chinese alumina production registerad an increase of aboul 22.3% over
2010 production.

The alumina market continues to be oversupplied even now, with a global surplus of around 350,000 MT in G1 2012, It is
expected that due 1o new alumina capacity addillans, production creeps and announced smeller shuldowns, this surplus will
increase furthes during H2 2012 and can only ba negatad by potential produclion cuthacks or potential inorease of Chinese
imports. However, the proportion of imported alumina supply against the lotal supply In China has decreased significantly:
China's import of bauxite will increase significantly in the eoming years whareas the iImport of alumina will witness a decreasing
trend. Analysts and Industry expers forecast alumina refining cuts at high cost refinenes, which may support prices.

ALUMINIUM

During the year 2011, the warld consumption of Aluminium was 44 88 milllon MT against the world production of 45.54 milllion
MT thereby showing a surplus  of 0,68 million MT. The world Aluminium production and consumption graw by appros. 8.68% and
5.68% respectively during 2011 as compared to 2010, The Chinese aluminium production and consumphion registered an
increase of about 12.8 % & 14.5% over 2010 preduction & consumption respactively.

2. STRENGTHS ANDWEAKNESS
Strengths
As reported in last year's report, skilled and committed manpower, good quality balixite reserves, efficlent technology, varlous
well planned and ideally located Infrastructure facilities, efficient oparations, manufacture of good guality alumina and aluminium
products at competitive cost, excellent cuslomer service, prudential financial management and compnitment to good Corparate
Governance practices in all facets ol operations are some of the key strengths of your Company and your Directors are
committed o bank upon these strengths for the sustained growth of your Company.

Weakness

E.hnrtage of coal, limited product range, escalaling production cost including that of labour, fluctuations in the LME prices as well
as in exchange rates are some of the weaknesses that continug to affect the profitability of your Company.

3. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Opportunities
Opportunity exists in the domestic markel as the per-capita consumption of alumirium is sel 1o Increase in the counlry.
Significant opportunity also exists for exporl of aturmina and aluminium to neighboring countries becausa of their low production
levels.
Your Company is looking for opportunities in metal seotors othsr than aluminium to hedge its gerformince from the cyclic market
scanarnio of aluminium sector.  With the above objective, it has enterad into understanding with Hintlustan Copper Lid. to explore
business avenues in copper and other minerals in India and abroad.
Causlic Soda project ls being contemplated in JV with existing major chioro-alkall manufaciure for an effective backward
integration.
With the formation of NPCIL-NALCO Power Comparny Limited, & JV between NALCO and NPCIL, your Company has entered
into power seclor asan independent power producer. -
Considering the future regulatory requirement and s commitment (o Rarmess renewable energy. your Company is if process to
setup wind power and sokar power plants. .
Threats
China iz likely to keep giving tax rebates to exparters of semi-finished mﬁmuﬂmﬂus yﬂar!nﬂnmmh;ﬁmmﬂiﬂ
such products may flood the Indian market. This will make exparts of des am products fram Indladifficult. The energy cnsls
in several arsas could result in cuts in produchion alving & edga o cers self-sufficient in s enargy

requirements. The price outlook will aise be negalively affected (f the planned tapacity mmdumttah&plum Powerisona
of the major inpuls for Aluminium production and it constitutes abolt 40% of the production tost. Subistantial incresse in costof
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coal in recent past has put additional cost pressure on aluminium producers in Indla. On the other hand, the availability of low-
cost aluminium from smeliers in Wesl Asia is expected to impact Indian smellers, for the production capacity has

increased considerably in gulf countries in the pas! decade dus lo cheap gas from oll refineries making the reglon ideal to sst up
aluminium plants.

The other threal parceplions include competiion from scrap imports, substitule malerials particularty plastics, 5%
tariff differential between virgin, sorap imponsof aluminium  and increasing raw matedal costs.

Constralnts in fuel supply and rise In input matenal cost are also consldered a5 maljor threats for aluminium producers
lke NALCO.

4. SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE
The datailed segment wise information s furmnished balow:

Chemicals (Alumina) Aluminium Power Unallocable# | Total
Tiner Share tincr. | Share: Tince | Share | Tincr| Share | Tiner
MetSales & Operaling revenug 2 656 28% 4 968 52% 1.978 20% " _ | 6,500°
FBIT 590 9% {16) -1% 287 24%, 337| 28% 1,198
Capital Employed 2. 706 22% 3180 25% 1.546 12% | 5132 41% | 12,564
ROCE (%) 22% -1% 18% 7% 10%
PBIT Margins (%) 22% - 15% 18%

# Includes Cash balance and Capilal works in progress of expansion units
* Internal Transfers have been eliminated.

Segment-wise Revenue, Results and Capital Employed:

The segment-wise revenue, resulls and capital employed are placed as Additional Infformation toaccourts. The analysis ol each
element is given balow:

a) Segmant revenue {income)

Income from chemical, metal and power segments has gone up by 28%, 2% and 11% respectively, as compared to the previous
year. The revenue of chemical segments has increased bacause of higher sales realization and higher quantity of external sales.
The revenue of metal segment has increased because of higher sales realization as compared o previous year.  The revenue of
power segmenl hasimproved because of higher inter segmenl (transfer) price of T 3.19 per unil s against ¥ 2.67 per unil for the
previous yesr,

b} Segmentresulls (profitloss)

The profit from chamical segment has gone up by T 140 crore (31%) as comparad to previous year, mainly because of higher
transfer prce from ® 11,278 to ¥ 13,474, higher external sales volume from 685,771 MT o 842,805 MT and highar expart
realization from 15,850/MT 1o T17,821/MT,

The profit from power ssgment has gone down by T 36 crore mainly because of higher operating cost due to higher coal
and fue! prices.

Thereis nﬁgﬁlﬂmﬂ‘hﬂ?nﬂtal hﬂmuﬂanffﬂghm trahsfer price of both alumina and power from Chemical and power sagment
by about 378 crore and higher operating costs on cartion and fuel oll.

¢} Segment capital employed

Capital employed of chemical segment has increased by T 1,215 crore mainly as a resull of capitalization of 4th stream of
alumina plant. The capital employed of metal and power segment has Increased due capitalization of remailning assets under
construction of 2nd phase expansion. Un-allocated common assets have gone down by T 1031 crore because of capitalization of

4thstream of Refinery unit:
S, OUTLDOK

Domestic Market Outlook: :

Some Brownfisld and Greenfisld p are likaly 1o ba commissioned and coma on-siream which would cause & surplus

production siiiation and country's alu!ﬂi‘ﬂﬂm;ﬂﬂtﬁﬁuﬂ capacity is expacted o rize from around 1.87 million tonnes in 2011-12
to 3 millian tonnes innext few years.

The Domestic consumplion s likely 1o with increase in usage of aluminium in varous applications and increasing the
par-capita eonsumption from vry low leval s compared to other couniries. Thi industry in India is polsed to grow at 7-8% per

year. The major drivers for this growth would be fram powes generation & transmission, construction and automobile sectors.
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Intemational Qutfock

The prices of aluminium melal In the intemational market luctuated substantially during the year 2011 due to weak global
economic growth and European cnsis. The London Metal Exchange (LME) prices weakened during the year 2011 and fell froma
high of USD 2772 (on 28.04.2011) to USD 1945 {on 21.12.2011). During Jan'12 & Feb'12 LME price showed some signs of
improvement due to announcemants of producation curtaliments by some of the major aluminium producers aaross the globe
which provided a boost 1o the price. However, LME prices startad declining since March'12 and have bean on a downward trend
mainly due to Euro Zone crisis.

Aluminium producers are facing additionat challenge in the short-term dus W0 over capacity. high Input costs, carbon lax and high
inventories, In view of these factors, 10-15% of world primary aluminium capacity s expected to be curalied i the world
alurninium prices remained at the current level. Some of the world's leading producers like Russia's UC Rusal, Norsk Hydro,
Alcoa Inc and Rio Tinto have already announced production curlailments.

Deaspite failing prices and worries on demand front, analysts project consumption ta nse by 7%. Global growth for aluminium is
expected in the asrmspacs industry by 10% and automobile industry by 8%. This ks an imporiant differance to the downturn in
2008 when automotive demand coltapsed, Growth is expected in transporiation, packaging and construction sectars as well.
Demand cutlook In Japan and USAds betfter than in Europa and both countries are expecied to outperform Europe.

The aluminum industry in the Gulf Cooperation Council {GCC) countries is gradually becoming a leading global contribulor, The
UAE, Oman, Bahrain, and Qatar are all home to some of the largest aluminium smelters in Lhe world. The GCC area is polsed to

become a primary aluminium production hub with the expeclation that the regon will contribute to aver 13 per cent of the world's
aluminum production by 2013.

6. RISKS&CONCERNS
The fluctuations in US DollarfEuro, rishng oil and coal prices, power shortages and weak growth in traditionally strong economies,
dabt contagion, rise in nterest rates, drop in credit rating of cerain developed economies and its negative affect on the glebal
economy in ganeral are causes for concem.

Dedary in establishmant of greenhield smalter in India s a major concern in achisving the goals set out by your Company in [is

Corporata Plan,

Aluminium, not being in the prionty sector, would be adversely affected by the increase in cost of coal. For viability of Greenfisid
Smelter, allotment of captive coal block has become a necessity.

Detay in establishment of Greenfield smeaiter in India and the recent developments in coal project of the identified Coal Mining
Company are also causes of concemn with respect to growth plans of your Company.

Risk Managemant

The approved “Integrated Approach for Enterprise Risk Managemen!” policy Is under implementation in all process units as wall
as in operational areas of your Company. Your Cormnpany also follows the DPE guidetines on Risk Management, which inter alia
stipulate that the Board should ensure the integration and alignment of the Risk Managemant System with corparate and
operational objectives and also thal risk management s undertaken as a part of normal business practice and nol as a separate
task at settimes

Accordingly, the Board of your Company constituted a Risk Management Comirittes: dufing the year under report for assisting
the Board In fulfilling its corporate governance obligations In oversesing the responsibilities with regard 1o the identification,
evaluation and miligation of operational, strategic and extemal environment risks with overall respansitillity for monitoring and
approving the risk policies and associated practices for your Company, The first meeting of the Risk Managament Committes
was held on 14.03.2(12 and the Committee reviewed the varous Internal and external risk fiac with operation of
individual production units of yaur Company and suggestad various amwmmuﬂunnwﬂmmmﬁrmﬂdgﬂing:um risks.

7. INTERNALCONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Birectors are pleased to inform that NALCO has well established internal contral systems, commensurate with the nature
and size of its operations. Your Company has entrusted its intermal audit fundtion 1o thres repited and well expenienced external
Charfered Accountants’ firms for objective and impartial assessment of ils financial and non-financial iransactions carried during
the year under report. The intemat audit reports submitted by the auditors are discussed al functional directors level in the first
instance and then material observations are submitted to the Audit Committee for Ils review, analysis and advice to further
strengthen the internal control systems covering all material eor rojs nancial controls and complhance controls, Action laken
reports on the chservations of Audit Committes an internal audit re are regularly submitted to the Audit Committee.
8. DISCUSSION ONFINANCIAL PERFORMANCEWITH ALPERFORMANCE

Details on financiai performance with respect to operational p&rfnmmufymr%mnf aregiven Inﬂmnmuﬁiﬁ' H.epan
The net profit during the yvear has decreased by 21% over ths prmﬂodﬁ'm The =ales realization both from: a5 will as
Domestie market has gone up as compared 1o pravious year. The averags export reafization pst MT of Alumina and matal
increased by 12% and 10% respectively over the pravious year. Average reaflization from domestic metal sale also increased by
8% over the previous year. The operating expenses of the Company have | sad by 22% over the previous year mainly dus
to substantial increase In prices of raw material, coal and fuel ol mmﬂnnmlﬁmmtﬁfmmumnn.

o ' =
a5 - F R




2
l.!.

et /AN NALCO.

9. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF
PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Human Resources

In pursuit of HR excellshce by aligning HR with the Mission and Vision of your Company and also sligning with Vision 2020
documeants, the HR & Training functions have been re-onented accordingly. “Sarjana” Suggestion Schere has been revised
during the year In order to encourage the employees of your Company o participate and come out with new suggestions and
innovative |deas related to iImprovemant in the existing system of Production, Process and Productivity. 442 employees have
been awarded under the “Sarjana” Scheme during the yvear

Total manpower strength of your Company as on 31.03.2012 was 7705 as against 7714 as on 31.03.2011. The breskup of
employes strength is givan below
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In Pasition Ason21.03.2012 As on 31.03.201
A, Executives 1851 1884
B. Supervisory BE0 83g
C. Skilled/Highly Skilled 4014 3977
D. Unskilled/Sami-Skilled 980 1014
Tatal 7705 7714

Training & Development

Human Resources Development is the key for the success ol your Company. Keeping this in mind and the targets set, functional
and developmeantal training needs are idaentified fram mulliple sources, pnmary being, the competency related needs, secondly,
neads ansing from organizational requirements and finally departmental / sectional imparatives. Emphasis is baing placed on
specific position related training needs and there Is an altampl lo customize programmes, 1o the extent possible. Training
effactiveness evaluation is also carried out In fine with the requirement of quality management systems, to measure the banslits
emanating fram the action.

The training slatistics for the year 2011-12 vis-a-vis previous year |s giveh below:

Category 201112 2010-11
Persons Mandays Persons Mandays
Execulives 3.128 10476 2,630 B.114
Non-Execulives 4,865 10,719 5.840 15,360
Total 18493 21,196° 8,379 23474
* Works out 1o 2.65 mandays peremployee exceeding the target of 2.5 mandays per employee as per Mol for 2011-12.

10. CORFPORATE PLANAND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Corporate Plan

Your Company intently pursues the Corporats Plan and Vision 2020 adogpted in 2009-10. The main focus areas, asanshrined in

the Vision Statement are metal and energy sectors. The plan vis-a-vis achievement in all its business activities is being reviewed

regularty and corrective actions have been Inllisted.

Business Devolopmant

Notwithstsnding the fact that your Company started its growth and diversification initiatives only recently, it has been able to

achieve reasonable progress on some projects in hand. The progress made in some of the major initiatives are given below:

a) Alumina Refinery in Gujarat; Your Company has emernged the sole qualified bidder for setting up of glurmna refinary based
ofl bauxite deposits in Kulch district, Gujarat. Project office has been opened in Ahemedabad to take up pre-project
activilles, Project agresment and other agreements for sourcing raw materials for the projectare under finalization,

b) Muclear Power Plant AJNVG between your Company and NPCIL in the name of “NPCIL-NALCO Power Company Lid " was
incorparated on 02/03.2012 fo deveiop Ka JAtamic Power Station (KAPS)- 3 & 4. First Board meeting of the JV
company was h:ﬂdatﬂhuhanmrm 1Elh M' L2012

c) Smeiter project in Odisha: As atvisad by the State Governmeant, the Company has identified a suitable aiternative location
ifr Sundargarh district in Odisha fi or the smelter and power project. 1L s expected that water for proposed project would be
wﬁmn by the State Governmant.

'd) Mine and Refinery in Andhra Fﬂm No field ectivity is being taken up in the area surrounding the- bauxite
mines in Gudam and KR Konda biogks inAndhra Pradesh, due to sepurity concemn. Only saft CSR activities are being taken

ugin the area.
&) '2nd Wind Power Plant: Your Company s irr advanced stags of selection of the wind farm developer to set up another
50 MW wirid pﬁﬂwpﬂnﬂthyﬁiuﬁﬁd olentia liﬁelnlndin.

—— a6
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Further, a consultant has been engaged for camying out feasibility study in the mined out area of Damanjodi bauxite mine, for
selting up of another wind power plan! for the Company.

fy Solar Power Plant: in order to meet its renewable purchase obligalion (RPO), your Company is pursuing to setup a 15 MW
solar power project, Tor which it has already prepared the feaalbility report. The proposed Solar Power Project has been
registerad with Rajasthan Renewable Energy Corporation Lid. (RRECL ).

11. COMPUTERISATIONACTIVITIES

Your Company relies significanlly on Infarmation and Communication Technology (ICT) o strengthen and boost Its business
processes in all functlional areas. Starting with Geo-statistics and Mines Planning dpplication in 1982, your Company has had
extensive use of ICT tohelp deliver its stralegic business objectves.

With implementation of ERP, the Company has migrated all its major legacy applications inta the SAP environment across the
organization covering Malerials & Contracts (MM), Sales & Distnbution (SD), Production Planning (PP} with module Advanced
Planning & Optimization (APO), Quality, Finance & Controlling (FICO) and Human Resource Manageament (HR) modules. In the
area of Maintenance Management, your Company uses the Ramco e Apps maintenance module.

Your Company has strengthened |ls data pipelines both 1o the Internet and o the Works Locations with faull tolerant high
bandwidth links, to ensure un-interrupted data connectivity. This aiso enables tele-presence activities between Corporate Office
and Works locations of your Company. The Local Area Networks (LAN) at all the Works sites and Corporate Office will be
replaced with high bandwidth and fault tolerant state of the art networks, which will support data as well as broadband
applications. Zonal Offices have been linked with MPLS VPN netwark.

New technologles like server vinuallzation for enterprise services, link load balancihg for intemet links etc. have bean
implemented. There are plans to use bandwidth reservalion for intemet and wide area links, RFID technology for file tracking.
and other uses like assel and matenal tagging, vehicle racking elc. Video copferencing has been popularized and the
infrastructure is being further enhanced lor higher avallability for conferencing. so as to make video conferencing a handy tool in
day ta day working Towards technical compliance to the intermet world, your Company is taking steps to migrata the internet
facing elements to IPvE technology.

In the area of e-governance, your Company has fully complied with the recent Central Publlc Procurement Portal (CPPP)
initiative of the Govemment. whersby all lenders and awarded contracts of your Company are published In the CPPP site.
Procurement of & biometric based attendance and access contral solution s In progress. E-tendering for export sales is
cantinuing and has been implemantsd with security measures like Server Secure Socket Layer (SSL) certificate and and user
PKI Digital certificate. Road map and action plan for e-tendering In the Materials and Services procurement arena has besn
drawn up and soon web based procuement processes will ba implemented.
12. TOTALQUALITY MANAGEMENT

Cuality Management Systems at Alumina Refinery, Vizag Port Faciliies | Smelter, CPF, Mines and associsted Corporate
functions have successfully undergone two nos. ske-menthly Sunvelilance Audits each by the Cerlification Body Le. Mis DNV
and the Certification of the units to the latest Quality Management Standard IS0 9001 : 2008 i maintained. During the year
under report, 4 Training Programmes for Integrated Management Systerm were conducted with the help of extemal faculty. The
Apax Manuals of IMS at Alumina Rafinery, Smelter, CPP & Mines were issued after adequacy audit by Cantification Body.

47 Quality Clreles (QCs), including a Tew nawly formed OCs of your Company have completed 40 projects during the ',i-aar.
16 QCs from your Company participated in National Convention on Qualily Circles organsed by QCF] al Hyderabad in
December,2011. Two QCs of your Company were placed In the highest category (Rar-Excellence), QC "Srulani” from Smeller
Plant and QC “Pragati” from Alumina Refinery, parficipated in Inlemational Quality Cirle Convention organised In Tokyo,
Japan, Under the Kaizen Schems, total 18 Kaizens have been completed durng the year 2011-12. One trsining prograrmme for

Faailitators of QCs, QIP's, Kaizens wera conducted during the year with the help of extemal faculty. Fifteen numbers of in-house
training programmes with inlemal faculty were conductad on OC, Kalzen Awareness & broader coincepts of TQM/ TPM including
specific Imining programmes on 55 Basics,

In Smelter Plant, Lean Six Sigma Infliative, Le. a combined approach of Higher Lavel Problem Salving Six Sigma Managemenl
and Lean Management, could resultin thirfeen completed projects in process areas like Cast House, Carbon Plant, Rolling
Plant and Polline during the year under repart. 5S activities were started during the year in Alumina Refinery, CPP and Mines as
a part of Lean Management activilies.

The Company organised the All-Odisha CQuality Circle C i
s considered as a flagship event in the Cuallty movement of the
arganisations in the State participated.

13. SAFETY &HEALTH

Environment, Safety and Health are three vital systams in any ] -_ | hmvil SuCoess and sustmiﬂnn.’fﬂwﬁm“pany
as a responsible corporate entity, has given utmast impertance 1o Ilu Ery
inception and the Company's performance n this regard remaln
All the eperating. units af your Company are cerified 1o DHEAE—‘IB%‘!‘.EJET ﬁpﬂlpmumﬁl Health and Safety Management
Systems for Ocoupational Health and Safety Manaoement The mahﬁbﬂly:iﬁl during Lha year under repart are:

ril 2011 for the 16th year in succession. This Convention
Qdisha, 30 Quallty Clrales! TPM Circles from different
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s M's DGFASL], Ministry of Labour & Employment, Mumbal have completed Extermal Safety audit of all operating units of
your Campany and the fallow up of recommendation [ in progress.

e Al units of your Company have on site emargency plan in place and to check responsa mock drills were conducted regularly
as per statulory guidelines.

e Al units of NALCO provide Safety Code for Contractors aleng with the Waork Orders, ensure [ssue and use of quality PPE,
provide safaty Induction training to all contract labour before starting of jobs, lssue Safety Guidelines befora Issue of gale
passes to the contractors, provide Safe Operaling Pracedures (SOP) for all types of jobs and adopt variety of parmits for
different types of works in the Plant such as Work Permit, Electrical Work Permit, Confined Space Permit Height Parmil
ale.

o Regular safety Inspection, annual safety audt, external safety audliis, OHSAS Audits are conducted to find out the lapses
and lake corrective action.

& During the year 5538 Employses of your Company and 4522 conlract workers undarwent PME cheack.

* For developing awareness on Environment, Safety and Haalth, your Company observed and celebrated funchons like

World Environment Day, Vanamaholsay, Chamical Disaster Prevention Day, Ozone Day, National Safety Day/\Week,
Eledirical Safety Wesk, Road Safety Week logether with publication of Bulletins, Newsletier and Annual journal in this

regard.
¢ There were 5 reportable accidents and one fatal accident cccurred during the year 2011-12 as against 12 reporiable
accidents and 2 fatal acoidents recorded in the previous year.

14. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGICAL CONSERVATION, RENEWABLE ENERGY

DEVELOPMENT, FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONSERVATION.

Environmental Protection & Conservation

*  During the year all oparating units ol your Compaiy have operated with valid "Consanl to oparate”, valid Authorizations and
valid licenses under different statutory ohligations appiicable to the organization.

* All operating units of NALCO have adopted Zero Discharge with respect lo their waste water managemeanl as well as
sewage waste water manegement. The treated waste water were recycled and reused in the process’ horticuliure
pUrposes.

=  For monitoring waste water guallty, stack emission, ambient alr quality adequate laboratory facllities along with instaliation
of moniloring equipments have been provided inall is aparating unils.

= Automatic Weathar Monltoring Station procured and has bean installed for monitaring weather parameters al Mines. Same
s already in plece at other units ol NALCO.

»  During 2011-12 CPP and Alumina Refinery utilized 60 58% & 39 89% ash respeciively for different uses like Brck making,
Agriculiure, Cemeant making, Filling low lying areas, dyke raising, filling of abandoned stane guarries elc.

= Ahazardous waste landfill of 40,000 MT capacitles has been commissioned in Smelter at a cost of 2 4 crores to disposs of
the hazardous wastes which wers lefl oul after recyciing and reuse insite the plant.

= Acomprehensive water and waste water study has been carriad out by Mis IIT Roorke to streamline the water and waste
wﬁermmmgmm uﬁﬁﬂmlnﬂw plant and lar water consenvation at Smetter and Township of S&P Complex.

» CPP have taken up ana COM (Clean Development Mechanism) project to reduce carbon emissian. The project is "Heal
tecovery from CBD (Continuous Blow Down}and rautilizing in the de-gerators of the boiter.”

= CPP has ahen up a pilol projsct for carbon sequastering by alaas. The construction work for the same Is in progress and
expectad o be commissioned in 201213,

= Around 18;00.000 m3 of irested industrial drain water &1, 70, 15,020 m3 of ash pond overfiow reated water recycled back
tothe Plant and utiiised in ash disposal systemal CPP,

» 330 KL of Turbirs ofl was reclaimed, fitered and again recycled back to the system for re-use and 13.55 KL of Fuel oll was
reclaimed and re-utilised in the system st CPP.

=  Newvanetiesof ormamental seasonal species have been introduced and successiully grown in mines climabic conditions.

Technological Consarvation

As reported in |ast year's report, your Company

fallowing technicil collaboration with the-global lea

was signed with Aluminium Pechin khmﬂtﬂﬂ

Technical Assistance (CTA)of AP for s |

Eﬁrmw Dovelopment

As a ﬁlm::ﬁf diversification plans ﬂl‘lﬂ green hﬂﬁﬂm lowards promoting sustainable development by hamessing the

uncorventional energy source, your Campany has been endeavouring to enter into energy sector and unconventional energy

souree, Towards this direction, the Boand approved the investment of T 274 crore for establishing 50 MW Wind Power Plant In

Andhra Pradesh, whith is under commissioning. Yaur Company is In advanced stage of finalization of the wind farm developer to
setup yet another 50 hwwpmuﬁantm awind potential state in India.

E 3 _

the then latest echnology AP-18 of Aluminium Pechiney, France,

1 Alurmina Refining and Smelting. The Technical Collaboration Agreement

‘,ﬁrﬂimmlﬁﬁquarm;r gxtaended from time to ime to avail the Continued
tion of Phase-| and Phase-| | expansion projects of your Company.
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Besides, a new JV company between your Company and NPCIL in the name of *NPCIL-NALCD Pawer Company Ltd.” was
incarparated on 022032012 1o develop1400 MW Kakarpar Atomic Power Statlon (KAFS)~3 &4.

In order to meet its renewable purchase obligation (RPQ), your Company Is pursuing to set upa 15 MW solar power project, for
which it has already prepared the leasibility repor.

Foreign Exchange Conservation

Your Company's Forex eamings for the year 2011-12was T 2558 crore and Forex outgo for the same year was T 328 orore,
ANCILLARY DEVELOPMENT

Yaur Company confinues o make seamiess afforis to encourage MSME Units through Its ancillary developiment programimes
and suppor thesaunits through speaal incentives.

Ason 3tsl March, 2012, 52 number of MSME Units have bean awarded Ancillary Siatus by the Company and the Company has
placed orders to the tune of T58.20 crore on these units in the yesr 2011-12,

In arder to encourage local entreprensgurs and improve orders for Ancillary Units, your Company participates In various
exhititions for axhibiting its reguirement of Spares and manulacturing items and also for technical and commercial guidance.
Your Company alsa sponsors vanous MSME exhibitions. Racently, one MSME exhibition was conducted at Angul premises —in
callaboration with MSME Directorate and Govt. of Odisha, which was well altended and appreclated.

As a part of development of aluminium based down stream products, a joint venlure company with |DEO, namealy "Angul
Aluminium Park’ has been satup induly, 2010. The prnp::-_.a.ad park will be set up over an area of 204 acres in 1si phase. I_=:_1r this
purpose social-economic survey of nearby revenue villages and work for preparation of DPR of the projec! are al hand. [n
response lo EOI to gauge the marketl Interest in the park, more than 50 proposals in downstream and anclilary sectors have been
recaivad.

IMPLEMENTATION OF SOCIALACCOUNTABILITY STANDARD (SA-8000)

Az a continuation of fulfillment of the requirements of SAB000 Standard, the following actions have been taken:

¢ Re-Certification (SAB000:2008 Standard) of corporaiz office has been completed successfully by Cattification Body.

< Surveillance Audit for Corporate Office, Mines,; Refinery, Smeller and CPP conducted successiully.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THERIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company as a responsible corporate atizen and a Pubiie Authority continues to believe in practicing good corporate
governance, allaining maximum level ol transparency, accountabllity and equity in'all facets of Its operatlons and in all its
interactions with all its stakeholders viz- shareholders, employess, governmant, cuslomers; vendars | bankers & society at large
and also believes in providing accass 1o information under its control to tha Indian citizans under the provisions of the Righl to
InformationAct, 2065 (RT1Act),

With this objectve in mind, your Company s committed to implament the provisions of the RTHACt as well as the direcives-of
cancemed authorties of the Governmeant of India

During the year 2011-12, your Company perodically reviewed and updated the proactive disciosures published under Section
4{1){b}and also the directives issued by the Central Information Commission under Section 19{8)(a) of the RT1 Act in the RTI
segment of your Company's website “www.nalcoindia.com".

The status of Information requests recelved by your Company and appeals made under the RTHAct during the year 2011-12 s
givenin the following lable: J '

15.

16.

17,

18.

Opaning | Received | No.of No.of |Moofrequests| No. of
Balance as| during the| requests | requests! | serviced! | requests
on year |transferred | 1st appeals | 1st& 2nd | appeals
Information 01.04.2011 tocther | rmojected | appeals | pending for
Requests/Appeals Public |under varlous| disposed | disposal as
Authorities | provisions | off during |on 31.03.2012
of the Act 2011-12
Irformation réquests 33 233 01 a8 208 18
recaived by PIO
15t Appeal before Appeliate N 42 T\IH 03 39 Ni
Autharity of the Company el
2nd Appeal befare CIC, New Daihi| 01 o7 WA i = NA a7 o

Sustainable Development Activitias

Budget provision for five nos. of identified Sustainable Development pmiﬂ#!'hnﬁﬁ&an made and the nmjmtsﬂmﬁamaﬁ to be
completed as per commitments in the Mol with Govt. of India

Preparation of Sustainable Development Report has been taken Up Inhﬂmﬂhwm of & Consultancy omanisation
for preparing the Report as per Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guidelines S inthe procass.

U j—
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AUDITORS' REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS _
MATIONALALUMINILM COMPANY LIMITED,

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of NATIONAL ALUMINIUM COMPANY LIMITED, as at 315t March, 2012,
the Profit and Loss Statement and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, both
annexad hereto. These financial slatements are the responsibility of the Company's Management. Qurraesponsibility 1s to
gxpress an opimion on thesa financial statements based on our audit,

2. We conducted our audil in accordance with audiling standards generally accepited In India. Those Slandards require that
wé plan and perform the audil lo obtain reasanable assurance aboul whather the financial statermants are free of malerial
misstatement. An audil includes examining, on a tesl basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the
financial statements. An audll also Includes assessing the accounting principles used and the signllicant eslimales made
by the Menagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial stalement presantation. Wa belleve that our audil provides
areasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 as amended by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
{Amendmeanl) Ordars, 2004, issuad by the Cenlral Government in terms of Saclion 227 (4 A) of the Companies Act, 1856,
we give in the Annexure a statemeant on the matiers specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further lo our comments in the Annexure referred lo In paragraph (3) above, we report thal:

a  We have obtalned all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and bellef were necesaary
for the purposes of our audit;

b. Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kKepl by the Company so far as appears fram our
gxamination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreament
with the books of account;

d. [n our opinion, the Balance Sheal, Profit and Loss Statement and Cash Flow Slatemen! deail with by this report
comply with the Accounting Standards referred lo In Section 211 (3c) of the CompaniesAct, 1956;

g Interms of Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Company Affairs, Notification No GSR B29 (E)
datad 21st Ootobar, 2003, Government Companias are exem pt from the applicability of provisions of Section 274 (1)
{g)ofthe Companias Act, 1956;

L. Inourapinion and to best of our infermation and aceording to the explanations given to us, the sald accounts read with
significan! anmuntlnn policies give the information required by the Companies Act, 1958, in the manner so required
and givealrue and fair view in conlormity with the accounting principles genarally accepted in India:

1, Inthe case of the Balance Sheal, of the state of affairs of the Company asat31stMaraoh, 2012;
. Inthe case of the Profits Loss Statemant of the profitof the Company for the year ended on that date;and
lil. [nihe case of the Cash Flaw Statement, of tha cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

For Agasti & Associates For C.K. Prusty & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN -313043E FRN 323220E
(CA. M. Bandyopadhyay] (CA. C.K. Prusty)
Partner (M %bﬂﬁgﬂ-ﬁ} Partner (M.No,057318)
Place - Hﬂwﬂa{hb
Dated : 21" May' 2012
— V'] poa
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH (3) OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE)

(@) The Company has maintainad proper records showing full particulars, ingluding guantitative details and situation of
fixed assals;

(b) MNon-movable assals have baan physically verifisd by the Managament at an interval of three years, which in our
epinionis reasonable having regard lo the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

All the movable assets have been physically verified by a Firm of Chartared Accountanis dunng the year,
As informed to us, no material discrepancies batwean book records and physlcal asset have been noticed;

(e} Inouropinionand according 1o the information and explanations glven o us, the Company has not disposed off a
substanlial part of lixed assats during the year and the going concern assumplion of the Company has nol been
affected.

(a) Inrespectofits inventory, 8s explained to us, all Inventories excepl stocks relating lo expansion project, stocks lylng
with third parties and stocks in-transit, have been physically venfied by a Flrm of Charterad Accountants at
reasonable intendals during the year;

(b) Inourapinion and according Lo the informalion and explanations given o us, the procedures of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate In relation 1o the size of the Company and
the nature of its business;

{e) Inouropinion and according 1o the informalion and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper

records of Its inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification and book records relaling to shorlage
have been deall with in the books of account, while excess have baen Ignored.

i) {a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Comipany has not granted any loans, secured or

¥}

V)

wi)

wii)
wlii

unsecurad, to Companias, firms or other parties covered in tha register maintained under Section 301 of the
CornpaniesAct, 1956. Consaguently, clauses (iil) (b) ta (d) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable;

In pur aginion and according to the information and explanations glven 1o us, there i= an sdaquate internal contral
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and

fixed assels and for the sale of goods and services. During (he colirse of our audil, we have nol absarved any major
weakness in the internal control system;

According to information and explanations given tous, the Company has not enterad into any contracl or arrangameant
which requires lo be enterad in register maintained under Section 301 of the Companias Act, 18956,

In our opinion and as per the Information and explanations given o us, the Company has not accepled deposits fram the
pubilio during the year within the maaning of sections 58A. S8AA or any other ralevan| provislons of the Companies Aat,
1956 and the Rules formed thersunder;

in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and natura of its business:

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pumuan'.' hﬂ'ﬁhmlﬁ m:ﬁihy the Central
Gavernment for the maintenance of cost recards under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Enmpﬂmhs.ﬁti 1856 in respect of
manufaciuring aclivities and are of the apinion that prima facle, the prescribed accounts inﬁ records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, nat made a detalled examinatian of the récords with a view to determining whether
they are acourate and complels;

ix) {a) According to information and explanations givantous and on the basls of our examination of the books of account,

the Company |5 genarally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues incleding Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employaes® State Ins , Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty Cess and Elactricity Duty with the _[np[iala.guthnﬂhﬂs,

According lo the information and explafistions given to u ed amounts are payable In respecl of
Incorme Tax, Sales Tax, Weallh Tax, Service Tax, Custom DH v, Cess and any othes mlﬁrflf s!atuturhr

dues & &l 31st March, 2012 for a period of more than six ﬁ,‘umﬂ'ﬁ‘:&ale they became:payabis;

et AV NALCO
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(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are disputed statutory dues which have not been

%)

xly
i)
Xili)

xlv)

deposlted are given below:

Statute Nature of Duss Amount Amount Forum where
disputed deposited disputes are
T in Crore 2 in Crore pending
Sales Tax Sales Tax 44.09 4,62 Commissioner
215.02 81.75 Tribunal
210.24 33.56 High Court
460,35 §5.93
Entry Tax Entry Tax 59.71 7.93 Commissioner
45.08 23.88 Tribunal
5.29 0.00 High Court
110.08 31.9
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excisa Duty 10.80 2.50 Commissioner
17.98 0.59 Tribunal
59.26 0.00 High Court
88.04 3.08
Customs Act, 1982 Customs Duty 077 0.05 Cammissioner
0.08 0.00 Tribunal
0.85 0.05
Incoma Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 234.91 1T8.77 Commissioner
118.65 104.84 Tribunal
8.5 0.00 High Court
361.61 283.61
TOTAL 1029.94 418.59

The Company does not have accumulaled losses at the end of the financial year. The Company has not incurred cash
lessasduring the financial year and In the immediately praceding financial year;

in our opinion and asccording lo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to any financial institutions or banks or debenture holders;

Based on ourexammation ol the records and the information and explanations given to us, the Company has notgranted
any loans and advanceson the basis of secunty by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities;

In our opinion the-Company is not a chit fundmidhi'mutual benefit fund/society. Therelore, the provisions of clause (xiii) of
paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

The Company ls not dealing or trading In shares, securities, debantures and other investments. Therefore the provisions
of clause 4 (xiv) of the Ordarare not applicable to the Campany,

xv) According lo the informaticn and m:plmmuann given to us, the Company has nol given any guarantee for leans taken by

avl)

othiers from hanhsmnnunnhﬂmlﬂuthna,

Based on nurmﬂﬂnﬂﬂnn nfmm#&a and the infarmation and explanations given 1o us, the Company has nol mised any

term Joan during tthﬂﬂde!Hdﬂ‘

vl Acr:nrdlng.tﬁl:hlinﬁmnuﬁmmd explanations and on an overall examinalion of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we

repoft that no funds ralsed on short-term basis have baen used for long-term Investment;

xvill) According o the information and explanations given o us, the Company has nol made any preferantial allotment of

X1x)

% 1|

shares to parties and Companies covared in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956;
Based on our examination of the records and the miormation and explanations given to us, the Company has not issued
any debentures during the year;

The Company has not raised any money by way of public issues during the year,;

the Gompany has been noticad or the year.

xxt) Tothe besi of our knowledge and beliel and aa?mlﬁ the infarmation and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by
the

orted durl

For Agasti 3 For C.K. Prusty & Associates
Chartered A s Chartered Accountants
FRN -318 FRN 323220
(CA. M. Bandyop ) (CA. C.K. Prusty)
Partner {Mlﬂmm:} Partner (M.No.057318)

Place : Haw Dalhi
Dated - 21" May' 2012
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 619(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF
NATIONAL ALUMINIUM COMPANY LIMITED, BHUBANESWAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012.

The preparation of finanoial statements of Natonal Aluminium Company Limited, Bhubaneswar for the year ended 31 March 2012
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Acl, 1956 is the responsibility - of the
Management of the Company. The Ststutory Auditors appointed by the Complrolier and Auditor General of India under Section
6192} of the Companies Acl, 1956 are responsible forexpressing opinion on these financial statemants under Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956 based on independent audll in accordance with the Auditing and Assurance  Standards prescribed by their
professional body, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. This is stated to have been done by them  vide their Audit Repor

dated 21.05.2012.

|, an bahalf of the Comptraller and Auditor General of Indla, have conductad a supplemantary audit undar Section 619(3)(b) of the
Companies Act, 1956 of the financial statements of Natlonal Aluminium Company Limited, Bhubaneswar for the year ended 31
March 2012: This supplemeantary audit has been carned out independently and is limited primarily o inguines of the Statutory
Auditors and Company personnel and a selective sxamination of some of the acoounting records. On the basis of my audit,
riothing significant has come 1o my knowledge which would glve rise Lo any comment upan arsupplement o Statutory Auditors’
Report under Seclion §19(4) of the Companies Act, 1956,

Forand on behalf of tha
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

[Nandana Munshi)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit
Place . Kolkala & Ex-officioc Membear, Audit Board-|,
Date: 07 June 2012 Kolkata
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Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2012

(% tn Crora)
Particulars Note Figures as at tho Figures as at the
Mo, end of current and of the previous
meporting period reporiing period
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capliial 1 1,288 .62 1,288.62
Resorves and surplus 2 10,426.46 9,875.99
Man-current labilities
Dafamed tax labilites (Nat) 3 848 11 09346
Other Long tarm llabillities 4 4141 &6.81
Long-term provisions 5 238 29 21279
Current liabilitios
Short-term borrowings & - 14 .88
Trade payables 7 9398 87147
Other current liabilities B 1,8937.93 1,860.30
Short-term provisions b -IH.EIH: 174.58
Total 15,520.78 14,548.90
ASSETS
HNon-current assols
Fixad assals
Tangible assets 10 6.498.96 5.488.59
Irtangible asseis 10 113359 4 84
Capital work-in-progress 8 B84 44 1,706.82
Non-currant investimants 12 1.02 116.02
Long-term loans and advances 13 1.165.15 ai7s
Other non-current asssis 14 3548 3570
Current azseis
Currant investmanis 1B T3 24 1,215:65
Invéntarias: 16 1.212.70 1.071.00
Trada recaivablos 17 13812 11168
Cash and Bank Balances 18 4.168.35 370523
Short-lerm loans and advances 19 51534 435 54
Othar current agsals 20 23458 176.00
Tatal Tﬁ@“ 14,948.90
Significant ﬁm:uimn Fﬂﬁlﬂﬂ
Ses ar.::ﬂrnmmlnh nuiﬂ o the financial statements. 148
For and on bahalf of Board of Diractors
(CS. KN, Ravindra) {A. Das) _ |CA.B.L.Bagra)
Company Secrstany Direector (Commercial) Director (Finance) and

Chairman-Cum-Managing Director e
In ferms of our raport of even date attached

For Agasti & Am For C.K.Prusty & Assoclales
'EH‘IEH:BI‘EI:] Acto ' Chartered Accountants
= 31304: FRN - 323220F
(CA. M.Bandyo Sﬂw (CA.C.K.Prusty)
Partmer (M. No. Partner (M.No.057318)

Place - New Daihi
Datad | 2451 May, E.'I'I:E

1
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Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2012

(% tn Crora)
Particulars Note Figures
Mo, for the currant for the pravious
reporting pe roporting peried
Revenua from oparations 23 B.611L.57 G6.056.57
Diner incomea 24 E42 186 36340
Total Revenue 7153713 T 640097
Expenses:
o=l ol mabarkals consumad 25 1,030.78 76612
Power and Fual 26 2.186.68 1,765.47
Changas in invantonas of finishad goods '
intermadiaries and work-in-progress 27 (2.93} (61.68)
Employes bensfits axpanss 28 1,034 54 861,18
Finance costs 29 OB7 -
Crepreciation and amarfizallon expense 10 256.55 42172
Othar expenses 30 1,207.59 1,033.35
Total expenses m T*H_IEEW
Profit befors exceptional items and tax 1,21885 152383
Excaptional (tems a1 2190 =
Profit Befora Tay A87.75 1.52383
Tax axpense:
(1) Currani tax 237.94 421.74
(2) MAT Credit Entitiamant (39.89) .
(3) Deforred tax 155.65 32 67
(4} Earllar Yoars (6.45) {0,068}
Prafit / (Lass] for the period ~— 84850 ~1,060.30
E@mings per equity share of face value of T 5'- each:
i1} Basic -3.30 418
i2) Dilutad 3.30 415
Sigrifficant Accounting Policies
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1-48
For and an behalf of Board of Directors
(CS. K.N. Ravindra) (A.Das) |CAB.L Bagra)
Company Secralary Director (Commercial) . Director (Finance)j and
anaging Director i

in terms of our repart of even date attached.

For Agasti & Associates For C.K.Prusty & Associates
Chartered Accountants Charfered Accountants
FRN - 313043F FRN . 123220E
(CA. M.Bandyopad | (CA.C.K.Prusty)
Pariner [M.h?n_ﬂﬁﬂgg;f Partngr (M.No. ﬂﬁ"&fﬂﬁ

Flaca : New Deihi
Diated : 21st May, 2012
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Cash Flow Statement for the year 2011-12

(¥ tn Crora)
Figuras for the Figures for tho
currant pravious
reporting period reporting period
A, Cash flow from Operating Activities :
MNat Profit befone tax and Exiraogrdinary Income 1. 98775 1,523.83
Adjustmants for
Depraciation 468.55 421.72
Interest and Financing charges 18- T8 .
Provisions (Net) 128 0.34
Cleime/Racovarables written off 2 B1 0m
Stores and spares written off 16:80 8.57
Cividend Incoma H5.47) {64, 74
Lose/{Frofit) on sale of assets (net) 021 (0.04)
——— 389.56 s ———x= 365.86
Dparating Profit before working capital changes 1,.587.31 1.889.69
Adjustmiants for .
Invantories (162.91) (122.28)
Trade & other receivables (163:39) 13.50
Trade & Other payables (70.26) . ) 389678
{396.56) 288.03
Cash generated from Dperations 1,180.75 2,171.72
DHrect taxes paid I_'E_ﬂ?lﬂEE (547 .24)
Cagh flow bafors Extraordinary ' [tams - BEGE.T 1,630.48
Extraordinary liems - -
Met cash from operaling acliviligs BEE.TO 1.630.48
B. Cash Fiow from investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assats & [nvestments (18075 {B33.22)
Divided ncome from Mulual fund gg 4T 64.74
Met cash usad In Invasting activities. (8z2.28) (TEE.48)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Interest and Financing charges (0.87) -
(Payment \Procoads of Short tarm Bormowings {14.88) 627
Dividends including dividend tax paid (41555 - {225.39)
(431.30) (219.12)
D. Netchanges in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 37312 642.88
E. Cash & Cash eguivalents - Opaning balance 3,785.23 3,152.35
F. Cash & Cash equlvalents - Closing balance {D+ E) 4,168.35 3,795.23
Mota:

&) Cash and Bank B,plurﬁai under Ouerant Azsets at note 18 are Cash and Cash equivalants-for the purpose of drawing Cash Flow
statement. Tharston reconciliation statemant reguired undar para-42 of the Accounting Standard 3 is notfumished separately.

by Cashiand c:a:;ﬂlqmmrﬂ incilides T 415.87 crom (Previous Year T 388 58 Crore ) towards disputed Electricity Duty, T 3.18 crore lowards
Unpaid dividend {Previous yaar T 0.85 crom ), T Nil (Provious Year T 0,11 crore) towards Dabanture interest, not freely avaltable for use by
the 'E‘D"“P-H‘“'l'

c} During the year the Company svailed working capital lean faclity (fund basiad) of T 850 crore (Pravious year T 850 crora), sanctionad by
sankers. The lopan batance at the end of the year s per books-of account is T Nil {previous year T 14 88 crore on account of cheques issued
but not pressanted).

d} Wuritmg Capital Loan facility s mortgaged by hypothication of raw materials, stock-in-process; finished goods, consumablas, siores and
spares, book debts, receivables and other turrant assets of the Campany.,

aj Fligur-n-alrl brackets am cash outfiow/income, a3 I:I'm :.:nuum ba,

ﬁ:iwﬂpmﬂ af Direclors
{CS. K.N. Ravindra) ~_[A.Das) (CA.B.L.Bagra)
Campany Secratary : ﬁu (Commercial) Oirector (Flnanca} and
I’ ' 'ﬁm: ﬂ-w of even data attached Chairman-Cum-Managing Director Ve
For Agastl & Assoclates For C.K.Prusiy & Associales
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN - 31_3U"5|1|§:5 _ FRN - 323220
{CA. M.Ban "1 (CA.C.K.Prusty)
Placa @ Naw Delbi Pmm{m Partner (M, No.057318)

Dated = 21st May, 2012

- .
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Segmentwise Information

et /AN NALCO

(¥ In Crore)

Chemicals Aluminium Eleciricity Unallocated Commaon Total
Currenl  Pravious Currenl  Previous Curranl Previous Cument Previous — Cumenl Pravious
Yoar Yoar Year Yeour Yenr Yaar Yoar Year Yaar Yoor
BUSINESS SEGMENTS )
A, Ravenue
Extarnal sales 1,531.09 1,11418 4968.05 482820 1.13 1660 - - B,500.27 54958498
Intar-sagment transfars 112468 9854 32 - - 197538 1,749.00 - . 3,1[!1&5 270332
Total Revanue 265577 206850 4968.05 482820 197651 1.765.60 - HLm 8.662.30
Less: Ellmination {3,100.06) (2.703.32)
Mot Revanie 6.500.27 5558.95
B. Result
Sagment result 500.11 44082 (16.48) 59270 28683 37243 (18L.53) (160.85)  GTEZ2 1,194.50
It arsat o= 08T e
IntErestincomes 520,40 32903
Income taxes 34825 45453
Net Profit 840,50 1,060.30
C. Other Information
Sagment assats 310072 190842 372370 354040 2,960.18 2681 70563798 6.72820 15820.78 1494690
Sagmaent liabilities 48426 50655 54332 658.03 1,423.50 1,380.33 50551 56587 2956.50 3,000.83
Capital axpendiuna 1,360.79 107098 27456 30755 46676 62797 (065.6T) (6EG.09)  BAT.44 4575
Diepraciation 143.07 14417  189.27 17448 . 12885 10744 5.36 385 466.55 430.08
Maon-cash expanses 20.87 2530 19,02 3328 8913 14,33 1.92 4 .50 50.94 T7.50
[other than depreciation)
GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENTS
India Culside India Total
Current Previous Current  Provious Current Provious
Year Yaar Yoar Year Yaar Yoar
A, Rovanuo
Exieamal sales 3,931.67 3.893.BB 2,568.60 2065.10 6.500.2T 555898
B. Othor Iinformation _
Sagment azsels 15,380.02 14, 674 .41 120.96 74.48 15.520.T8 14548490
Capital expanditure 84T 44 45T 51 - - B4T 44 4675
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
(CS. K.N. Ravindra) (A. Das)’ {CA.B.L.Bagra)
Company Sacretary Director (Commercial)’ Cirector {Fmance |} anid

Chamman-Cum-Managing Director Ko

In terms of our report of sven.date attacked.
For Agastl & Associates For C.K.Prusty 8 Associates
Chartered Accountants Miftered Accountants
FRN - 313043E FRN - 323220F
(CA. M.Bandyopadhyay)  [EAC.KPrusty)
Partner (M, No.050568) Pariner (M.No.057318)
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 215t May, 2012
= -E':'-. v : - i
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1: Share Capital

31" Annual Report 2011-12

(% tn Crore)

Particulars Figures as at tho Figures as al the
end of current end of pravious
reporting period raporting poriod
Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
AUTHORISED
B00.00,00,000 shares of par value of T 5/- sach
(Pravious year 600,00,00 000 shares of par valus
of T 5/- gach) 3,000.00 3,000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP
2.537,72,38,512 shames of par value of T 5/- each fully paid up
(Previous year 2,57,72,36,512 shares of par value of T 5/- each
Fully patid-up) 1288.62 1288.62

a) Tha Gavamment of India holds 224 58,98 540 equity. shares [B7.15%) of the lotal equity shares of the Company and no other
sharsholder of the Company holds mars than & percant of the equity sharas. (Previous year -sama)

b) The holders of the equily shares are entithed to receive dividends s declared from Ume Lo time, and are entitied to one vobe par share at

mestings of the Company.

c) Dwring the financial year 2010-11, the'company hias issued 12888, 10,256 equity sharas as fully pald bonus shares. Other than the said
bonus Issue, e company has not isspedfbought back any aquity sharas in the last b yaars. Tha bonus iesus was made subseguent 1o
splitfing up of shares from the face vaiua of T 10/ aach into 2 equity shares of T &/« aach in the said year.

Note 2 : Reserve and Surplus

a) Capital Resorve
As par Last Balance Shest
Less | Transfermad to Surplus
Closing Balanca
b) General Reserve
As per Last Balance Shest
Adel ; Transfar from Surplus
Less : Capitalled for Bonus lssus
Clnsing Batance
¢} Surplus
- Balance as at tha beginning of the year
transfemed from statement of profit and loss.
-Add - Transfarmd from Capital Raserve
= Less . Transtar lu.!f-;ann-ng ﬁﬂﬂwﬂ
= Less  Intanm Dividend
- Less ; Tax on intanm Dividend
= Less:: Propesed Final Dividand
= Less; Taxon Propossd Final Dividend o
mn.gu:ﬂhm

e
1
1

(.42
(007

9,865.90
550,00

10,419.90

£49.50

(.07
S50.00
231,95

763
2577
368

6.21
10,446.46

046

(.04}

D.42

& 744 .21
77000

(644.31)

9,569.90

6.60
1,069.30

0.05
oo
125.86

21.40
128.86

21.16

5.67
89,875.99

b
I
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Note 3 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(T in Crora)
Particulars Fiﬂalrlt as at the Figurns as at the
end of curront end of previous
reporting period raporting period

Deferred Tax Liability

Difference of tax depraciation

ovar Book Degreciation 1,037.15 B861.62
Less : Doferred Tax Assots

Disatiowances ufs 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 7881 61.63

On retiremant Banafits expanses as perASs - 15 J;IIH 004

Provision for doubtful debts claims & Proviglons 108.17 106.49

Closing Balance 188.04 168.16

Total ; 84911 593.46
Note 4 : Other Long Term Liabllities

Trade payables 12T 1347

Ofhirs 2024 4334

Total : 4141 56.81
Note No. 5: Lnng Term Provisions
Provisions for Employes Bonofits : _

Leave Encashment 18475 160.58

Post refirament medical benefits 821 T.61

Ratirement Benofits 1142 10.76

Long Sarvice Roward 16.20 10.48

MNEFFARS 18.99 14.56

Tatal T 23820 212.79

Note 6: Short term hﬂfl"ﬂ'ﬁlﬂgﬁ

Loang repayble on Demand
From Banks
Securmd
Waorking Capital Loans™
Total:
* Sacurad by Hypothecation of Raw Materials Finished Goods
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Note 7 : Trade Payables (¥ in Crora)
Particulars Figures as at the Figures as at the
ond of current end of previous
ripqr'ﬂngp-rlnd raparting period
Trade Payables
RMicro, Small and Madium Enlarpnses 0.78 0,63
CHhers 60320 §70.584
Total : 693.98 671.47

Note & : Other Current Liabilities

Employes Bensfits Fayble 28476 515.85
Statutory Duas
Excize Duty 11.76 36.18
Elactricity Duly & Interast tharecn eTAT B30.78
Income Tax (TDS & TCS) 18.58 11.14
Cithars 1182 17.97
‘969.33 B96.07
Creditors for Capital Expandiiure 457.33 330.88
Customars Credit Baiances &
Advanca from customers 140.30 14589
Other Payblas: T2.39 TO.T2
Unpaid Dividend 3.82 0.85
Unpald Dabentum Inieres! - a1
Unpaid Reademed Shares - 0.03
Total : 1.837.83 1,960.30

Note 9 : Short Term Provisions
Provisions for Employce Benafits :

Gratulty 527 13.05
Laove Encashmient 337 768
Post ratirement medical banofits 0.30 0:27
Rutiremanl Bopafits .87 044
Laave Travel Bansfil - 3.34
Long Service Reward 0.08 0.08
NEFFARS 423 3.549
13.87. 2345
Others : : -
Provision for Wealth Tax - . 1,16 (.87
Proyision far Dividentd I 2577 128 86
Tax Provisian for Dividand F i 418 21.40
31.19 151.13
Total ; 44.98 174.58

|
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Note 11: Capital Work - in - Progress (T in Crore)
Particulars Figures as at the Flgures as al the
‘end of current end of previous
reparting period reporting period
Capltal Work - in - progress at cosl 49322 1,386.80
Construction materiaks including in transit (at cost) 108.95 101.38
Expenditure during construction panding
dliocation (Note 11.1) 81.27 218.86
: 684.44 1,706.82
Hote 11.1
EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION
Panding allocation (Opanning Batance) 218.88 210.18
Add | Expenditura during the year
Technical Consultants Fee and Know how o780 3312
Starup & Commiszioning 35.06 3428
OHiar expEnses 971 15.26
Dapreciatiorn _ 0.04 0.05
T2.63 B2.71
Less : Incoma during the yaar
income out of Trial Oparation (8. 70) (12.07)
Cithar Incoma - (0,16}
(8:70) (12.23)
Nat axpanditure during the year 63.93 T0.48
Total expenditure 282.79 280.66
Less : Allocated to fiied assets (201.52) (61,80
Balance carried forward 81.27 218.88

Note 12 : Non-Current Investments

Trada Investmants & Unguoted No of Urits
Eguity Investmaonts In 000
Equity Shanes in Bhubaneswar Stock Exchange Lid 0.02 0.03
Equity Shares in Excel Services Lid 0.001 0001
Investmant in Joint Ventures (Rufar Note 38.1)

Equily shares in Angul Aluminiuen Park Py Lid 0.8 0.99

Othor Investments & Quoted
Investment In Mutual Funds (Face value of 710 sach)

SBi SOFS ﬁmm 5, - 10,000 10.00
s8I SOFS 13 Manth Serias - 11 - 25,000 2500
LTI MF YFMP 0311 (396 Days) - 30,000 30.00
Canary Robaco FMP -13.Sarios - 68 - 50,000 50.00
Total : ' 1.02 116.02
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investmenis = - 11500
Apgregate umuunlnfﬂuutnd In\raﬂmmu misrkiet value - 116.09
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Inuuhmmnl . 1.02 1.02

o9
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Note 13 : Long term Loans and Advances (¥ in Crore)
Particulars Flgures as at the Flgures as at the
ond of currant end of previous
repariing period reporiing period

Caplial Advances
Securnd, Consldered Good - -

Unsecurad Considored Good 32075 40.82
Droeabtful 028 0.28
Less © Allowances for doabiful D28 N2
Sub Total - 320.75 40.82

Othor loans and advances
Loans to Employoes

Secured, Consldersd Good 2088 31,64
Unsecured Considered Good 7.93 368
=ub Total : 37.64 35.20
Daposits (Undisputad, Unsecured, Considered Good) ;
Customs. Excise, Sales Tax ,Part Trusts eic. E:20 1.74
Other Gavamment Autharities 23615 287.39
Othars 348 346
24581 292.59
Daposits (Disputed, Unsecured, Considerad Good)
Customs, Exciss, Sales Tax Railways, Port Trusts elc. 16681 187 64
income Tax Authority Ja04s 235.09
CHhers o8 .41
560,56 423.14
Deposits {Disputed, Unsecured, Considerad Doubtful)
Oviars 1.83 1.83
Less : Allowances for doubiful 183 1.93
Sub-Tokal © = -
Total : BOB.TS T15.73
1,165.15 175

Note 14 : Other Non Current Assets

Long Term Trada Receivables
Dioobtfl 3895 3885
Less ; Allowances for doubitiul 35,95 3505

Interest Accrund on
Loans o Employess

Securad Considared Good 3502 34.62
Unsecured Considenad Good £.47 1.08
35.48 35.70
Total ¢ 35.49 35.70

6 P
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Note 15 : Current Investments (¥ in Crore)
Particulars Figures as at tha Figures as at the
end of current and of previous
reporiing period reporting period
Lirits in Units in
000 00
Investmant in Mulual Funds (Face Valuoe of T 10 Each)
IDBI FMP -370 Days Sereios - [|(March12iC 25,000 25.00
IDEI FMP -370 Days Sareies - [[(March 12D 15,000 15.00
SBI| Debt Fund Series 367 Days = 13- Gr S0 0O 3000
SB| Debt Fund Saries 387 Days - 16~ Gr 50,000 BO.OC
SBl Dabt Fund Series 370 Days - 11- Gr B0.000 50,00
SBI| Debt Fund Series 367 Days - 18- Gr TODO DO 100,00
UTI FTIF Serias X Plan- VI[368 Days) 25.000 26,00
UTI FTIF Seras X Plan- VIIN368 Days) 100,000 100.00
UTI FTIF Seras X1 Plan- [[[{368 Days) 50,000 50.00
LIC NOMURA MF FMP Series 52-367 Days - Gr 50,000 50.00
Canara Robeco Interval Series 2 Qirly Plan 25,000 26.00
LICN MF Intarval Fund Serlas -1 Qirly Dividend Plan-| 10.000 T0.00
5B| Debt Fund Series-30 Days- 56 - Dividand 10.000 10.00
5Bl Dabt Fund Series-90 Days- B0 - Dividend 50000 50.08
5SB! Dabt Fund Series-30 Days - 54 - Dividand 18,000 18.08
UTI FliF-Sarles Il QIP 1V 15,000 15.00
LITI FlIF-Sanes 1| QIFVI 15,!:“1!] 15.00
LTI FIF-Sanes 1| CHP VI 240,82 024
LITI-FIF-Int Plan-Gearigs-[|| 41,474 4145
LITI-FliF-Seres |1-Int Plan-iv 52,176 5222
UT] FIIF Series -I1-QIP-V 51941 51487
Canara Robaco Quarterly Intoreal Plan 30,000 30.00
SAI SOFS 90 days Sarips - 38 30,000 30.00
SR| SOFS 90 days Sarias - 41 100,000 100.00
SBI SOFS 180 days Sedes - 14 50,000 50.00

(Long Tarm Investmeant with Maturity lags than
12 months from the date of balance shoet date)

SBI SDFS 18 Months Serjes - 5 10,000 10.00

SBI SDFS 13 Monihs Satles - 11 25,000 2500

LTI MF YFMP 03111 (386 Bays) 30,000 30.00

Canara Rabwco FMP -13-Saries - 68 501,000 50.00

SBI SOFS 3’#111-1.1 Sarias - 5 - 40,000 40.00
SEl SOFS 370 Days a:&n . E - 25,000 25.00
SBI SOFS 370 Days Series - 7 - 25,000 25,00
SE| SOFS 370 Days Series - 9 . 50,000 50,00
SHI SOFS 370 Days Saries - 10 - 501,000 50,00
SB| SOFS 370 Days Series - 11 . 50,000 50,00
SE| SDFS 15 Months Saries - V - - 50,000 50,00
IDBI FMP Sarias - 1 - {367 Days) - 15,000 15.00
IDBI FMP Saries - 18 - (367 Days) -4 . 10,000 10,00
IDBIEMP Senes - 1C - (367 Days) ‘ - 25,000 26,04
IDBI FMP Saries - 10 - (367 Days) | : 30,000 an.00
UTI MF YFMP 10/10 (386 Days) - 25,000 25.00
T MF YFMP 12110 (396 Days) - 20,000 20,04
UTI MF YFMP 01/1] (386 Days) - 50,000 50.00

UT1 FTIF Serias -i%-Plan-t- (367 Bays) . 100,000 100,00

| —— ]



HITEIEYENP (0313 )

LITTFMP YEMP (0810 )

UTI FMP YFMP (0810 )

UTI FTIF-Series -Vil-Plan -

UTI FTIF-Serias -ViI-Plan -i

UTI FTIF-Sesias Vil

UTI FTIF-Series -Vill-Plan -

UTI FTIF-Serias -Vll-I

UTI FTIF-Serias VIll-IV:

Canara Robeco FMP -14-Series - 6

Canara Robaca FMP -13-Saras -6
Total:

Aggregate amount of Quated Investments.
Aggregaie amount of Quated nvestments market value

Wl Gl ol e

¥ In Crore)

Figures as at the
and of previous
roporting period

iy
40:0%
20,600

25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000

5,000

25,000

50.00
4000
2000

3500
2500
2500
2500
2500

500
- 25.00

1.215.65
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MNote 16 : Inventories ¥ in Crare)
Partculars Gt riiee i 1o Ml otova rapocting period
Raw Materials 101,79 65.19
Add :In Transit 2363 4011
125.42. 105.30
Wark-in-Progress 166,35 117.54
|ntarmadiaries 104 48 10217
Finlshed Goods 1649.63 214.72
440.46 434.43
Stares & Spares 408.00 3B84.38
Adel :In Transit 3516 4214
443,16 426.52
Power & Fual 169.34 B.12
Add 1n Transit 17.48 1576
186,82 95.88
Scraps & Unserviceabls Materials 15.552 77
Less - Allownces for doubtful .16 018
15.76 7.55
Fixed Assets Awating Disposal 534 5.449
Leas : Allownces for douhtful 4.26 417
1.08 1.32
Total : 1,212.70 1,071.00

Mote 17 : Trade Recelvables

Unsecured, Considered Good
- Qutstanding for @ petiod exteeding
6 months from tha date they are due .
- (fhers 138,12 111,66
Total : 138.12 111.66

Note 18 : Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances With Banks

In Current Account 318 2.47
In Term Deposits # 416118 3,791 63
Unpaid Dividend Account 3.82 0.85
Unpaid Debenture interest ' - 0.11
Cheques, drafis In Hand, ea r-
Cash.an Hand including Stamps ! A7 0.17
g ™ Total: T 4,168.35 1,795.23

T SITL

# Includes T 41557 erore (Pravieus yoar T 368 58 crorn) sanmarked for disputed slectricity duty as per court ardar
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Note 19 : Short term Loans and Advances

__ et AV NALCO

(T in Crorej

Particulars

Figures as at the and of

Figures as at the end of

current reporting period  pravious reporting pariod

Other loans & Advances
Secured, considered good

- Loars o employess B.BT B.680
Sub Total B.AT 5.60
Unsacured. considered good
- Loars o ampioyess 4.73 3.08
- Advanoes to amployoes 80.13 84 .40
- Advances 1o Vendors 142.85 138.08
= VAT Credit Recaivabla 13441 13.08
- Cenval Cradil Racalvabie 105 66 a7.14
= Advance income ax (Met of Provision) 2782 81.34
- MAT Crédit Entilement 33.64
- Claims recelvable from Cuasioms.,
Excize and Rallway Authoritkes 395 3:30
- Prapaid Expanses 1.63 1.50
- Dihars g7.10 3.03
506,47 425,94
Unsecurad , conaidersd doubiiul '
- Advances to employees 0.01 -
- Advances to Vendors 242 2.40
« Clalms receivable rom Customs,
Excisa and Railway Authorites 105 1.05
- Othars 1.85 2.03
542 648
Legs - Allownces for doabtful {5.42) {5.48)
Total : 515.34 435.54
Note 20 : Other Current Assets
Intare=t Accrued on
Bank Deposiis a7.18 105.40
Loans to Employees 0.43 Eﬁ-ﬂ-
Other loans and Advances 047 0.3
Unsecured, consldersd good 167 .84 146,07
Loans to Employeas
Securad, considared good BT 271
Sub Total 170.41 108.78
Export Incentives 61.02 63.14
Less : Allownees for doubtful - _[2.47)
61.02 60.67
Sundry Debtors
Unsecurad, gonsidared good .97 074
Unsecurad, gonsidared doubiful 0.06 .06
Lass - Alownces for doubtful (0.06) :ﬂ.ﬂ'ﬁh
087 - 0,74
Insurance Claims 1062 ﬁ;_ﬂ_1;
Lazs ; Allownces for doubtful (7-B4) (4.10)
2.18 581
Total : 234,58 176.00
S== U -
e —
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Note 21 : Contingent Liabilities not provided for {% in Crora)
Particulars Figures as at the Figures as at the
end of current end of previous
reporting period reporting pariod
Claims against tha company nol acknowladgaed as debls !
1. Sales Tax 470,37 456,67
2 Excise Duty 112,68 204 58
3.  Customs Duty g.82 .68
4. Cleims of Contraciors’ Suppliars & Others 8890 15342
5. Land acquisition and interst there on AT.88 4650
& Income Tax & wealth tay 361.61 I76.50
7. Entry Tax and Road Tax 10.08 73.20
8 Employes Staie Insurance 0.40 032
9. Provigent Fund Commisgionar - 0.05
10. Royality D48 15.48
11. NPV and related expensss undar mining leass 106.04 bh.82
Total : 1,308.08 1,362.20

Note 22 : Capital and other commitments

al Capital commitments
1. Estimated amount of confracts on capital account and

nol provided for mmaining o be axacuted 498.18 80618
b} Other commitmants
1. The company has imporied cEpital goods undar ha 2.195.00 1,765.84

axport promotion capital goods schame of the Govi, of India
at concessional ratea of duly under the schamea 1o fulfill
guantified exports (Duty saved T 274 Croms).

2. The campany has availed concessional mts of duty. 22300 22300
lhmunh EPGCG lleanse for its Rolled Product Unit established
earfior as 100% EOU Which was debonded wef 15.5.2007
(Duty saved T 27.83 i:&nm}

Total : 2.916.18 2,793.00

-_JI.'I-"\.
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Note 23 : Revenue From Operations (¥ in Crore)
Particulars Figures for tha current Figures for tha previous
raporting pariod reporting period
a} Sale of Products
(1} Expor Cuantity*® Cuantity®
Alumira 792552 142033 639,855 1,020.55
Alurmini 88389  1,14B3T 98,200 1.044.58
2, 568.80 2.065.10
(i) Domastic _
Alumina 50253 12244 459413 103.42
Alerminium JNTHIT 423476 30,753 418476
Elactriaity 16 1.13 =8 16.60
4,358.33 4.304.78
Sub-Total . 6,926.93 6,369.88

b} Other Oporating Rovenua
(i} Export incerdives

Alumina 76.56 80,70
Aluminium 28.42 31.32
104 68 9202
(i} Finighed Goods Intarnally
Consumed /Capltalisad §52 5.57
Sub-Total ! 111.30 97.59
€] Less: Excize Duty
Alumina 1168 9.BD
Aluminium 415.00 __ 40110
Sub-Total ¢ 426.66 410.90
Total : 6,611.57 6,056.57

* Quanbty for Alumina and Aluminium ana in MT and for Electricity it s i MLUL

Note 24 : Gther Income
a) Inlerest Incomo on:

Bank Deposits 414 00 260.24
Loans to Employess 3.05 348
Othars : 4.78 - 1.56°
Sub-Totat : 421,092 264.28

b} Incomo on Invasimeanis:
Met Gain f{Loss) on

Dividend Plan Invastmeanls 680 2057

Shost term Investments 18,02 18.00

Long tenm Investments T250 - 26.1F
Sub-Total 98.47 B4 T4

c ) Netgain/ (lozs) on Forelgn

Exchange translation & transactions 0.69 0.27
d} Miscallansous Incoma 21.07 4.1
Total : 542.1E 353.40
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Note 25 : Cost of Materials Consumed @ in Crore)
Particulars Figures for the current Figures for the previous
reparting period reporting period
Raw Matarials Cruantity(MT] Quanity(MT)
Causfic Soda 144 631 ZITIHT-HD 107 0BE 228,18
C.P. Coke 159,960 42836 170,388 334 87
C.T. Plich 36,634 12030 41,189 106.33
Aluminium Flouride 8.278 6236 8275 46.91
Lime 44845  F779 46798 2311
Oithars 2rar 28.71
Sub-Total : 1,036:28 T66.12
Adpustments Partains to Earier Year (5.50) -
Total : 1,030.78 T66.12
Note 26 : Power and Fuel ¥ in Crore)
Coal 1977 88524
Fuel Oil T44.66 511.19
Dty on own Generation 138.01 154.47
Purchased Power 136.14 82,89
Fower Transmission Charges 4.39 I3
Power from Trial Oparation —_— = —11
Sub-Total : 2.184.81 1, 75821
Adjustments Perlains o
Earlier Year 177 SR i 77 i %
Total : 2,196.68 1,765.47

=
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Note 27 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, intermediaries and work-in-process {¥ in Crore)
Particulars Jure ' (] ures for the ious
Fhmm';m . raporting pf:t-::i
A. Finished Goods
Opaning Slock _
Bauxite 2525 16.91
Chemical "BT.80 76.34
Alumminium 101.78 48 80
Less : Closing Stock . 2472 142.05
Bauxita 14.96 25 26
Chemical gTA2 87.69
Adurminium BT.55 101.78
188.93 214.72
(Accration Depiafion 45.00 (T2.6T)
Changs in Excise Duty (.64} 11.05
Tral ProdochonOther Adjustmants - 1.81
MNet (Accretion ) Deplefion 39.45 (59.81)
B. Intarmediarios
Dpaning Slock
Anodas B4.7E 73.97
Diheirs 7.38 11.26
10247 B5.23
Less : Closing Stock
Anodas BE 44 8478
Othars 18, 7.38
104.48 102.17
[Accration Deplation {2.31) (16.94)
Trial Production/Other Adjustments 0.05 B.58
Net Accretion(-VDeplation {2.26) (10.35)
C. Work-In-Process
Opaning Stock 1¥7.53 12311
Less : Closing Stock __ 16635 __ 1753
(Aceretion )Deplation (4882} 618
Trial Production/Other Adjustmants 870 230
Nat (Accration yDepletion {ﬂﬂ _ 848
Total (A+B+C) : (293) (61.68)
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Note 28 : Employee Benefit Expenses (¥ in Crorej
Figures for the current Figures for the Previous
Particulars reparting period roporting period
Salarlss and wages 861.66 850.76
Confribution to Proyldent, Pension and Gratuity Fund 11.11_5-! 82.71
Staff welfare expensas 20.TE 28.57
103458 BE2.04
Adfustments Paraining to Earller Years 10,04 (0.BB)
Total : 1.034.54 961.16

Long term Employee Benefit obligations (As per AS-15) included in Note 28 above

Gratulty Leave| PostRetire-] Retire-| Leava Long
Encash-| mant Medical maent| Traval| NEFFAR | Servica
mant Benafit| Bonefit| Benefit| Scheme | Roward
Amount Recognised In Balance Sheol:
Present value of obligation 28212 188.12 B.53 11.78 - 2322 1529
250 26 163.06 7.68 1120 334 1816  19.56
Fair valus of Plan Asset 256.91 - - - - - -
23721 . . . = ‘ =
Funded Status[Excess/{Short]) (5.21) - - - - - -
(13.05) - . :
Met Liablity recognised 521 - - - - - -
13.05 - - - - - -
Amount Recognised in Profit & Loss Account:
Current Sarvice cost 18.36 43.07 - - - - 0.76
17.27 annz - - - . 0.96
Interest cost 19.60 11.78 D58 0.88 - - 1.3
17.88 8.20 (.45 0.85 029 - 1.97
Expactad Ratum on Plan Azze| 18.97 - . - - - -
10.68 - - - - - -
Mat Actuarial (gain)ioss (13.52) 202 1.34 0.09 (3.34) 507 (0,10
{11.58) 2443 2.18 (0.18) 068 230 5.08
Expenses meognised 5.47 56.87 1.92 0.97 (3.34) 50T 1497
1292 7265 2.63 0.66 n.or 230 721
Movement of Not Liabillty Recognised in Balanco Sheet: |
Opening Mat Latility 13.05  183.06 TES 1120 334 1815 19.56
82,87 114.56 6.02 1074 481 15856 1689
Expenses recaghised 5.47 56.87 192 097 (3.34) 507 197
1292 72.65 263 0.66 0.57 230 721
Banefits pald 13.30 3181 127 0.38 - - B.24
82 74 24.15 077 020 254 . 454
Contributions - - - - - - -
Closing MNetl Liability 5.22 188.12 8.53 1.7 - 23.22 1529
13.05 163.06 7.68 1120 3.34 1815 1956

Nota :

1. Figuresin italics pertain 1o previous 3
2 Gratulty iz 3 Post Employmant Funded Diefin 3
3. Other Benefits are Lin-Fundad Defined :
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Note 2B : Employee Benefit Expenses Cont.. (¥ in Crore)
Figures for the current Figures for the Previous

Particulars raparting period roporting period

A, Acturial Asumptions _

Mortality Tabls (LIC) LICH 1894-1986 LICI 1994-14895
Discount rate B.00%: B.00%,

Raturn on plan asseis B.00%: B.O0%

Rata of escalation in salary 5.00% B:00%
Bupsrannuaiicn Age 60 Years B0 Years

The eatimates of fulureé satary increases considerad in actunal valuation, teke account of inftation, sanionty, promofion and ofher relavant
Tactors, such as supply and demand in the employameant markat. Further the expacted raturmon plan asset & determingd considering savaral
applicable factors mainly the compaosition of plan asaets held. assassead nsk of aesat managemant and historical rotums from plan assals.

B. Investment Details of Plan Assets

T InCrorme G T in Crora %

Insurer Managed Fund 256 89 4099 247 11 90 96

Others o2 0.01 0.10 0,04

Total : ZBEO1 100,00 237,21 100.00

C. Actual Return on Plan Assels T 17.05 Crore T 17.28 Crore

D.General description of various defined benefit schemes are as under :

{1} Provident Fund : The company pays fixed contnbution (o Providen Fund, al pre-gdetarmined rates, 1o a separate trusl, which nvests
(e funds In parmitied securitles. On contributions the trust is requirad to pay a minimum rate of interest, 1o the members, as specifiad
by Gavt. of Indla. Tha obligation of the Company is fimited to the shortfall in the rate of interast on the contribution basiad on its return on
investimenis as comparned o the declared rate.

(i) Pension Fund : The Company pays fixed contribution to the trustes bank of FFRDA, which In turn invests the monay with the Insurers
as specified by the amployes concemed. The Company's abiity 18 imied onfy to the sxiant of fixed contribution.

{iif) Gratuity : Gratuity payabla to employaas who rendar conlinues senvice of fivis years or more, on saparation 81 15 opyeof tast drawn pay
{Basic plus DA) for sach completed years of sarvice subject to-a mawimum of T 10,00,000/(-. Tha grafulty: schema |5 funded by the
Company and are managed by a separate trust The [ability for undar the gratuity schame (s mcognised on the basis of actural
waluation.

iivl Post Ratiramant Medical Benefit : The banafil is avallable to retired ermployses and thalr :puﬂuﬂn Hmﬁﬂum.inﬁl hmp]:t&l.’ﬁﬂl.rt.
Hospitall hospitals natified by the Company, They can also avall treatmant as out patient mlbﬁdﬂﬁﬂllllﬂn‘ﬂmﬂ bﬂhl- E}mny The
llability under the schama is recognized an the basis of acturial vﬁhmlbun

(v} Retirament Benefit : On superannuation /retirement/iermination the employess and/or hTIﬂ‘j ‘whall ba entited 1o get travaling
allywance as fixed by the Company (as per TA rula) from tha last hedguaners o thes home own o any ather place of setiament. The
llatility for the same is recagnised on the basis ol acturial valuation.

{vi} Long Service Reward : The employaes who complete 25 years of sarvice are entitled for long service rward which (s equal 1o one
manth basic pay. The iability for the saime s recognised on the basis | valuation:

{vil) NEFFARS : In the evant of disablamant'desth. the Company pays 1t

deposit of prescribed amount as stipalated under fha-sohame upbo: ﬁu:#h
racognisad on the bass ol acturmal valuation,

e employes/lagal hair at their option and on
suparannuation: The kability forihe sama s

{vill) Laava Encashmant : The accumulated earmed jeave, half pay m&;ﬂuﬂ; Hﬂph Ffahlﬂ on saparation, m.ﬂ:inﬂtm MrERIMUm
pemmissibla limit as prescribed in the leave rules of tha Compary, Dunng the service period ancashment of accumulated keave is alsa
allowed onca In 2 calendar year subject to Itml'r_'._'l.’hi liluilitﬁnrﬂmml“lwmlm of I::ﬁ.rr{ﬂlmlunlinn

| T———ye—
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(¥ in Crorej

Particulars F‘ﬂ’:'r:!nﬂfﬂi;gﬂm?ﬂt l-?-uurr::n f:]rni:: :riﬂn:nm
Interest Expanse
Interest on Short term Loans 0. 78 -
Other Barrowing Costs
Interast an Bllls Discounting .13 -
Total : 0.87 -
Note 30 : Other Expenses
Repairs and Maintanance
Repairs 1o Building 35,25 24.75
Repairs to Planl & Machinery 111.52 a7.99
Repairs to Others 11.87 8,96
Sub-Tolal : 158.64 131.70
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts etc.
Stores & Spares” 30357 293.63
Consumables 100.92 B9.45
Sub-Total : 404.49 381.08
Other Manufacturing Expenses
Royallty & Cess 65.63 50.1(
Water Charges 23,44 12.68
Others 4227 3627
Sub-Total : 131.34 108.05
Freight and Forwarding Expenses
Incoming Materials 68 62 65.13
Outgoing Materlals 69.17 __56.66
Sub-Tolal : 137.79 121.79
Rent 1.29 1.23
Rates & Taxes 2.70 2.59
Insurance 4483 4.72
Paymant to Auditors
As Auditors 014 0.14
For Taxation Maiters 0.03 0.03
For Gampany Law Matters 0410 0.08
For Reimbursament of Expenses: 0.14 0.15
Sub-Total - 0.41 0.40
Payment to Cost Auditors 0.02 0.02
Security & Fire fighting Expenses 60.93 48.35
CSR Expenses (Refar Nots No.44.1) 3422 26.77
Miscellaneous
Administrative and General Expensas 100.34 65,82
Interest on Disputed Govt. Dues & Others. 131.30 100,64
Selling & Distribulion Expenses ¢« 1 15:34 15:01
Othais H 29.26 18.86
Provisions 1.29 0.34
: Suli-Total 277.53 200.67
Adjustments Pertaining to Earlier Years (6.76) 3.98
Total : 1,207.59 1,033.35

*Notinciuded in Repairs & Maintepance

o

Sa
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Note 31 : Exceptional tems

et [AVNALCO

(¥ In Crore)
Figures for the current Figures for the Previous
Particulars " raporting period * raporting period
Employes Benefit Expense 140.61 -
(Refer Note No.35.1)
Power and Fuel (Electricity Duty) (118.71) -
(Refer Nota No.39.2)
Total : 21.90 -
Note 32 : Expenditure Incurred in Forelgn Currency
Proféssional & Consultation Feas 2.3 6.1
Other expenses 0.75 0.83
Total : 10.06 6.94
Note 33 : Earnings in Foreign Currency
Export of goods calculated on FOB basis 2.556.93 2.055.20
Othar Income{Daspatch Monay Claim) 0.85 0,54
Total : 2,557.78 2,055.74
Note 34 : Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw matarials 181 37 2748 96
Components & spare parls 1555 57.38
Capltal goads 80.93 79.06
Total : 317.85 416.38
Note 35 : Value of Raw Materials, Spare parts & components
consumed during the year
Value U Value Yo
a) Raw Matarials
Imported 18317 15.75 156.11 20.38
Indigenous A73.11 B4.25 810,01 79.82
Total : 1,036.28 100.00 766.12 100.00
b) Spare parts and components
Imparted 143.78 35.55 139.08 36.31
Indigenous 260.70 B4.45 24399 63.69
Tolal : 404.49 100.00  383.08 100.00

I
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Note No. 36 : Land & Building:

36.1 Title deeds have been exscuted for freehold land acquired through State Govemnment, except for land measuring 17.25 aores.
Process ol conversionof freehold land lor Industnial use has been laken- up with Revende Authorities:

362 Leasehold land includes 1238.63 acres of land in respect of which lease deeds are yel lo be execuled, However, the Company
has been permitted by the State Govermnment (o carry on its operations on the sald land.

6.3 Reglstration formalities In respect of office space for 6.458 Sq ft purchased from Kolkata Municipal Development Authority,
valulng ©5.50 Crore in Kolkata Is under process.

Note No. 37 : Compensation to land displaced persons:

In order o compersate substantially lsnd affected persons (SAPs) at Angul Sector in lleu of employment, the Company has
offered a cash assistance packiage ranging from T 2250 lakhs 1o T 15.00 lakhs per person depending upon the area of land, based
on recommendation of Rehabilltation Advisory Committee [(RAC), constituted by State Government for the purposs.
Compenaation paid/payablato such SAPs ason 31.03.2012 15T 7 .60 crore.

Note No.38 :Investment inJoint Ventures and New Projects:

38.1 The Company has entered in 1o & joint venture with 1DCO (A Govt. of Odisha Undersking) under the name and style “Angul
Aluminium Fark Pyt. Ltd™, in the share holding patterm between NALCO and IDCO In the ratio of 49.5% and 50.5% respectively,
As on date, the Company has paid T 0.99 crare lowards equity conlrbution. The payrment lowards equity contribution has been
shown under the head investments’.

382 The Company has also entered In to a joint venture with Nuclear Power Carparation of India Limited (NPCIL) under the name &

style of NPCIL-NALCO Power Company Limited Incorporated on 2nd March, 2012 in which NALCO has 26% stake, No equity
pontribution has been mads by NALCO il 31.03:2012.

383 The Company has pald T 151 crore to Gujarat Mineral Development Corparation Lid (GMDC) towards upfront payment while
bidding for a new project for establishing Alumina Refinery and Aluminium Smelter with supply of Bauxite by GMDC. The
decision of GMDC on the bid is awailed.

Note Mo. 39. : Exceptional Item:

39.1Employee Benefil:

Performance Related Pay (PRP) payable fo Executives w.ef fnancial year 2007-08 was finalized during the year. Tha
additional impact over and above the liabllity provided up to 31.03.2011 warks out to T 54,77 crore malnly due to certain new
clarification issued by Govt. of India during the year. As per the lang term wage settament for unlonized employees. contribution
for pension benefit under New Perision scheme up to 31.03.2011 has baen provided in the curren! year amounting to £ 85.84
crore

39.2 Electricity Duty:
Based on the Judgment of Hon'bla High Court of Odisha, Transformer and Transmiasion loss of power 18 not subject to levy of
Elsetricity Duty and amodunt paid. [fany is refundable. The impact of liability provided on this account up to last year amounts to
T118.71 crore, wntten back now,
The above amounts being mataral snd relevant lo users for understanding the financial performance, thie same has beeh
considerad exceptional items. The netimpact is additional expanditure of ¥21.90 crore.

Note No.40 : Pay Revision of Unionizad Employees:
Sth Long Tesm Wage Setllement of Unlonized employees was finalized and implemented during the vear. Additional amount of
T45 54 crore over and above the Hability provided up 16 last year (2 385 crora) has been charged to current year accounts.

Note No.41 : Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO):
As per the provisions of Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (OERC) notification, NALCO, being an obligated entity has

the cblipation to generate power for 5% of its total consumption from renewable sources comprising of 3.70% from
co-generation, 0.10% from Salar renewable source Er:d_J -207% fram Nan solar renewable source. The campany has fulfilled the

requirement of its co-generation obligation for 2011-12 through co-generation of power from Steam Power Plant at

Refirary Unil. .

The Sompany has spenl and provided an amoun| of ¥ 28,20 &rore lowards Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) for the year
dus to Non-h nt of the obiigation & rate powet ffom ranswable sourcs of Selar and Non-solar, ss detalled below !

a) Procttement of REC against Non-solar abligation - 28.93 crore

b) Batance liability for Non-salar obligation . ?12.81 crore

c) Liatilty for solar obligation - 27 .46 crore

Total: = £29.20 crore

———Y
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An appeal, however, Is pending before OERC to postpone RPO for the year to next year

Note No. 42 : Dues payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

Dues payable to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act,
2006 have been datermined 1o the extenl such parties have been |dentified on the basis of information available with the

Company
[ ¥in crore)
As at As al
318t March 2012 315t March 2011
I} Principalamount due D.78 0.63
i) Intereston pnncipal amount due Ml Ml
iy Inlerestand principal amount paid beyond appoinbment day Ml Ml
lv] The amount of interest due and for the penod of delay in making Ml Ml
payment (which have been pald bul beyond the appoinled day
turing the year) but without adding the amount of interest specified
under MSME Developmenl Act 2006
v) Theamount of interest sccrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Mil Mil
the year
vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable evan In Mil Mil
the succeeding years; untll such date when the interest due as
above are actuslly paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
MSME Development Act 2006

Note No.43 : Dividend for the year:

43.1 The Company has paid interim dividend of ¥ 0.90 per equity share of ¥ 5/- each for the year 2011-12 (previous year T 2/- per aguity
share of T 10/- each before splitting and bonus issue, which Is equlvalent T 0.50/- per equity share of T 5(- each).

43.2 The provision for final dividend of ¥ 0,10 per equity share of T &/- each 15 made for the year 2011-12 (previous year T 0.50/- per
equlty share of T 5/- each after splitting and bonus lssue).

43.3 Total dividend for the year 2011-12 works out 1o ¥ 1/- per equity share of T &/~ each (previous year T 1/- per equity share ol £ 5/
each), Total amount of proposed dividend for the year 2011-12 s T 257 72 crore (previous year £ 257 72 crore);

Note No.44 : Change in Accounting Policy! Practlice:

44.1 The Campany is providing education faciiitles through its sponsored schodls at plant sites for the children of employees as well
as children from periphearal areas as a part of Corporate Social Responsibility. Prup-mﬁnnammlum incurred for students
from periphemal areasamounting to ¥ 10.93 crore (previous year? 10.12 trore) has besn mnﬁfmmﬁsﬂmsamu Wias
mcluded under employee benefils expansas up lo last year.

44 2 Mining Rights represent amount paid towards Net Present Value (NPV) and ather related pay in cannection with renewal
of mining leasa which was earlier grouped under Lease hold land (7 104,67 crore) now classified mﬂm' Intangible assets in
compliancs with revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, Depreciation an iha sald Bssets has bean re-grouped
Bocordingly.

443 Technological license represent payment of T 14.70 crve made 1o Rio Tinto Alcan (RTA) towands license right for use of
technology for Alumina and Aluminium preduction (which includes ¥ 0.72 crore capitalized as plant and equipment in earlier
years).

There is no impact on the Profil of the Company duetoa

Note No.45 : Regrouping of previous year'n.ﬂgumﬂ:ﬂ |
Previous year's figures have besn regroupedirearranged wheraver
Note No.46 : Related Party Disclosures:

46.1 As per AS-18 an “Related Party Disclosures” ismmﬂn-yu—,gmﬂm of Chartered Al
parties during the yearar given balow:- k=
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i} Wholetime Directors:
(a) ShriA K. Srivestava
(b} ShriB.L.Bagrs
{c) ShriloyVamhese
(d} ShriAK. Sharma (Upto30.08.2011)
(e} ShrPK.Padhi {Upto31.01.2012)
(fy  ShriAnsuman Das
(g} ShnS 5 Mohapatra (wef. 01.10.2011)
(h} ShriN.R.Mohanty (w.e.f. 01.02.2012)

ii} Parttime Official Directors: (Nominee of Govt. of India):
(a) ShriS. K. Nayak IAS (Up1005.08.2011)
(b} ShriS.K. Srivastava, IAS

iliy Parttime non official (Independent) Directors:
{a) ShriVed KumarJain
{b} ShrPF.C.Sharma, AS (Reid.)
{¢) ShriG.P. Joshi, IAS (Retd. ) (w.et 15.09.2011)
(d} ShriS.S. Khurana {w.a.f. ‘I 5.02.2011)
(e} ShriMadhukarGupta, [AS (Retd.) (welf 27,12.2011)
{fy ShrG.H.Amin{we.f. 27,12:2011)

48.2Related parly ransactions:
Remunearalion and Ioans to whole time directors are as fumished below:

T In Crors
SINo  Particulars Currenl Year LastYear
1. Whole time Director's Remuneration :
Salaries 1.35 1.38
Performance Related Pay (PRP) 0.38 0.28
Company's Cantribulion to Provident Fund 0.14 016
Leave Trave! Concession 1] n.02
Medical Bengfits - 0.02 0.02
Other Banefits. 0,12 0.06
_ Total: 2.02 1.93
2. Loans/advances duefrom Directors:
Outstanding al e end of the year 0.08 0.01
Maximum amaunt dug at any lime duting the year 0.08 0.01

-_J'I-"\.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASISOFACCOUNTING.

Thefinancial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

2. USEOFESTIMATES.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial
statements and the amount of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual result in some cases could differ from those
estimates. Any revision of such estimates is recognized in the period in which the same is determined.

3. COMPLIANCE TOREQUIREMENT OF REVISED SCHEDULE-VITOTHE COMPANIES ACT. 1956.

The Financial Statements are prepared in compliance with the provisions of revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956.
Allassets and liabilities have been classified as currentand/ or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out
inthe revised Schedule VIto the Companies Act, 1956.

4. (A) FIXEDASSETS.

4.1 Allfixed assets are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct
expenditure of acquisition, attributable borrowing cost and net of CENVAT/VAT credit, wherever applicable.

4.2 Expenditure ondevelopmentoflandincluding leasehold land is capitalized as part of cost of land.

4.3 Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

NPV and related payments made to Govt. authorities for bauxite mines, Application Software package like ERP and application development
tools like RDBMS and Technical know-how right (RTA) are treated as intangible assets.

4.4  Insurance spares valuing more than< 1 lakh per unitare capitalized with the related fixed assets.

4.5 Fixed assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at net book value with provision for doubtful realization required, if any, and
considered as current asset till the time of its disposal.

4. (B) DEPRECIATION.

4.1 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight-ine method at the rates and in the manner prescribed under Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956 except in case of certain assets where depreciation at higher rate is provided based on their estimated remaining
useful life, evaluated on the basis of technical estimate made periodically in respect of the following assets.

Earth work portion of:

a) RedmudpondatAluminaRefinery;
b)  AshpondatAluminaRefinery;

c) AshpondsatCaptive PowerPlant.

4.2 Intangible assets for software is amortized over a period of 3 years and intangible assets for Mining Rights is amortized over 20 years from the
date of payment or date of renewal / deemed renewal whichever is earlier based on respective lease life. Technical know-how right (RTA
license) is amortized over the useful life of related plant and machinery.

4.3 Certain assets at Port Facilities are depreciated at rates calculated on the basis of balance lease period of land belonging to the Port Authority on
which these assets are installed.

44 AssetscostingZ 5,000/-orlessindividually are depreciated fully inthe yearin which they are put to use.

45 Assetslaid onland notowned by the Company are depreciated overa period of five years.

4.6 Classification of plant and machinery into continuous and non-continuous is made on the basis of technical opinion and depreciation provided
accordingly.

4.7 Depreciationonvalue adjustmentis provided prospectively.

5. BORROWINGCOST.

5.1 General and specific borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset until such time the assets are ready for their intended use.

5.2 Otherborrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period inwhich these are incurred.

6. IMPAIREMENT.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets, whenever circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable. If the estimated discounted future cash flow expected to result from use of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the
asset is deemed to be impaired. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount.

7. INVESTMENTS.

7.1 Investments intended to be held for not more than one year from the date of such investment, are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long term investments. Long-term investments are carried at cost, after providing for diminution in value, if it
is of a permanent nature.

7.2 Currentinvestments are stated atcost orfair value whicheveris lower.

8. INVENTORY.

8.1 Inventory of stores and spares are valued at cost net of CENVAT / VAT credit wherever applicable. Cost is determined on moving weighted
average price on real time basis.

8.2 Storesand sparesotherthaninsurance spares held butnotissued formore than 5 years are valued at 5% of the cost.

8.3 Shortage of coal upto 1% of the receipt quantity is treated as normal loss and beyond 1% is treated as abnormal loss.

8.4 Materials and other supplies held for use in the production (other than considered as non-moving) are not written down below cost, if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

8.5 Inventories of finished goods, semi-finished goods, intermediary products and work in process except anode butts and rejects are valued at lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost is generally determined at moving weighted average price of materials on real time basis,
appropriate share of labour and related overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Anode rejects and butts are valued atlower of past realized value or45% of direct material cost.

8.6 Scrapofvarious nature internally generated is valued at estimated netrealizable value.
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GOVERNMENT GRANTS.

Fixed assets acquired out of financial grantfrom Government are shown at costby crediting the grant-in-aid received to Capital Reserve.
Exportincentives/Duty drawback on exports made during the year, are accounted for on accrual basis and shown as other operating income.
The saving on account of application of concessional rate of customs duty against EPCG licenses is disclosed as a contingent liability towards its
Export Obligation.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS.

Allforeign currency transactions are recorded by applying the exchange rate as on the date of transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at year-end exchange rates. Exchange difference on restatement are recognized
in the statement of Profit & Loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION.

Sales in the domestic market are recognized at the time of dispatch of materials to the buyers. Export sales are recognized on issue of Bill of
Lading. Domestic Sales include excise duty and are net of rebate and price concessions.

Claims andinterestreceivables are accounted forin the statement of Profit & Loss based on certainty of their realization.

Interestincome onterm deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
LONGTERMEMPLOYEE BENEFITS.

Contributions towards Provident Funds & Pension Scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the period as and when the
contributions to the Funds are due.

The provisions/liabilities towards gratuity, accrued leave, long term service awards, post retirement medical and settlement benefits, future
payments to the legal heirs of deceased employees under the NEFFARS scheme, are made based on the actuarial valuation as at the
end of the year and charged to Profit & Loss Account after considering actuarial gains/losses.

Expenditure on voluntary retirement compensationis charged offinthe yearinwhich it is incurred.

PRIORPERIOD/PREPAID ITEMS.

Income/ Expenditure relating to prior period and prepaid expenses not exceedingZ1 lakh in each case is treated as income/expenditure for the
currentyear.

EXPENDITURE ONNEW PROJECTS.

Expenses on account of new potential projects incurred illinvestment approval, are charged to revenue. Expenditure incurred thereafter in case
of successful projects are accounted for under capital-work-in progress and capitalized subsequently.

REPAIRSAND REPLACEMENT.

Repairs and replacement of major components are considered in the statement of Profit & Loss as and when incurred.

EXPENDITURE ONRESEARCH ANDDEVELOPMENT.

Expenditure incurred during research phase is charged torevenue when nointangible asset arises from such research.

Development expenditure except of capital nature is charged to statement of Profit& Loss in the year incurred after setting of incidental income, if
any.

EXCEPTIONALITEMS.

Exceptional items are the items of income and expenses within profit or loss from ordinary activities of such size, nature or incidence whose
disclosures is necessary.

DEFERRED TAX.

Deferred Tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing difference being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and taxlaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheetdate.

SEGMENTREPORTING.

The Company has considered Chemicals, Aluminium and Electricity as the three primary business segments. Chemicals include Calcined
Alumina, Alumina Hydrate and other related products. Aluminium includes aluminium ingots, wire rods, billets, strips, rolled and other
related products. Bauxite produced for captive consumption for production of alumina is included under chemicals.

India and Outside India are the two geographical segments. Since all production and other facilities are located in India, segment assets except
export debtors are shown under one geographic segmenti,e. India.

Inter-unit transfer of Calcined Alumina is considered at lower of average price from export sales during the period less freight and cost plus
15.50% return on investment on gross fixed assets. For electricity, lower of the average sales price to GRIDCO and cost plus 15.5%
return on investment on gross fixed assets (as per CERC guidelines), has been considered for transfer pricing.

Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities. Revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable on a reasonable basis, have been included under
Unallocated Common segment.

JOINTVENTURES.

The company has entered into Joint Ventures with IDCO (A Govt. of Odisha Undertakings) under the name and style of Angul Aluminium Park
Private Limited registered on 30.07.2010 in the share holding pattern between NALCO and IDCO in the ratio of 49.5% and 50.5%
respectively. Besides, a new Company has been formed in Joint Venture with Nuclear Power Corporation of India Ltd. (NPCIL) in the
name and style of the new JV as NPCIL NALCO Power Company Ltd where NALCO has 26% stake.

Theinvestmentmade in the Joint Venture is disclosed in line with Accounting Standard AS-27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

PROVISIONSAND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENTASSETS.

A provision is recognized when there is present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an out flow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at end of each year and
adjusted to reflect the best current estimate.

Provision is made /written back in respect of balances on account of sums payable/receivable for more than 3 years, in respect of parties other
than Govt. Dept./ Govt. Companies. In case of Govt. Dept./ Govt. Companies, the same is made on case to case basis depending upon
the merit of the case.

Disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require any
outflow of resources.

No provision is recognized or disclosure for contingent liability is made, when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likely
hood of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingentassets is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statement.
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5 YEARS PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE - PHYSICAL

Sl. Particulars Units 2011-12 2010-11 200510 2008-09 200708
1 Production:
Bauxlte MT 5,002,626 4823908 4878888 4700027 4.684684
Alumina Hydrate MT 1.687.000 1.556.000 1591500 1576500 1.675500
Alaminium MT 413,089 443 597 431.488 361,262 360,457
Power (net) MU 6,200 6,608 6,293 5,541 5,609
2 Export Sales:
Alumina MT 792 552 639,855 T02.554 851,886 859943
Aluminium MT 88.399 98_200 145,947 82,317 101,723
3 Domestic Sales:
Alumina / Hydrate MT 36,144 27,51 26,045 20829 11,307
Aluminium MT 317.517 340,752 289,032 2711214 251,612
Power MU 16 56 15 A1 1249

5 YEARS PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE - FINANCIAL

Sl Particulars 201112 201011 200910 2008-09 2007-08
A Income Statement :
1 Expors 25659 2.0685 2209 2 085 2134
2  Domestic Sales 4.358 4,305 3.101 3,448 3,340
3 Gross Sales (1+2) 8,927 8,370 5310 551 5 474
4 |ess :Excise Duty 427 411 256 423 485
5 Mel Sales (3-4) 6,500 5,950 5,054 5,108 4,988
G Other Incoma :
T Operating 1nz a8 119 123 146
8 MNon-operaling 542 353 374 400 441
8 Operating expenses 54867 4 454 4,071 3427 2,822
10  Operating Profit (5+7-9) 1,145 1,583 1.102 1,804 2,313
11  Exceptional Expenditurs 22 - - - -
12 Eaming before Interest, dep. & taxes (EBIDT)(10+8 -11) 1,665 1,846 1476 2,204 2,754
13  Interest & Financing charges 1 - 2 4 2
14 Eaming before dep. & taxes (EBDT) (12-13) 1.664 1,948 1474 2200 2,752
15 Depreclation and Amorisation ABT 429 318 273 285
16 Profit before Tax (PBT) (14-15) 1198 1,624 1,165 1927 2487
17 Provision for Tax 348 455 341 855 B35
18 Net Profit (PAT) (16 - 17) -85} .69 814 N.272 1832

B Balsnce Shest ;
18 Equity Capital 1,269 1288 644 644 644
20 Reserves & Surplus 10.426 9,878 8,751 8128  B230

21 Metwarth (18+20) 19,715 111688 100395 9770  BA74
22 Loans e Jnt- W - -
23 Nel Flxed Assetls 6,612 5404 4,836 4,032 3,531
24 Working Capital 4,193 3.304 24998 2 596 3,500
25 Capital Employed (23+24) 10.805 8,708 ?.ﬂ?rﬁ 6,628 .03
C Ratios: ' :
26 Operating Prafit Margin (OPM) (%) (10./5°100) | 17.62 2673 2180 3532 4838
27 Net Profit Margin (%) (18/5*100 ) 1 13.07 17.94 16811 2480 3271
28 Relurn on Capital Employed i.FlDGE] (%) -ra.ris*mn} 12.15 {038 1919 2321
29 Relurn on Networth (RONW)(%%) {131’21"1 I w 9.57 T.83 13,02 1838
30  Debt Equity (21/20) : ‘ c 2 :
D Others:
31 Book value pershare of Rs.5 each(in Rs.) 4546 4332 40.34 3791 343
32 Eamings per share (in Rs) 330 4.15 3.18 404 6.33
33 Dividend (Rs. Per Shara) 1.00 250 250 5.00 .00
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NALCO'S VARIOUS PRODUCTION UNITS, THEIR

LOCATION & INSTALLED CAPACITIES

1. Bauxite Mines Fanchpatmalli 63.00,000 TPY
2. Alumina Refinery Damanjod! 21,00,000 TRPY
\ 3. Smaelter Plant Angul 460,000 TPY
. 4_ Captive Power Plant Angul 1,200 MW
5. Port faciiities Vigakhapatnam 1D-,ﬂ,ﬂ,i]uEiTF"'r'
(Aduming Export)
G- (Caustic Soda Lya import)
@ NEW DELH .
@ . FARIDABAD

| .

~ SILVASSA ANGUL
BHUBANESWAR [E
@ BrwaND! o
DAMAN,JODI m

@ MUMBAI
VISAKHAP
| .l Registered Office

Reglanal Office

W Production Centres

BENGALURU
—*—l Port Facilities
Branch Office

AN
@:_ . Stock Yard

"Company's own
port facilities
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OFFICES AND CUSTOMER CONTACT CENTRES

REGD. & CORPORATE OFFICE

NALCO Bhawan

Piol Ne, - P, Mayapalll
Bhubaneswar - 751 061 [(Onz=sa)
Phaone OE74-2301868 10
2301850

UNITS
1. Mines & Refinery

Mines & Refinrery Compes
Dlameaniodt - 783 000

D=t Korapid. (Crisza)
Phams : BES3-25451 /254550
254251

L Caplive Powar Plant

Disl Angul [Orissa)
PN : 7ER 122

Phang OETEA-220158
Fax : DETH4-220846

A, Smaltar Pland

MALCO Nagar - 758 145

Dist. - Angul {Orissa)
Phone  © 06784-220110
Fax . DETHA-220TIRMSP20208
PORT FACILITIES
Visakhspalnam

Opp Ore Handing Complex
Port Area

VisalMapalngm - m ﬁﬂE
Andhra Frﬂﬂuﬂl

Phone -

Fak

Farlﬁ.iﬂ (Port Office)

W' Poinl

Badapadia

Pamadip - 751142
Phone um‘zz oo12ad

Fax - 06T22-221288

nalcaindia codn

REGIONAL OFFICES

1. Eastsrmn Region

181 fioar, J K Millenium Cantrs
48-0. Chewnnohes Road,
Kalkats - 700 071

Phinne 033-22870115/22877363
Fax p33-228103493

2 Waslam Region

295, TV, Induslral Eslals

5. Ahme Marg, Worll,
Mumban - 400 026

Phone ! 022-248353288/85
Fax © 022-24850500
E-mail ’
midewangani@ns|condla.co.in

i, Northern Hegion

Core -, 5th Floor, South Tower,
Distnet Centre, Scope Minas,

Lawmi Magar. Dafi 110 082

Phaone POT1-22010TR2-97,
22010801

Fax 1 011-22010800/22010780
E-mail .

nsundaay finatcoindia coan

4, Sautherm Region

3E, Caniury Plaza, 560, Anna Salat,
Taynampesl, Chenndgi-B00 18

Phone (4 4-24 344 162/ 24345157
Fax COdd-24340485

E-rmall rmsouth@nalooindla.co s

BRANCH OFFICE

Barigaluru

3td Floor, Reshma Complex,

50, M.G. Road, Bahgaiuru-580 001
Phone-  : 080-
255503490/2558T006E/258

Fax : DBD-256B8151

E-rmll ! mkibinsily. oom

STOCK YARDS

1. Bhiwand|

Natioral Aluminium Company Limited
Clo. MSIC Limied,

Godown No, 4257 1n:llar'l Corp.
Gompound

Mankall Nika, Mutribal Naik Road,
Bhiwandi

Phone  © 02522
mmﬁmuﬁm_

2. Kolkata

Hnﬂﬂmi Aiumlnfum Comparny Limied

mme Lawiis & Company
'er"  Kolkats- 700

- 0 5298

4, Bengalury

Natlonal Alumimium Company Limited
Glo. Miz Container Corposation of
Inefia Limidad

Warehousa mo. 3, Whitnfield Road,
Bangaluru - 560 O6BE

Phone : OBO-ZB451 327128

Fax : 0BO-28451329

d. Jadpur

Hational Alumimivm Company Limited
Cio. Central Warshouslng Corparation
Canlral Warahouzs

SP-1296, Silapur Industral Area

Tork Road, Jaipur- 302 022

Phane  : D141-277022872770817

§. Silvasa

Hailonal Alumimium Company Limiled
Clo. NSIC Limited

Godown  : Shalimar Enlerprizses
Corporation

B0/, Dayal Falla Road,

Amili [Piparia), Silvasa-396 230

(UT. of Dadra Magar Havall)

Phops . D2E0-Z32ER3/264 1436

8, Faridatuzd

Hational Aluminium Company Limited
Clo. NSIC Limited '

Indla Garage Enthpment,

Plot No. 51, Sec-B

Fandatied, Haryans - 127 003
Phane : D128-4102430/4044008

7. Visakhopatnam

Mational Aluminium Company Limited
NALCD Port Faailitias

Port Area, Visakhapatinam - 530 035
Godown  : Shalimar Enterprises
Cormoraton

Andhra Pradaesh

Fhone . DEE1-2721032

., Bkl

Mational Aluminium Company Limited
Clo. NSIC Limited '

Opo, Surya Powder Company Limitad
Village  : Dharampur, Thans Road,
P, : Baddi, Tak=il - Nalagarh,
Dist. r Belan (HP)

Phane s 1TE-BORZ114/BE5T 114

g, Ehannal

National Aluminium Company Limlbsd
Gio. NSIC Limited, .M, Depot

NIC Tachrcal Service Canltra
Phass-l, B-24, Guindy Indusirial
Eslals

Chenna - 8 032

Phone s Dd4-222573138
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NATIONAL ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE MANDATE FORM

(Please fill in the information in CAPITAL LETTERS. Please TICK Wherever it is applicable.)

1. Regd.FolioNo. fDPID:IN CLIENT ID/ BEN.AJC No.

Z. First Shareholder’s Name: ShrilSmtium JMis.

3. First Sharsholder's Addrass:

Pin Codo

4. Particulars of Bank:

Bank Mame

Branch Mamea

Addrass

Branch Code (2 Digits MICR Code appearing on the MICR Band of the cheque

Please altach a Xerox copy of a cheque or a blank cheque of your bank duly cancefled)

Account Type & Alc Number. Apcount Numbar.
S8 CA CC

5. Dato from which the mandate should be effective :

| heraby declars that the particulars given above are correct and complate. I any ransaction = delayed or not affect lor reasons of
meomplate or incorrect infermation, | shall not hold Nabonal Aluminiom Company Limited responsible, | aiso Undqﬂidm o advise any

change in the particidars of my account to faciitste updaion of records for purpose of of tHe amount theaugh ECS (Credit
Cleaning).
Slgnature of Sharaholdar(s)
Flaco
Date

WOTE ; Incasa the shareholder 13 not in & poation 1o enclose & phatocopy of & blank chegue, a cerfificala from the Bank as undar may ba
furnishad.

—
Cartified that tha particulars furnished above are cormect as per our records..

Bank's Stamp :
Date - - Signature &f the Authoneed Official from the Bank

(] B
— = -
....:|I -
B3 e - -
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et (A NALCO

Yol TRt s fafes
National Aluminium Company Limited
ANAYRATNA COMPANY OF GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

Desigred & Producad by

Alumiing Refinery Captive Powar Plant Aurminium Smealtar

Regd. & Corporate Office : Nalco Bhawan, Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar-T51 061, Odisha, India
www.nalcoindia.com
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